
 

1 of 3 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, April 21, 2015 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m.  

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Frankie Rodriquez, Living Stones Church, Sugar Land) 
 
Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to 2015 FISH-tastic Sponsors and Volunteers. (Lydia Acosta, Recreation 
Programs Coordinator) 
 
Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to 2015 Easter Egg Hunt Sponsors and Volunteers. (Lydia Acosta, Recreation 
Programs Coordinator) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to 
have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Regular Meeting Minutes for April 07, 2015. (Anne Stark, Assistant City 
Secretary) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-11, an Ordinance granting consent to the Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 167 (which includes Brazos Town Center) for the sale and 
issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,575,000. (Charles A. 
Kalkomey, City Engineer) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  Consideration of and action on a third and final reading of Ordinance 2015-10, an Ordinance granting 
to SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, 
Fort Bend County, Texas, for the transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through 
said Municipality for all purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, 
alleys, and public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing 
for all other provisions related to the subject matter hereof. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services) 
 



 

2 of 3 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

3.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1955, a Resolution finding that CenterPoint Energy 
Entex’s (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) Statement of Intent to Increase Rates filing within the City should 
be denied; finding that the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the Company; 
finding that the meeting at which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; and 
requiring notice of this Resolution to the Company and legal counsel. (John Maresh, Assistant City 
Manager of Public Services) 
 

4.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1959, a Resolution finding that CenterPoint Energy 
Houston Electric, LLC’s (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) application for approval of a Distribution Cost 
Recovery Factor to increase distribution rates within the City should be denied; finding that the City’s 
reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the Company; finding that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; and requiring notice of this Resolution 
to the Company and legal counsel. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

5.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1956, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Commercial Load Management SOP Agreement, by and 
between the City and CenterPoint Energy Service Company, LLC, for the Commercial Load 
Management Standard Offer Program. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

6.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1960, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Pipeline License related to the North Side Water Line 
Improvements Project – Phase II, by and between the City and BNSF Railway Company, in the amount 
of $6,225.00. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

7.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-12, an Ordinance amending the Code of 
Ordinances by amending Chapter 14 – Health, Sanitation and Nuisances, Article VI – Junked Vehicles; 
providing for penalties; providing for a cumulative and conflicts clause; providing a severability clause; 
and providing an effective date.  (Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney) 
 

8.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-13, an Ordinance amending the Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 6 Buildings and Building Regulations, Article XIV. Reserved, establishing restrictions 
on fences on public property; establishing location restrictions; establishing approved fencing materials; 
establishing requirements for fence maintenance; establishing fence restrictions; establishing 
requirements for dilapidated fence remediation; repealing all conflicting ordinances, providing a 
severability clause; and providing for an effective date. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community 
Services) 
 

9.  Review and discuss a proposed survey regarding the One-Way Pairs Project, and take action as 
necessary. (William Benton, Councilor, At-Large Position One / Amanda Barta, Councilor, District 4) 
 

10.  Hold Executive Session to deliberate the potential purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property 
pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

11.  Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

12.  Announcements. 
 

13.  Adjournment. 
 



 

3 of 3 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2015, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need of special 
assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   

 
Executive Sessions: The City Council may retire to executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, any 
time between the meeting’s opening and adjournment for the purposes of: 

 consultation with legal counsel (Section 551.071); 
 deliberation regarding real property (Section 551.072); 
 deliberation regarding economic development negotiations (Section 551.087) 
 deliberation regarding the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or 

devices (Section 551.076) 
 
Attendance by other elected or appointed officials: It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions or 
committees whose meetings may be governed by the Texas Open Meetings Act may attend this meeting in numbers that 
may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions or committees.  Notice is hereby given that the meeting, 
to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a possible quorum/meeting of the other boards, commissions or 
committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance.  The members may speak as recognized by the presiding 
officer, but no action may be taken by any board, commission or committee unless such item is specifically provided for 
on an agenda designated for that board, commission or committee and posted in compliance with the Texas Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
This Agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any 
Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by 
legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may 
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering the available opinions of a court of record and 
opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney.  This provision has been added to this agenda with the intent 
to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by 
all participants in reliance on this opinion. 



 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation 
to 2015 FISH-tastic Sponsors and Volunteers

















 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation 
to 2015 Easter Egg Hunt Sponsors and 

Volunteers

















General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – April 07, 2015 
 
 
 



PAGE 1 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 7th day of April, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, met in 
a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, 
Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
William Benton  Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Barta  Councilor, District 4 

 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia  City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Anne Stark   Assistant City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Charles Kalkomey  City Engineer 
Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Jeanne M. McDonald Attorney 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Tommy Havelka  Police Officer 
Austin Eaton   Police Officer 
Wade Goates  Fire Chief 
Jeff Schumann  Fire Lieutenant 
Cody Bittner   Fire Driver Operator 
Cornelius Brooks   Firefighter 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 
Rigo Calzoncin  Public Works Director 
James Lewis   Information Services Manager 
Daniel Kelleher  Main Street Manager 
Jackie Jurasek  Animal Control Supervisor 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 

CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  
Pastor Rodrick Perkins, The Place Church, Rosenberg, gave the invocation and led the pledge of allegiance 
to the flag. 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE WILLIE D. MCQUEEN, JR., EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER AWARD.  
Wade Goates, Fire Chief, presented the Willie D. McQueen, Jr., Employee of the Quarter Award to 
Lieutenant Jeff Schumann, Driver/Operator Cody Bittner, and Firefighter Cornelius Brooks for their quick 
action as first responders on a scene in December 2014 involving a LCISD student in cardiac arrest. 
 
PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION TO RANDY WEISHEIMER FOR HIS SERVICE AS A POLICE 
EXPLORER ADVISOR FROM 2008-2015.   



PAGE 2 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

Dallis Warren presented a Certificate of Appreciation to Randy Weisheimer for his service as a Police 
Explorer Advisor from 2008-2015.   
 
PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO CITY OF ROSENBERG COMMITTEE MEMBERS.  
Mayor Morales presented Certificates of Appreciation to members of the following boards and committees: 
 
 Water/Wastewater Impact Fee  Parks and Recreation Board 
 Animal Control Shelter Advisory Board  Planning Commission 
 Building and Standards Board  Rental Property Appeals Board 
 Firefighters’ Pension Board  Rosenberg Development Corporation 
 Image Committee  Richmond-Rosenberg Local Government Corporation 
 Main Street Advisory Board  West Fort Bend Management District 
  

 

PRESENTATION OF ROSENBERG IMAGE COMMITTEE BEAUTIFICATION AND RENOVATION AWARDS.  
William Benton, Councilor presented Rosenberg Image Committee Beautification and Renovation Awards 
to: 
 
Present: 
 Capital One Bank 1306 Spacek Road 
 Friends of North Rosenberg 503 3rd Street 
 The Witt Pitt 2516 1st Street 

 
Not Present: 
 LD Sylvester Hayes 2003 Hamilton Street 
 Sidney Niemeyer 2713 Monroe Avenue 
 Richard and Bobbie Spoonts 3720 Avenue R 

  
 

PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING APRIL 10, 2015, AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY RELAY FOR 
LIFE DAY IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  
Mayor Morales presented a Proclamation Proclaiming April 10, 2015, American Cancer Society Relay for Life 
Day in the City of Rosenberg. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this 
time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the 
City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy 
to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 
 
 Alex Martinez, residence unknown, provided Council with feedback from a previous City Council 

Meeting. 
 Hebert Castillo, 1310 Cardinal Drive, Richmond, Texas addressed the Council regarding the Spacek Tract 

disannexation.  
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular 
Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  
Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is 
scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their 
name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a 
City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be 



PAGE 3 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 17, 2015, AND 
WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 24, 2015.  
 

 B. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1949, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF 
TEXAS SENATE BILL NO. 581 RELATING TO THE CREATION OF A CAMPUS OF THE TEXAS STATE 
TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM IN FORT BEND COUNTY.  
Executive Summary: Senator Lois Kolkhorst of Texas Senate District 18 has filed Texas Senate Bill 
No. 581, relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College (TSTC) in Fort 
Bend County. TSTC is working with the George and Henderson-Wessendorff Foundations on 
building a new TSTC Fort Bend Campus. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1949 as presented. 
 

 C. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE CITY OF ROSENBERG FY2015 STREET OVERLAY AND 
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT LIST.  
Executive Summary: The list of streets for the proposed FY2015 Street Overlay and 
Reconstruction Project was presented to City Council during the March 24, 2015 Workshop. A 
copy of the Priority Project List is included in the agenda packet. The cost estimate for the 
recommended streets included on the Priority Project List is approximately $800,253.55. The 
FY2015 Budget includes $800,000.00, which should fully fund the FY2015 project.  
 
Upon City Council approval, staff will take the necessary actions to purchase the material, 
including labor and equipment utilizing the Fort Bend County bids. Staff will also prepare bid 
specifications and complete the bidding process for the subgrade lime stabilization. After bids 
are received, an action item to award this bid will be placed on a future City Council Agenda.  
 
For reference, the list of remaining streets to be repaved from the approved FY2014 Street 
Paving Project list is also included in the agenda packet. Fort Bend County Road and Bridge 
Department is still planning to complete the remainder of the FY2014 work later this 
Spring/Summer.    
  
Staff recommends approval of the FY2015 Priority Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List 
as presented. 
 

 D. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1953, A RESOLUTION 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE ACQUISITION, BY GENERAL WARRANTY DEED, OF A 20-FOOT WIDE STRIP 
OF LAND IN THE ROBERT E. HANDY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 187, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF AND A PART OF THAT CERTAIN CALLED 0.998 ACRE TRACT 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 2725, PAGE 4, OFFICIAL RECORDS, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND 
GENERALLY LOCATED AT 5187 BRYAN ROAD, ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
BRYAN ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.  
Executive Summary: As a part of the improvements necessary for the widening of Bryan Road, 
City Council authorized staff to negotiate and purchase certain real property, namely a 20-foot 
strip of property located at 5187 Bryan Road to serve as a part of the required public right-of-
way for the Bryan Road Improvement Project. 
 
Staff has successfully completed the negotiation and successfully acquired said real property. 
Accordingly, staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1953 providing for the 
acceptance of said property generally located at 5187 Bryan Road, Rosenberg, Texas, and 
associated with the Bryan Road Improvement Project. 
 

 E. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF THE RESERVE AT BRAZOS TOWN CENTER 
SECTION FOUR, BEING 27.6398 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESERVE “H”, 
BLOCK 4, THE VILLAGES AT ROSENBERG (SLIDE NO. 1945 A&B; F.B.C.P.R.) CONVEYED TO FIGURE 
FOUR PARTNERS, LTD. (F.B.C.C.F. NO. 2013159055) IN THE JANE H. LONG LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 



PAGE 4 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

55, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 4 RESERVES, 104 LOTS, 3 BLOCKS.   
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four is located off of 
Town Center Boulevard, north of its intersection with Vista Drive.  It is located within the City Limits; in 
Fort Bend County MUD No. 167; and immediately west of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section 
Three, which has been recorded.  The Plat consists of approximately 27.6 acres, with 104 single-family 
residential lots and four (4) reserves. 

The typical lot size for the subdivision is 50 feet in width.  This is per the approved Land Plan, which 
was most recently amended on January 20, 2015.  Per the amended Development Agreement, 
homes in the subdivision will also be a minimum of 51 percent masonry construction, which is noted 
on the Plat. 

The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on November 
19, 2014, and the Final Plat was recommended by approval on January 21, 2015.  The 
proposed Final Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Land 
Plan for Brazos Town Center, or with the approved Preliminary Plat.  That being said, staff and 
the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town 
Center Section Four. 
 

 F. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF THE RESERVE AT BRAZOS TOWN CENTER 
SECTION FIVE, A 22.1380 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN THE ROBERT HANDY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
187, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 3 RESERVES, 73 LOTS, 2 BLOCKS   
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five is located off of 
Town Center Boulevard, to the east of its intersection with FM 2218.  It is located within the City Limits 
and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 167.  The Plat consists of approximately 22.14 acres, with 73 single-
family residential lots and three (3) reserves. 
 
The typical lot size for the subdivision is fifty-five (55’) feet in width.  This is per the approved Land Plan, 
as amended on January 20, 2015.  Per the amended Development Agreement, residences in the 
subdivision must also be a minimum of three (3) sides masonry exterior and 2,000 square feet in size. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on October 
15, 2014, and the Final Plat was recommended for approval on January 21, 2015.  The 
proposed Final Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Land 
Plan or Development Agreement for Brazos Town Center, or with the approved Preliminary Plat.  
That being said, staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Final Plat of 
The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five. 
 

 G. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF THE TOWNHOMES AT BRAZOS TOWN 
CENTER, A 20.0427 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A REPLAT OF RESTRICTED RESERVE “A”, BRAZOS 
TOWN CENTER, SECTION TWO (PLAT NO. 20050239; F.B.C.P.R.) IN THE JANE H. LONG LEAGUE, 
ABSTRACT NO. 55, AND IN THE SIMON JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 271, CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 5 RESERVES, 139 LOTS, 3 BLOCKS.   
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town is located off of Town Center 
Boulevard, north of its intersection with Commercial Drive.  It is located within the City Limits and in 
Fort Bend County MUD No. 167.  The Plat consists of approximately 20.04 acres, with 139 townhome 
lots and five (5) reserves. 
 
The typical lot size for the subdivision is twenty-four (24) to twenty-eight (28) feet in width.  This is per 
the approved Land Plan, as amended on January 20, 2015.  Per the amended Development 
Agreement, the subdivision must comply with the following, among other things: 

 Residences shall be a minimum of 1,700 square feet in size; 
 Residences shall have three-sided masonry exterior with a landscape buffer between 

buildings; 
 Minimum fifty-foot (50’) street right-of-way width; 
 Minimum twenty-seven-foot (27’) pavement width measured from inside of curb to inside of 

curb; 
 Minimum twenty-foot (20’) front building lines on all lots; and, 



PAGE 5 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

 A two-car garage shall be required on each lot. 
 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of this subdivision on October 15, 2014, 
and the Final Plat was recommended for approval on January 21, 2015.  The proposed Final 
Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Land Plan or 
Development Agreement for Brazos Town Center, or with the approved Preliminary Plat.  That 
being said, staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Final Plat of The 
Townhomes at Brazos Town Center. 
 

 H. Item H was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2A on the Regular Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1954, A RESOLUTION 
ACKNOWLEDGING THE ACCEPTANCE, BY RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED, OF A 0.3030 TRACT OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE JAMES LOWERY 1/3 LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NUMBER 275 IN FORT BEND COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND BEING OUT OF AND A PART OF THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED TO TRINITY 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 388, PAGE 184 OF THE 
FORT BEND COUNTY DEED RECORDS, AND GENERALLY LOCATED AT LOUISE STREET AND AVENUE 
N, AND ASSOCIATED WITH TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH EXPANSION PROJECT.  
 

 Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Consent 
Agenda Items A, B, C, D, E, F, and G. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
2A.   This Item was originally Item H on the Consent Agenda. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1954, A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING 
THE ACCEPTANCE, BY RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED, OF A 0.3030 TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE JAMES 
LOWERY 1/3 LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NUMBER 275 IN FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING OUT OF 
AND A PART OF THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED TO TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 388, PAGE 184 OF THE FORT BEND COUNTY DEED 
RECORDS, AND GENERALLY LOCATED AT LOUISE STREET AND AVENUE N, AND ASSOCIATED WITH 
TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH EXPANSION PROJECT.  
Executive Summary: Trinity Lutheran Church (“Church”) is located at 1512 Louise Street, which is 
generally the northwest intersection of Louise and Avenue N, consisting of approximately 2.5 
acres.  Church representatives met with City staff several months ago to discuss potentially further 
developing their property.  One of the issues brought up at that time was the City’s requirement to 
plat the property in order to obtain a building permit per City ordinance.  At the time, staff 
informed the Church of a less costly and time consuming alternative to platting if they aren’t 
subdividing the property, which is to simply dedicate any rights-of-way or easements that may be 
necessary and file a plat exemption form before a permit is issued.  Staff identified, and the 
Church confirmed, that ten feet (10’) of right-of-way was needed along Avenue N, since Avenue 
N is a collector street per the City’s Major Thoroughfare Plan, and thirty feet (30’) of right-of-way 
would be needed for Louise Street, since the Church currently owns in fee up to the centerline of 
the street.  The Church had no objections to these dedications and submitted deed and legal 
description for the City’s review.  Staff has reviewed and found no issues with the proposed deed.  
However, City Council action is required to formally authorize the acceptance, hence the item 
being placed on the Agenda.  Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1954 authorizing 
the acceptance. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development gave an 
overview of the item. He explained that by dedicating the necessary rights of way to the City, the 
Church will be exempt from platting. 
 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve 
Resolution No. R-1954, a Resolution acknowledging the acceptance, by Right-of-Way Deed, of a 
0.3030 tract of land situated in the James Lowery 1/3 League, Abstract Number 275 in Fort Bend 
County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the tract of land described in deed to Trinity 
Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas, as recorded in Volume 388, Page 184 of the Fort Bend 



PAGE 6 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

County Deed Records, and generally located at Louise Street and Avenue N, and associated 
with Trinity Lutheran Church expansion project.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

2.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1948, A RESOLUTION IN OPPOSITION TO A 
REVENUE CAP AND LEGISLATIVE INTERFERENCE WITH LOCAL SERVICES.   
Executive Summary: Senate Bill No. 182 has been introduced to the Texas State Senate for the 
purpose of imposing a cap on revenue generated by City property taxes.  This proposed 
legislation would have a minimal effect on the individual property owner’s taxes but would have a 
dramatic impact on a City’s ability to provide essential services.   
 
Resolution No. R-1948 has been included to allow for City Council to provide its support for the 
opposition of such legislation. 
 
Key Discussion Points:   

 Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor gave an overview of the item, encouraging Council to 
approve the Resolution.  

 He explained that a cap of 4 percent as opposed to the current 8 percent would be a 
hindrance to the City and would add associated cost burdens. 

 Councilor Benton expressed concern regarding the efficacy of the proposed letter. 
 Mayor Morales explained that the City of Rosenberg would be in the company of several 

other cities in Texas expressing their opposition to the revenue cap, thereby adding 
strength in numbers. 

 
Action:  Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve 
Resolution No. R-1948, a Resolution in opposition to a revenue cap and legislative interference 
with local services.    
The motion carried by a vote of 5 to 2 as follows:  Yeses:  Mayor Morales, Councilors Pena, Euton, 
Grigar and McConathy. Noes:  Councilors Benton and Barta. 
 

3.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS OVERVIEW REGARDING MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT OPERATIONS AND 
DISSOLUTIONS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary: A Municipal Utility District (MUD) is a political subdivision of the State of Texas 
authorized by the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) to provide improvements 
such as water, sewage, drainage and other services within the MUD boundaries.  MUDs are 
primarily a funding mechanism for the capital outlay necessary to provide said improvements. This 
item has been included on the Agenda to offer City Council an opportunity to receive and 
discuss information regarding MUD creation and dissolution. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Jeanne H. McDonald, Attorney gave a general overview of the creation 
and history of MUDs. No action was taken on this item. 
 

4.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED SUPPORT FOR LEGISLATION CREATING FORT BEND COUNTY 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 218, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary: One part of the Municipal Utility District (MUDs) approval process is 
consideration of the MUDs legislative language by the Texas Legislature. MUD No. 218 has 
submitted legislation for the creation of their MUD. House Bill No. 4126 is included in the agenda 
packet. The developer, D.R. Horton, is seeking support from the City for the legislation. 
 
This Agenda item should not be considered approval of the MUD District itself, but simply 
demonstrates approval of their legislation as they seek approval from our legislators in order to 
create the MUD District. The City may withdraw its support at any time. 
 
Should City Council look favorably upon this request, staff will finalize and send the draft 
correspondence provided. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Jeanne H. McDonald gave an overview of the item. 
 



PAGE 7 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve the draft 
correspondence in support of House Bill No. 4126, creating MUD No. 218.  The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote. 
 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10, AN 
ORDINANCE GRANTING TO SIENERGY, L.P., A FRANCHISE TO FURNISH AND SUPPLY GAS TO THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE TRANSPORTING, 
DELIVERY, SALE, AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR ALL 
PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE OF THE STREETS, 
ALLEYS, AND PUBLIC WAYS; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REGULATORY ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY; AND PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF.  
Executive Summary: It was recently determined that SiEnergy, L.P., is providing natural gas service 
to areas that are now located within a portion of the Rosenberg City Limits. Therefore, SiEnergy, 
L.P., is required to obtain a franchise agreement from the City. In accordance with Article XII of the 
City Charter, the City Attorney has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-10 which will grant said franchise 
to furnish and supply gas to the general public. 
 
Article XII, Section 12.03 of the City Charter identifies specific procedures for approval of franchise 
ordinances which are summarized below: 

 Ordinances shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading 
 Ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the City Council, the last of 

which shall take place not less than thirty days from the first 
 No ordinance granting a franchise shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority 

of the City Council 
 Ordinances shall not take effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final 

reading 
 Any time before the ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition can be presented to the 

City Council signed by not less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular 
municipal election, but in no event less than one hundred fifty bona fide qualified voters, 
requiring the City Council submit the question of granting said franchise to a vote of the 
qualified voters of the City 
 

SiEnergy, L.P., has reviewed the Ordinance and has no objections to any of the terms.  City 
Council considered and approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10 at the March 17, 
2015 Regular Meeting.  Staff recommends approval of this second reading of Ordinance No. 
2015-10 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive 
Summary. 
 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve the second 
reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish 
and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, for the 
transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through said Municipality for all 
purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, alleys, and 
public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing for all 
other provisions related to the subject matter hereof.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1945, A RESOLUTION AWARDING BID NO. 
2015-08 FOR TREE TRIMMING SERVICES; AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACT RELATED THERETO 
AND/OR ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION REGARDING SAME.  
Executive Summary: On Wednesday, March 18, 2015, bids were received and opened for Bid No. 
2015-08 for the Tree Trimming Services Contract in Council District No. 4.  The City received three 
(3) bids, the lowest from Bio Landscape and Maintenance, Inc., in the amount of $19,250.00.  The 
prices that Bio Landscape and Maintenance, Inc., submitted were compared to previous tree 
trimming done by various vendors for the City and found to be favorable.  References were 



PAGE 8 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

checked and found to be acceptable.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1945 which will award Bid No. 2015-08 and 
provide authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents 
necessary to facilitate the Agreement.  Should City Council award Bid No. 2015-08 as 
recommended, the proposal will be attached to Resolution No. R-1945 to serve as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary and gave an overview of the 
item. He explained that when the previous contract expired two years ago, District 4 was the next 
on the list, which is why the new contract begins there. Resulting from the reasonable bid by this 
company, there will be enough money to trim trees in more than one District this year. The general 
consensus of Council was to approve this Resolution, and to begin gathering information for the 
next District which could be completed during this calendar year. 
 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve 
Resolution No. R-1945, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-08 for Tree Trimming Services; and 
authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a General 
Services Contract related thereto and/or all necessary documentation regarding same.  The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

7.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1946, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN AMENDED AND 
RESTATED AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 
UNDER WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE GULF COAST WATER 
AUTHORITY.   
Executive Summary: Beginning in 2011, City Council has annually approved a Resolution 
authorizing the City Manager to execute an Agreement to assign a portion of the City’s 
contracted Brazos River Authority (BRA) raw surface water supply to the Gulf Coast Water 
Authority (GCWA) at the same rate paid to the BRA. The assignment is subject to BRA consent on 
an annual basis.    
 
The City’s contracted allocation of BRA raw surface water is four thousand five hundred (4,500) 
acre feet annually. The Agreement under consideration provides for consent to assign the full four 
thousand five hundred (4,500) acre feet on an annual basis, for the remainder of the BRA contract 
term which expires August 31, 2050. Section 6 of the Agreement allows either party to terminate 
the Agreement on December 31 of any year, provided a one-hundred twenty (120) day prior 
written notice is given to the other party. This provision is important as the City will retain the option 
to change its course regarding use of the BRA contracted water when the Brazosport Water 
Authority (BWA) surface water supply project begins to deliver water.       
 
Per the Agreement, GCWA is required to pay or reimburse the City for the assigned water at the 
same rate charged by the BRA. For FY2015 the BRA rate is $69.50/acre foot for a total of 
$312,750.00. By assigning the raw surface water allocation to GCWA, the City will be able to 
recoup this full amount. These dollars will be placed back into the Subsidence (GRP) Fund to help 
cover expenses for the City’s alternative water supply internal capital projects currently under 
design/construction and the BWA Water Supply Agreement which are all necessary to comply 
with the Fort Bend Subsidence District unfunded mandate to reduce groundwater withdrawals by 
thirty percent (30%) in 2016. 
 
The Agreement has been reviewed by Attorney Patrick Lindner, serving as Special Counsel 
regarding water related projects. Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1946, with the 
Agreement attached as Exhibit “A”, as presented. If approved by City Council, the formal 
Consent Agreement for year 2015 will be placed on a future Agenda for consideration, subject to 
BRA consent. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary and gave an overview of the 
item. 



PAGE 9 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

 
Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve 
Resolution No. R-1946, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, an Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to the Temporary 
Assignment of Rights and Obligations under Water Supply Contract, by and between the City and 
the Gulf Coast Water Authority.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

8.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1947, A RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE 
WATER SUPPLY AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND BRAZOSPORT WATER AUTHORITY.  
Executive Summary: On December 02, 2014, City Council authorized the Mayor to execute a 
Water Supply Agreement (Agreement) with the Brazosport Water Authority (BWA) as required by 
the amended Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP). The Agreement provides a mechanism 
allowing for compliance with the Fort Bend Subsidence District  unfunded mandate  to reduce 
groundwater withdrawals by 30% beginning October 01, 2016, by constructing a pipeline 
supplying treated surface water to the City. Subsequently on February 03, 2015, City Council 
authorized the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement, allowing the City to 
exercise the option to acquire an additional 2.7 million gallons of treated surface water per day. 
 
Section 1.1 of the Agreement includes a provision that allows the City to terminate said 
Agreement if BWA was unable to secure the issuance of bonds necessary to finance the delivery 
system by March 31, 2015. Included in the packet is a timeline prepared by BWA’s Financial 
Advisor identifying the various steps and target dates necessary to secure the bond funds. 
According to the timeline, the funds are scheduled to be delivered on May 27, 2015. Since this 
date will be past March 31, 2015, BWA has requested written assurance the City does not intend to 
terminate the Agreement. BWA staff has confirmed they are on schedule and still anticipate 
delivery of the funds on, or about, May 27, 2015.    
 
Resolution No. R-1947 was prepared by Attorney Patrick Lindner, serving as Special Counsel 
regarding water related issues. Staff does recommend approval of Resolution No. R-1947 as 
presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary and informed the Council that 
the project is proceeding at this time, now that they have the proper approval in place. 
 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve 
Resolution No. R-1947, a Resolution relating to the Water Supply Agreement, by and between the 
City and Brazosport Water Authority.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

9.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1951, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN ENGINEERING SERVICES 
PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING RELATED TO WATER PLANT NO. 8, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND 
JONES AND CARTER, INC., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $586,000.00.  
Executive Summary: The construction of Water Plant No. 8 is necessary in order to take delivery of 
the treated surface water that will be provided by the Brazosport Water Authority to meet the Fort 
Bend Subsidence District (District) unfunded mandate to reduce groundwater withdrawal by 30% 
beginning October 01, 2016. The water will be stored and pumped into the City’s water distribution 
system from this facility. Water Plant No. 8 will be located within the boundaries of Fort Bend 
County Municipal Utility District No. 184 (MUD No. 184) located along A. Meyer Road, between 
Burdett Road and Benton Road. MUD No. 184 previously agreed to convey a 3-acre water plant 
site to the City. This project is a component of the Amended Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) 
which has been approved by the District. The Alternate Water Project is also included in the 
FY2015 Capital Improvements Program approved by City Council on June 17, 2014 (Resolution No. 
R-1801).  
 
An Engineering Services Proposal for Water Plant No. 8 from Jones and Carter, Inc., is included in 
the agenda packet as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1951 for City Council’s consideration. The 
base amount for design and construction phase services is $440,000.00. Additional services for 



PAGE 10 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

topographic and boundary surveys, construction staking, construction management, field 
inspections, geotechnical investigation and other reimbursable expenses total $146,000.00, for an 
estimated total of $586,000.00.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1951 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary. 
 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve 
Resolution No. R-1951, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, an Engineering Services Proposal for engineering related to Water Plant No. 8, by and 
between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $586,000.00.  The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

10.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1952, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN ENGINEERING SERVICES 
PROPOSAL FOR CHLORAMINE CONVERSIONS AT WATER PLANT NOS. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, AND 7, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY AND JONES AND CARTER, INC., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $300,000.00.  
Executive Summary: The City of Rosenberg currently uses a free chlorine disinfection system at its 
existing ground water plant sites. In order to effectively blend the chloramine-treated surface 
water from the Brazosport Water Authority (BWA), it is necessary to convert the existing free 
chlorine disinfection system to a chloramine disinfection system. This project is also a component 
of the Amended Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) which has been approved by the Fort Bend 
Subsidence District in order to reduce groundwater withdrawal by 30% beginning October 01, 
2016. The Alternate Water Project is included in the FY2015 Capital Improvements Program 
approved by City Council on June 17, 2014 (Resolution No. R-1801). 
 
The Engineering Services Proposal from Jones and Carter, Inc., included in the agenda packet as 
Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1952, provides for the design and construction phase engineering of 
this conversion process.  The base amount for this Project is $225,000.00.  Additional services for 
surveys, field inspections and other reimbursable expenses are estimated at $75,000.00, for a total 
amount not to exceed $300,000.00. It should also be noted as a part of the preliminary design 
phase, options for converting the gas chlorine to chlorine bleach will be provided to staff for 
consideration before the final design phase begins. Secondly, the installation of tank mixers is not 
included as a part of this project. The cost to install a mixer at every tank is estimated at $500,000. 
Instead, staff proposes to complete the chloramine conversion and review the need for mixers at 
individual tanks, if water quality issues are encountered.     
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1952 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary. He clarified that this is for ground 
water plant sites, not Wastewater Treatment Plant 1-A that has been discussed in previous 
meetings. 
 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve 
Resolution No. R-1952, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, an Engineering Services Proposal for chloramine conversions at Water Plant Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 
6, and 7, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$300,000.00.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

11.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO CONSULT WITH CITY ATTORNEY REGARDING PENDING LITIGATION, 
NAMELY IMPERIAL ARTS V. ROSENBERG, PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.071 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 
CODE. 
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to adjourn to 
Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 
An Executive Session was held to consult with City Attorney regarding pending litigation, namely 



PAGE 11 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  

Imperial Arts v. Rosenberg, pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

12.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 9:22 p.m.  
 

13.  ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
Rosenberg Railroad Museum RailFest will be held April 11, 2015, from 11:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 
 

14.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 9:23 p.m. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Ordinance No. 2015-11  - MUD No. 167 Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015 Bond 
Sale - $3,575,000  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-11, an Ordinance granting consent to the Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 167 (which includes Brazos Town Center) for the sale and issuance of Unlimited 
Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,575,000. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

 
MUD #: 167 (Brazos Town Center) 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-11 
2. Location Map 
3. Oliver Correspondence w/o Attachments – 04-09-15 
4. TCEQ Technical Memorandum/Order – 04-16-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E. 
City Engineer   

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Attached for your consideration is Ordinance No. 2015-11 granting the City’s consent to Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 167 (MUD No. 167), to sell Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not 
to exceed $3,575,000. MUD No. 167 is located within the City’s Corporate Limits. The development is 
generally identified as Brazos Town Center. 
 
City Council consented to the creation of MUD No. 167 on June 28, 2005, through Ordinance No. 2005-14 
which was originally proposed as a 121.81 acre development.  A Development Agreement between the City 
and A-S 70 HWY 59-FM762, LP, was executed on December 07, 2004; a Water Supply and Wastewater 
Services Agreement was executed on December 06, 2005; and an Economic Development Agreement was 
executed on August 08, 2006. City Council approved Ordinance No. 2006-06 consenting to the addition of 
173.8037 acres into MUD No. 167 on April 04, 2006, and Ordinance No. 2007-03 consented to the addition of 
118.7858 acres into MUD No. 167 on February 06, 2007, for a total of approximately 414 acres.   
 
This will be the fifth Unlimited Tax Bond sale for MUD No. 167.  

 The first sale of Unlimited Tax Bonds was approved by City Council on July 01, 2008, through 
Ordinance No. 2008-20 in the amount of $3,165,000. 

 MUD No. 167’s Tax Road Bond Anticipation Note was approved by City Council on November 18, 
2008, through Ordinance No. 2008-48 in the amount of $3,560,000.  

 A Road Bond sale was approved by City Council on June 16, 2009, through Ordinance No. 2009-19 
in the amount of $7,000,000. 

 The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) issued an order approving the issuance of 
$4,120,000 in bonds on September 29, 2010.  However, after the tax assessment values were 



released at that time, MUD No. 167 revised the bond issuance to $3,000,000.  The second Unlimited 
Tax Bonds sale, in the amount of $3,000,000, was approved by City Council on November 16, 2010, 
through Ordinance No. 2010-28, deferring the remaining $1,120,000 to a future sale.   

 The second part of the previous sale of Unlimited Tax Bonds was approved by City Council on April 
17, 2012, through Ordinance No. 2012-17 in the amount of $1,120,000 for a total of the TCEQ 
approved $4,120,000.  

 The third sale was approved by City Council on November 20, 2012, through Ordinance No. 2012-43 
in the amount of $3,000,000.  

 The fourth sale of Unlimited Tax Bonds was approved by City Council on May 04, 2014, through 
Ordinance No. 2014-20 in the amount of $3,725,000. 

 
Much of the submission documentation provided by MUD No. 167 for this proposed sale such as the Bond 
Order Authorizing the Issuance of Bonds by MUD No. 167, the Preliminary Official Statement/Notice of Sale, 
Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Bonds by MUD No. 167, Cash Flow Analysis, Debt Fund Schedule, 
Summary of Costs, along with minute excerpts and related Ordinances are available for review in the City 
Secretary’s Office.  
 
Staff has reviewed the documentation and found it to be in compliance with applicable City Ordinances. Staff 
is recommending approval of Ordinance No. 2015-11 thus authorizing the sale of Unlimited Tax Bonds, 
Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,575,000.  
  



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-11 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, GRANTING CONSENT TO THE FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 167 FOR THE SALE 
AND ISSUANCE OF UNLIMITED TAX BONDS, SERIES 2015, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $3,575,000. 

 
  

 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”) consented to the creation 
of the Fort Bend County Municipal District No. 167 (the “District”) by Ordinance No. 
2005-14, passed and approved on June 28, 2005, (the “Consent Ordinance”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District was created in accordance with the provisions of 
Article V of Chapter 29 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is within the corporate limits of the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has requested the City’s consent to the District’s sale 
and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed 
$3,575,000; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has reviewed the District’s request for 
the sale and issuance of such Bonds and the documentation and certifications 
submitted by the District in support thereof; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the sale and issuance of such 
Bonds by the District is in accordance with the Consent Ordinance, the Water Supply 
and Wastewater Services Contract entered into by and between the City and the District 
on December 06, 2005, including all amendments and addendums thereto, and the 
terms and conditions set forth in Chapter 29 of the City Code of Ordinances; now, 
therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 

are hereby found to be true and correct. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves and consents to the sale and 

issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,575,000, 

by the Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 167.  Such approval is based on to 

the certifications, representations, and conditions set forth in the District’s request for 



 2 

approval of the sale and issuance of such Bonds, and the terms and provisions of the 

Consent Ordinance, the Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contracts entered into 

by and between the City and District, including all amendments and addendums thereto, 

and the applicable provisions set forth in Chapter 29 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

__________________ 2015. 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



J

il
¡l

*t - ir-'asÌ*..a.r-
^¿¡rt

F.B.C.M.U.D. 167
118.7858 ACRES

:k."

Tnsh{Li€

EXntÐ¡î

ñilÊ'3'lÞ

\

GBAPH¡C SCAT^E

or
FCR1 etilO €OurilT Irl'r¿rcrPÄt uFt-t¡Y

Irs'tRrcl !ú? 8our.DÀRT u^f,
lN A.R^ZO6 rOW'r C['iIER.

grY or Fosf,l¡ffÊG.
roar SfND colrÈrY. Ì€tÅs

"Erås 
glrclNEsslilc Àillr t¡ÀpPfic
,?ôro cD¡vTÜtY Ðitfg

sf^Jf(,ar¡, Tf,f, s 7?r?7

N

f!nñl
lL.l'Stl

't

lrrF
' 

LÞNE
1 ¡'ût

I OLtIFtGFl-L.f

.tq,

r^EÍ a^tffic|lF

-- FF É *---e!. Þdr - ts -'FËr Fr h Þ r -'E ñ
ff . háa( d tu d -*td 4 Þ?¡d- r ¡i-¡ r rær,m

&Þr milM N x{ d r¡.¡ *1.3r-{-r, F bfþqf 
\ *,

Sþ*=::

':ffi'

7e.
{å--q

*:}:':',Þ-
:¿
I

; . -\ì_..'______-_.-_.-i
_.,-^----rrt., 

- ---/ i.

,. -.-.-' --- -/

Iæmr¡rÐF@txlææFÈ-Nø@q'wÞoffiRM
ffi3 E, àËlF Ð SrE 4-s(rl E ñD q

m

al -\"_{.

t.'ffi!*ú _

























CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Ordinance No. 2015-10 – Granting a Gas Franchise to SiEnergy, L.P. 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a third reading and final of Ordinance 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to 
SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas, for the transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through said 
Municipality for all purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, alleys, 
and public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing for all other 
provisions related to the subject matter hereof.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-10 
2. Charter Excerpt – Article XII, Section 12.03 
3. SiEnergy Distribution System Map 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 04-07-15  
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 03-17-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

It was recently determined that SiEnergy, L.P., is providing natural gas service to areas that are now 
located within a portion of the Rosenberg City Limits. Therefore, SiEnergy, L.P., is required to obtain a 
franchise agreement from the City. In accordance with Article XII of the City Charter, the City Attorney has 
prepared Ordinance No. 2015-10 which will grant said franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general 
public. 
 
Article XII, Section 12.03 of the City Charter identifies specific procedures for approval of franchise 
ordinances which are summarized below: 
 

 Ordinances shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading 
 Ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the City Council, the last of which 

shall take place not less than thirty days from the first 
 No ordinance granting a franchise shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority of the 

City Council 
 Ordinances shall not take effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final reading 
 Any time before the ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition can be presented to the City 

Council signed by not less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular municipal 



election, but in no event less than one hundred fifty bona fide qualified voters, requiring the City 
Council submit the question of granting said franchise to a vote of the qualified voters of the City 
 

SiEnergy, L.P., has reviewed the Ordinance and has no objections to any of the terms.  City Council 
considered and approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10 at the March 17, 2015 Regular 
Meeting.  The second reading was unanimously approved by City Council at the April 07, 2015 meeting.  
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-10 as presented on this the third and final reading.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10 

GAS SUPPLY FRANCHISE ORDINANCE  

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO SIENERGY, L.P.,  A FRANCHISE TO 
FURNISH AND SUPPLY GAS TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC IN THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE 
TRANSPORTING, DELIVERY, SALE, AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, 
OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR ALL PURPOSES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE 
OF THE STREETS, ALLEYS, AND PUBLIC WAYS; REQUIRING 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REGULATORY ORDINANCES OF THE CITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE 
SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF.  

 WHEREAS, Chapter 121 of the Texas Utilities Code authorizes municipalities to 
adopt ordinances that establish conditions for mapping, inventorying, locating, or 
relocating pipelines over, under, along, or across a public street or alley or private 
residential area in the boundaries of the municipality; and 

 WHEREAS,  the City of Rosenberg, Texas (“City’), strives to promote orderly and 
safe development within the territorial limits of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this franchise agreement with SiEnergy, 
L.P., a Texas Limited Partnership, (hereinafter referred to as “SiEnergy” or “the 
Company’) is in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the 
City; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS:  

Section 1. - Grant of authority.  

(a) Subject to the reasonable and timely compliance by SiEnergy with the provisions 
contained herein, the City of Rosenberg, Texas, hereinafter called "city," hereby 
grants to SiEnergy, hereinafter called "company," its successors and assigns, 
consent to use and occupy the present and future public rights-of-way, for the 
purpose of laying, maintaining, constructing, protecting, operating, and replacing 
therein and thereon pipelines and all other appurtenant equipment needed and 
necessary to deliver, transport, and distribute gas in, out of, and through city and to 
sell gas to persons, firms, and corporations, including all the general public, within 
the city corporate limits, as such limits may be amended from time to time during the 
term of this ordinance.  

(b) This franchise is granted for a term of ten (10) years from and after the effective date 
of this Ordinance.  

(c) This franchise covers the geographical area of the entire corporate limits of the City 
of Rosenberg, Texas. The company agrees that the corporate limits are subject to 
expansion or reduction by annexation and contraction of municipal boundaries and 
that the company has no vested right in a specific area. The company hereby agrees 
to provide service to any and all areas that may be annexed to the city under the 



Page 2 of 13 

 

same terms and conditions of this agreement as the current areas now covered by 
this agreement. If the city approves any corporate limits expansion or reduction by 
annexation or contraction, the city will provide written notice to the company. The 
company must revise its payments due to any expansion or reduction by annexation 
or contraction within a reasonable time after notice by the city, but no later than sixty 
(60) days after receipt of notice.  

(d) This franchise is granted subject to and in accordance with Article XII – Franchises 
and Public Utilities, Sections 12.01-12.10 as provided in the City Charter.  

Section 2. - Definitions.  

For the purposes of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases, words, and their 
derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 
words in the present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the 
singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 
"shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory.  

(a) "Gross revenues" means: 

i. All revenues charged by company for the sale of gas, including compressed 
gas, within the city to all customers within city;  

ii. All revenues charged by company for the transportation of gas through the 
pipeline system of company within the city to customers within the city 
regardless of the origination of the gas within the company's system of lines; 
and  

iii. The total cost of gas transported by company for transport customers through 
the pipeline system of company within city.  

Gross revenues shall not be reduced by bad debts, unless and until such debts are 
actually charged off. Abandoned deposits shall be applied as an offset to bad debts 
for purposes of this agreement. No revenues shall be excluded from gross revenues 
unless such revenues are specifically excluded by this agreement.  

(b) "Public right-of-way" means all of the public streets, alleys, highways, bridges, 
easements, drainage ways, and sidewalks of the city, as they now exist or may be 
hereafter constructed, opened, laid out or extended within the present limits of the 
city, or in such territory as may hereafter be added to, consolidated or annexed to the 
city.  

(c) "Transport customer" means any person or entity for whom company transports gas 
through the pipeline system of company within the city to consumers.  

Section 3. - Conditions of occupancy.  

(a) All activities of company in the public rights-of-way shall conform with all the 
applicable city codes and ordinances, as amended, with city infrastructure standards 
for design, construction and repair, as amended, and with all other city regulatory 
requirements as such may be adopted and amended from time to time, including but 
not limited to requirements regarding the acquisition of permits and the payment of 
fees therefor. Except in emergencies, before company shall be authorized or required 



Page 3 of 13 

 

to extend, repair, or relay its existing gas mains or street service lines, it shall file with 
the director of public works a written statement showing the nature and character of 
the extensions to be made, obtain a permit for such work, and pay the required permit 
fees; provided however, company may make emergency repairs and replacements 
without prior filing with the director of public works but it shall file a written statement 
promptly thereafter. In addition, the company shall assess and report on the impact 
of its proposed construction on the city environment. Such plans and reports may be 
reviewed by the city to ensure that, among other items, (i) aesthetic and good 
planning principles have been given due consideration, (ii) adverse impact on the 
environment has been minimized, and (iii) that all applicable laws, including building 
and zoning codes, as applicable and air and water pollution regulations, are complied 
with. Reasonable changes suggested by the city shall be incorporated into the 
company's plans.  

(b) The company shall, upon the written request of the City, relocate its facilities situated 
within any street, sidewalks, drainage ways, and alleys, at no expense to the City, 
where reasonable and necessary to accommodate street construction or widening or 
other city improvement projects.  When the company is required by city to remove or 
relocate its mains, laterals, and other facilities to accommodate construction of 
streets, sidewalks, drainage ways, and alleys by city, and company is eligible under 
federal, state, county, local or other programs for reimbursement of costs and 
expenses incurred by company as a result of such removal or relocation, and such 
reimbursement is required to be handled through city, company costs and expenses 
shall be included in any application by city for reimbursement, if company submits its 
cost and expense documentation to city prior to the filing of the application. City shall 
provide reasonable notice to company of the deadline for company to submit 
documentation of the costs and expenses of such relocation to city. If the company 
is required by city to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, or other facilities for any 
reason other than the construction of streets, alleys, drainage ways, and public 
infrastructure associated therewith by city, company shall be entitled to 
reimbursement from others of the cost and expense of such removal or relocation.   

(c) If city abandons any public right-of-way in which company has facilities, when 
feasible, company shall have the right to maintain its use of the former public right-
of-way upon conditions to be determined by the city.  

(d) The company shall at all times keep on file with the city a current map or set of maps 
of the company's facilities within the city. Such maps shall indicate subdivision 
locations and locations of company's customers. As extensions or modifications of 
facilities are made from time to time, the company shall file with the city maps or plans 
showing those extensions or modifications so that the city will at all times have current 
and accurate maps and plans of the company's facilities. In addition to showing the 
location of company's facilities and customers, such maps shall also identify the depth 
and size of any buried facilities, as well as the type of cover overlaying those facilities. 
The company shall furnish the city "as built" drawings not later than sixty (60) days 
after construction has been completed. Drawings shall be drawn to a scale of one 
inch (1") equals one hundred feet (100') using the standard format adopted by the 
city. State plane coordinates shall be shown for benchmarks, curb lines, and 
structures. The company shall provide one (1) set of blue or black line "as built" 



Page 4 of 13 

 

drawings to the city and one (1) set of the maps on computer diskettes with G.I.S. 
data in an electronic/digital format designated by the city.  

(e) The company shall provide, on a quarterly basis and at the same time that the 
quarterly payments and reports required in section 9 are submitted, a comprehensive 
listing of its customers on a subdivision basis. The location information shall also be 
shown on either a map or a subdivision plat, and may be combined with the maps 
required in paragraph 3(d) above. Company shall further cooperate with city in 
determining the correct jurisdictional coding of all of company's customers in the city 
and its environs.  

(f) The company agrees to provide, at its cost, information requested by the city to assist 
in a determination of any changes in conditions, practices, or services provided by 
the company through the use of the public rights-of-way.  

Section 4. - Regulations for service.  

(a) In addition to the rates charged for gas supplied, company may make and enforce 
reasonable charges, rules and regulations for service rendered in the conduct of its 
business, including a charge for services rendered in the inauguration of natural gas 
service, and may require, before furnishing service, the execution of a contract for 
such service. All charges, rules, and regulations of company involving any consumer 
of gas within the city shall be subject to regulation, supervision, and approval by the 
city, as appropriate.  

(b) Company shall have the right to contract with each customer with reference to the 
installation of, and payment for, any and all of the gas piping from the connection 
thereof with the company's main in the public rights-of-way to and throughout the 
customer's premises.  

(c) Company shall own, operate and maintain all service lines, which are defined as the 
supply lines extending from the company's main to the customer's meter where gas 
is measured by company. The customer shall own, operate, and maintain all yard 
lines and house piping. Yard lines are defined as the supply lines extending from the 
point of connection with company's customer meter to the point of connection with 
customer's house piping.  

Section 5. - Main extension.  

Company shall be required at its own expense to extend distribution mains in any 
public rights-of-way up to one hundred (100) feet to a residential customer. Company 
shall not be required to extend transmission mains in any public rights-of-way within city 
or to make a tap on any transmission main within city unless company agrees to such 
extension by a written agreement between company and a customer.  

Section 6. - Deposits.  

Company shall be entitled to require each and every customer of gas, before gas 
service is commenced or reinstated, to satisfactorily establish credit pursuant to the 
company's quality of service rules as may be in effect during the term of this franchise. 
Said deposit shall be retained and refunded in accordance with such quality of service 



Page 5 of 13 

 

rules and shall bear interest, as provided in Chapter 183, Texas Utilities Code, as such 
may be amended from time to time. Upon termination of service, company shall be 
entitled to apply said deposit, with accrued interest, to any indebtedness owed Company 
by the customer making the deposit.  

Section 7. - Indemnity.  

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE GRANTING OF THIS FRANCHISE, COMPANY 
AGREES THAT CITY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR, AND 
COMPANY DOES HEREBY RELEASE, AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS CITY FROM AND AGAINST ALL SUITS, ACTIONS, OR CLAIMS OF 
INJURY TO ANY PERSON OR PERSONS, OR DAMAGES TO ANY PROPERTY 
BROUGHT OR MADE FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY DEATH, INJURIES TO, OR 
DAMAGES RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR FOR 
DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF, OR OCCASIONED BY 
THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, OR MAINTENANCE OF THE GAS 
DISTRIBUTION PLANT OR SYSTEM OF COMPANY, EXCEPT THAT THIS 
INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY 
SITUATION WHEREIN CITY IS SOLELY LIABLE FOR THE ACTIONS, SUITS, OR 
CLAIMS OF INJURY OR DAMAGE BROUGHT AGAINST IT. IN THE EVENT THAT 
ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT AGAINST CITY UPON ANY 
LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATIONS, OR 
MAINTENANCE OF THE COMPANY'S FACILITIES, CITY SHALL GIVE NOTICE IN 
WRITING TO COMPANY BY REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL. UPON RECEIPT 
OF SUCH NOTICE, THE COMPANY, AT ITS OWN EXPENSE, SHALL DEFEND SUCH 
ACTION AND TAKE ALL SUCH STEPS AS MAY BE NECESSARY OR PROPER TO 
PREVENT THE OBTAINING OF A JUDGMENT AGAINST THE CITY AND/OR TO 
SATISFY SAID JUDGMENT. CITY AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH COMPANY IN 
CONNECTION WITH SUCH DEFENSE.  

Section 8. - Non-exclusive.  

(a) The rights, privileges, and franchise granted by this ordinance are not to be 
considered exclusive, and city hereby expressly reserves the right to grant, at any 
time, like privileges, rights, and franchises as it may see fit to any other person or 
corporation for the purpose of transporting, delivering, distributing, or selling gas to 
and for city and the inhabitants thereof. City expressly reserves the right to own and/or 
operate its own system for the purpose of transporting, delivering, distributing, or 
selling gas to and for the city and the inhabitants thereof.  

(b) If, on the effective date of this franchise, there is in effect a similar gas franchise 
granted by the city to another company that provides for a franchise fee in a lower 
amount than the amount required to be paid by company herein, then company's 
obligations under section 9 hereof shall be limited to the lower amount contained in 
the other franchise. City shall give company notice on the effective date of such other 
franchise affecting company's obligations under section 9 and of the franchise fee 
required under such other franchise. Company shall thereafter be allowed to calculate 
its franchise fee payments to the city based upon the lower fee required in the other 
franchise.  



Page 6 of 13 

 

(c) If company's required franchise fee is lowered as provided in paragraph (b), above, 
and the city subsequently grants or renews a gas franchise to another company that 
requires a franchise fee in the amount of four (4) percent or greater of the franchisee's 
gross revenues, then company's franchise fee obligations shall be as provided in 
section 9 hereof. City shall give company notice of such subsequent franchise or 
renewal affecting company's obligations under section 9 and of the franchise fee 
required under such subsequent franchise or renewal. Company shall thereafter be 
required to calculate its franchise fee payments to the city based upon the 
requirements of section 9 hereof, beginning with the next full calendar quarter after 
receipt of the notice from the city.  

Section 9. - Compensation.  

(a) In consideration of the right granted by city to company to use and occupy the rights-
of-way in the city for the conduct of its business, company, its successors and 
assigns, agrees to pay to the city franchise fees in the amount and manner described 
herein. Such payments shall be made on a quarterly basis, on or before the twentieth 
(20th) day following the end of each calendar quarter. The franchise fee shall be a 
sum of money which shall be equivalent to four (4) percent of the company's quarterly 
gross revenues.  

(b) For franchise fee payments beginning on the effective date of this ordinance, payment 
shall be made by wire transfer on or before the close of business on the payment due 
date. If any payment due date required herein falls on a weekend or declared bank 
holiday, payment shall be made by wire transfer on or before the close of business of 
the last working day prior to the payment due date. Payment shall be considered 
timely made if company requests the wire transfer by the wire transfer deadline of its 
bank on the payment due date.  

(c) At the time of each quarterly payment, company shall also submit to the city a sworn 
statement showing: (i) its gross revenues for the preceding calendar quarter upon 
which franchise fees are calculated, including the amount of revenues received by 
company for the transportation of gas; (ii) the coded identity of company's transport 
customers during the preceding calendar quarter; and (iii) the cost, volume, and 
transport fee of gas transported during the preceding calendar quarter for such 
transport customers, calculated in accordance with section 9(f) below. Upon request, 
city shall have access at company's office to the actual identity of company's transport 
customers and their suppliers as long as such information shall remain confidential, 
and no copies of such information may be made.  

(d) The aforesaid franchise fee payments shall not affect or reduce the company's 
obligations with respect to the following: (i) to reimburse the city for street repairs; (ii) 
the payment of taxes or fees to the state; or (iii) the payment of general or special ad 
valorem taxes that the city is authorized to levy and impose upon real and personal 
property. None of the aforementioned obligations of the city shall operate as credits 
or reductions to the amounts due by the company to the city hereunder.  

(e) The payments by the company under the provisions of this ordinance are in lieu of 
any and all other and additional street rental charges or fees. However, the company 
is required to obtain all appropriate permits for work in the public rights-of-way and 



Page 7 of 13 

 

pay the appropriate fees therefor. Should city not have the legal power to agree that 
the payment of the franchise fee shall be in lieu of street rental charges, then city 
agrees that it will apply so much of said sums of money paid as may be necessary to 
satisfy company's obligations, if any, to pay such rental charges.  

(f) The cost of gas transported by company for transport customers shall be determined 
as set forth in this paragraph. In the absence of documentary evidence to the contrary 
provided by company to city, the cost of gas so transported shall be presumed to be 
equal to the total volume of gas transported for such transport customer times one 
hundred ten (110) percent of the index of prices for large packages of gas per MMBtu 
published each month in Inside FERC's Gas Market Report in the table titled, 
"Delivered Spot-Gas Prices," for gas delivered at Houston Ship Channel/Beaumont, 
Texas, or a mutually agreeable successor publication and index, for the period of time 
the transportation service is performed. If company submits documents to the city to 
indicate the actual cost of gas transported by company, the company may remove 
therefrom any information that would disclose either the identity of the customer or 
other information deemed confidential by company, so long as such removal does 
not prevent the city from determining the monetary cost of the gas transported. 
Company agrees to give the city, upon request, access to the confidential information 
so removed in order for the city to verify the accuracy of the information provided to 
the city under the provisions of this paragraph. Company shall use all due diligence 
in collecting from transport customers any and all fees required by this franchise 
ordinance, but shall not be responsible for paying the fees to city if company's 
transport customer refuses to pay. Provided, however, that if company's transport 
customer refuses to pay the fee imposed on the cost of gas transported for such 
transport customer, and remains delinquent in payment of such fee for a period of 
greater than thirty (30) days, company shall be responsible for the uncollected fee on 
any gas thereafter transported through the rights-of-way of city to company's 
transport customer, but in no event shall the customer be relieved of its obligation to 
reimburse company for any fees paid to city.  

Section 10. - Accounting; audit; inspection.  

(a) The company shall maintain, at its local office or principal place of business within 
the state, adequate books and records relating to the performance of its obligations 
under this franchise. The company shall maintain separate records in a form sufficient 
to identify its investment, revenues, and expenses related to its performance under 
this franchise, intending thereby to separate the accounting records of its system in 
the city from its other systems. The records of the company applicable to its 
performance under this franchise shall be made available for inspection by the city at 
any time during normal working hours.  

(b) City may cause, upon reasonable notice, an audit to be made of the books and 
records of the company relating to the company's performance under this franchise 
or any portion of any of its other operations that may be allocated or charged to its 
operations in the city. The omission by the city to exercise its rights to any audit at 
any time shall not constitute a waiver of such right. In the event city elects to exercise 
its right of audit, city shall provide to the company written notice of such election at 
least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the time of such audit. City shall retain an 



Page 8 of 13 

 

independent auditor of its selection to perform the audit. The company shall make 
available to the auditor such personnel and records as the city may in its reasonable 
discretion request in order to complete such audit, and shall make no charge to the 
city therefor. The company shall assist the city during any audit conducted under this 
franchise, including answering questions and providing any requested records or 
information within five (5) working days of having received a written request therefor. 
The cost of an audit pursuant to this provision shall be borne by the city, unless the 
audit reveals an underpayment of fees paid during the audit period in excess of three 
(3) percent, in which case the company shall pay for the audit. In the event any 
overpayment is discovered, such overpayment will credit toward current and/or future 
payments owed, without interest. 

(c) Upon request by the city, but no less often than annually, the company will prepare a 
statement of its estimate of the company's gross revenues by revenue account for 
the period covered by the statement signed by an authorized representative of the 
company, in such reasonable form and detail as city may from time to time prescribe, 
sufficient to show the source and method of calculation of the company's gross 
revenues. The acceptance of any statement or payment shall not estop the city from 
asserting that the amount paid is not the amount due or from recovering any deficit, 
including interest, by any lawful proceeding.  

(d) Upon completion of the audit, the city shall make the audit report available to the 
company, and shall give the company an opportunity to respond to the audit findings. 
If requested by either party, the city and the company shall meet and attempt in good 
faith to resolve any disputed issues arising out of the audit report. In the event the 
company shall be determined to have under-remitted the fee required by this 
franchise, the company shall pay, in addition to the underpayments, interest on the 
underpayments at the rate of ten (10) percent per annum from the time of the 
underpayment until payment is made. Underpayment of fees by the company may 
also subject the company to penalties for noncompliance with this franchise. After 
reviewing the company's response to the audit findings, the city shall make an initial 
determination as to whether the company shall also be required to pay a penalty for 
noncompliance. The amount of the penalty, if any, shall not exceed ten (10) percent 
of the total underpayment. The city council shall make the final determination of 
whether a penalty shall be required, and the amount of same.  

(e) If any of the records to be provided by company or to be made available by company 
are considered by the company to be proprietary in nature or if such records are 
confidential under federal, state or local law, upon request by the company such 
information shall be treated by the city as confidential, and shall be made available 
only to those persons who must have access to perform their duties on behalf of the 
city, including but not limited to the finance director, the city attorney, and the council 
members. City shall promptly notify company of any requests for public disclosure of 
such records under Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, and company shall have 
the sole responsibility to assert its claims regarding the proprietary or confidential 
nature of such records.  

Section 11. - Reservation of rights.  



Page 9 of 13 

 

(a) The city reserves to itself the right and power at all times to exercise, in the interest 
of the public and in accordance with state law, regulation and control of company's 
rates and services to insure the rendering of efficient public service at reasonable 
rates, and the maintenance of company's property in good repair throughout the term 
of this franchise. Company shall maintain on file with the city copies of its current 
tariffs, schedules of rates and charges, customer service provisions, and line 
extension policies. Company shall notify the city of the identity of any customer of 
company that changes from a tariffed rate to a contract rate within forty-five (45) days 
of such change.  

(b) In granting this franchise, the city does not in any manner waive its regulatory or other 
rights and powers under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Texas as the same 
may be amended, nor any of its rights and powers under or by virtue of present or 
future ordinances of the city, and it is expressly provided that nothing herein shall 
impair the right of the city to fix, within constitutional and statutory limits, a reasonable 
price to be charged for natural gas, or to provide and fix a scale of prices for natural 
gas, and other charges, to be charged by company to residential consumers, 
commercial consumers, industrial consumers, or to any combination of such 
consumers, within the territorial limits of the city as same now exist or as such limits 
may be extended from time to time hereafter.  

Section 12. - Termination.  

(a) In addition to any rights set out elsewhere in this ordinance, the city reserves the right 
to terminate the franchise and all rights and privileges pertaining thereto, in the event 
that the company violates any material provision of the franchise or the company 
becomes insolvent, or is adjudged as bankrupt.  

(b) Upon failure of the company to comply with the material terms of the franchise, the 
city may by ordinance terminate the franchise in accordance with the procedures set 
forth in this section. Upon termination, all rights of the company shall immediately be 
divested without further act upon the part of the city. If the city requires the company 
to remove its facilities from the public rights-of-way, the company shall forthwith 
remove its structures or property from the public rights-of-way and restore it to the 
approximate original condition. Upon failure to do so, the city may perform the work 
and collect the cost thereof from the company. The cost thereof shall be a lien upon 
all facilities and property of the company.  

(c) Procedures for termination. 

(i) The city shall give written notice to the company of the existence of a material 
violation or failure to comply with the franchise. Company shall have a period of 
thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice from the city in which to cease such 
violation and comply with the terms and provisions hereof. In the event company 
fails to cease such violation or to otherwise comply with the terms hereof, then 
company's franchise is subject to termination under the following provisions. 
Provided, however, that, if the company commences work or other efforts to cure 
such violations within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice and shall 
thereafter prosecute such curative work with reasonable diligence until such 



Page 10 of 13 

 

curative work is completed, then such violations shall cease to exist, and the 
franchise will not be terminated.  

(ii) Termination shall be declared only by a written decision of the city council after 
an appropriate public proceeding whereby the company is afforded the full 
opportunity to be heard and to respond to any such notice of violation or failure 
to comply. The company shall be provided at least ten (10) days prior written 
notice of any public hearing concerning the termination of the franchise. In 
addition, ten (10) day notice by publication shall be given of the date, time and 
place of any public hearing to interested members of the public, which notice shall 
be paid for by the company.  

(iii) The city, after full public hearing, and upon finding a material violation or failure 
to comply, may in its discretion terminate the franchise or excuse the violation or 
failure to comply upon a showing by the company of mitigating circumstances or 
upon a showing of good cause of said violation or failure to comply as may be 
determined by the city council. The failure of the company to comply with the 
terms of this franchise after due notice and hearing and the providing of adequate 
time for company to comply with said terms, shall entitle the city to compel 
compliance by suit in any court of competent jurisdiction and upon culmination of 
the suit, if the company still fails to comply with the terms of the franchise, the city 
may compel compliance upon penalty of forfeiture thereof, with the city having an 
option to purchase company's property located in the city at a reasonable fair 
value should forfeiture occur.  

(d) In the event the city purchases company's property under penalty of forfeiture and 
the city and company cannot agree upon the reasonable fair value of the property, 
then the reasonable fair value of the company's property shall be established by a 
majority vote of three appraisers with one appraiser selected by company, one 
appraiser selected by city, and one appraiser selected by the other two appraisers. If 
the two appraisers are unable to agree upon the third appraiser, then the third 
appraiser shall be selected by order of a court of competent jurisdiction. The company 
further agrees that if for any reason the company fails to pay the franchise fee as 
provided in this franchise within thirty (30) days following written notice from the city 
that company has failed to make such payment, such failure shall be sufficient to 
permit the city to forfeit the franchise without court action.  

Section 13. - Renegotiation.  

(a) Should technological, market-driven, regulatory, or similar changes occur in the 
natural gas industry which create classes or categories of usage different from those 
enumerated in section 1 of this ordinance, or should company alter the means, 
methods, or types of uses of the public rights-of-way in the city, or should the city 
reasonably believe that the franchise fee provision should be amended in order to not 
impair the city's ability to receive an adequate franchise fee pursuant to this 
ordinance, then the city may initiate the renegotiation of the franchise fee provision of 
this ordinance.  

(b) If, during the term of the franchise granted hereunder, the nature of competition in the 
provision of gas utility services in the city changes to the extent that company 



Page 11 of 13 

 

reasonably believes that the franchise fee provisions of this ordinance cause the 
company to be placed at a competitive disadvantage in the conduct of its business 
within the city, then the company may request the renegotiation of the franchise fee 
provisions of this ordinance.  

(c) Should either the city or the company request a change in the franchise fee provision 
of this ordinance, both parties agree to enter into a good faith negotiation. "Good 
faith," for the purpose of this ordinance, shall mean an objective, diligent, timely, and 
responsible discourse on the issue(s) involved and a resolute attempt to settle said 
issue(s). Should, as a result of renegotiation, city and company agree to a change in 
a provision of this ordinance, the change shall become effective upon passage of an 
ordinance by the city in accordance with the City Charter and acceptance of the 
amendment by the company. Both parties agree that passage and acceptance will 
be a mandatory act following negotiation and agreement. Company agrees to provide 
any and all information requested by city to assist in a determination of any changes 
in conditions, practices, or services provided by company through the use of the 
public rights-of-way of the city.  

Section 14. - Regulatory expenses.  

Company agrees that city may, at any time during the term of this franchise, 
employ at the expense of company expert assistance and advice in determining fair, just, 
and reasonable rates to be charged by company to its consumers in the city, and in 
determining the extent to which company is complying with the terms and conditions of 
this ordinance. Company agrees to pay reasonable expenses in connection therewith, or 
reimburse city for the same, which expense company shall be entitled to recover through 
its rates and tariffs.  

Section 15. - Acceptance.  

In order to accept this franchise, company must file its written acceptance of this 
franchise ordinance within forty-five (45) days after its final adoption by the city, in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney’s office. If this franchise ordinance is not accepted by 
company within forty-five (45) days, the franchise ordinance shall be rendered null and 
void.  

Section 16. - Assignment or transfer.  

Company may not assign or transfer this franchise, and the rights granted thereby, 
to any entity without the prior consent and approval of the city given by written resolution, 
which consent and approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

Section 17. Notices. 

Every notice, order, petition, documents or other direction or communication to be 
served upon the City or the Company shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent by 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.  Every such communication to the 
Company shall be sent to: 

 



Page 12 of 13 

 

SiEnergy, L.P. 
June M. Dively, Chief Executive Officer  
3 Lakeway Centre Court, Suite 110 
Lakeway, TX 78734 

Every such communication to the City or the City Council shall be sent to the:  
 

Mayor, City of Rosenberg 
2110 4th Street 
P.O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 

With copies to:  
 
City Manager 
2110 4th Street 
P.O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 

Section 18. Severability. 

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Franchise 
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, void, or invalid or for any reason 
unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions of this Franchise shall not be affected 
thereby, it being the intent the City of Rosenberg, in adopting this Franchise, that no 
portion hereof or provision hereof shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any 
unconstitutionality or invalidity of any other portion, provision or regulation and, to this 
end, all provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 19. Repeal. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance 
becomes effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions 
contained in this Ordinance are hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict.   

Section 20.  Governmental Function. 

All of the regulations and activities required by this Franchise are hereby 
declared to be governmental and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. 

Section 21.  Effective date.  

This franchise shall be effective sixty days after its adoption on its third reading 
within thirty days of its first reading, and further conditional upon receipt by the city of 
company's acceptance, as provided in section 15 herein, and upon all other conditions 
as provided by the City Charter, as applicable. 

  
 



Page 13 of 13 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of six (6) “ayes” in favor and zero (0) “noes” 

against on this first reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 and 

Section 12.03 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the 17th day of March 2015. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of seven (7) “ayes” in favor and zero (0) 

“noes” against on this second reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 

3.10 and Section 12.03 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the 7th day of April 

2015. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this third and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 and Section 12.03 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ 

day of ________________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



 

  Page 1 

Sec. 12.03. - Procedure for passing franchise ordinances.  

The City of Rosenberg shall have the power by ordinance to grant any franchise or right mentioned in 
the preceding sections hereof, which ordinance shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading, 
said ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the city council of the City of Rosenberg, 
the last of which shall take place not less than thirty days from the first. No ordinance granting a franchise 
shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority of the city council, and such ordinance shall not take 
effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final reading; provided, however, that if at any time 
before such ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition shall be presented to the city council signed by not 
less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular municipal election but in no event less than 
one hundred fifty of the bona fide qualified voters of the city, then the city council shall submit the question 
of the granting of said franchise to a vote of the qualified voters of the City of Rosenberg at the next 
succeeding regular municipal election to be held in said city; provided that notice thereof shall be published 
over a period of at least twenty-one days in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of 
Rosenberg, prior to the holding of said election. Ballots shall be used, briefly describing the franchise to be 
voted on and the terms thereof and containing the words, "For the granting of a franchise," and, "Against 
the granting of a franchise." The votes shall be canvassed by the city council, and should it result in a 
majority of those voting thereon casting their votes "For the granting of a franchise," then by order entered 
in its minutes, the city council shall so declare and said franchise shall at once take effect. But should a 
majority of such votes be cast "Against the granting of a franchise," as ascertained by the city council, then 
said city council by order entered in its minutes shall so declare and such franchise shall not take effect. In 
case a franchise is refused by the city council, then the matter may be submitted to the qualified voters on 
petition, as hereinbefore provided, and a failure to finally pass on an application within twelve months after 
the filing of such application, shall be construed as a refusal. The city council in passing an ordinance 
granting a franchise may provide therein that it shall not take effect until the same shall have been submitted 
to and approved by a majority of the qualified voters voting thereon at a regular municipal election. All 
expenses of publication shall be borne by the applicant for the franchise, who shall make a deposit in 
advance to cover the estimated cost of publication, to be determined by the city manager.  

(Ord. No. 60-4, § 21, 9-6-60; Ord. No. 85-8, § 21, 6-18-85)  

sherrin
Rectangle

reneel
Text Box
CITY OF ROSENBERG CODE OF ORDINANCES EXCERPTPART I - THE CHARTERARTICLE XII. - FRANCHISES AND PUBLIC UTILITIES



KMTP
Meter

Station

Century
Asphalt

Plant

£¤90A

öõ529

@A1640

RUBY

WALNUT

D

BLUME

H

BAKER

VERA CRUZ

WA LGER

WE
ST

TEXAS

GULF

DYER

M

G

WI
LL

OW

ELM

H

OA
K

REINHARD

BAMORE

WILBURN

M

DYE R

L

J

JAMES

K

I

DALLAS

L

ALLEN

GEORGE

FROST

ALLEN
JAM E S

ALLEN

FROST
WEST

CANDLER

SAN
ANTONIO

JUNCTION
SANTA

FE
HARRISBURG

DAM ASCUS

E

MOORE BAR

KROESCHE

MATAMOROS

H

VERA CRUZ

BLACKWOOD

PRAIRIE

RUDE

EASY
MATAMOROS

JEFFERSON

WASHINGTON

HUNTINGTON

GRUNWALD
HEIGHTS

MEBANE

BROOKS

MAGNOLIA
SOUTHGATE

KLARE

36TH DIVISIONMEMORIAL HWY

SCOTT

WA
LS

H

JUNKER

MUEGGE

CE
CI

L
RO

BI
NO

W
IT

Z

¬«36

1 Inch = 1,200 Feet

1:14,400

SíEnergy Gas Distribution Pipeline
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 600 1,200
Feet

Pipeline
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway/FM
Public Road
Private Road
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Cory Vardaman
Date Created: March 09, 2015
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Utilities\2015\SiEnergy_Pipeline_11x17_2015Mar09.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW

The pipeline location depicted is based off GIS data from the
Railroad Commission of Texas (RRC).  The data has been
cross checked with information provided by SiEnergy to

insure that it shows the approximate location and layout of
the pipeline (appropriate to the map scale).



PAGE 7 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 7, 2015 

***DRAFT*** 

Action:  Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve the draft 
correspondence in support of House Bill No. 4126, creating MUD No. 218.  The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote. 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10, AN 
ORDINANCE GRANTING TO SIENERGY, L.P., A FRANCHISE TO FURNISH AND SUPPLY GAS TO THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE TRANSPORTING, 
DELIVERY, SALE, AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR ALL 
PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE OF THE STREETS, 
ALLEYS, AND PUBLIC WAYS; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REGULATORY ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY; AND PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF.  
Executive Summary: It was recently determined that SiEnergy, L.P., is providing natural gas service 
to areas that are now located within a portion of the Rosenberg City Limits. Therefore, SiEnergy, 
L.P., is required to obtain a franchise agreement from the City. In accordance with Article XII of the 
City Charter, the City Attorney has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-10 which will grant said franchise 
to furnish and supply gas to the general public. 

Article XII, Section 12.03 of the City Charter identifies specific procedures for approval of franchise 
ordinances which are summarized below: 

� Ordinances shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading 
� Ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the City Council, the last of 

which shall take place not less than thirty days from the first 
� No ordinance granting a franchise shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority 

of the City Council 
� Ordinances shall not take effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final 

reading
� Any time before the ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition can be presented to the 

City Council signed by not less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular 
municipal election, but in no event less than one hundred fifty bona fide qualified voters, 
requiring the City Council submit the question of granting said franchise to a vote of the 
qualified voters of the City 

SiEnergy, L.P., has reviewed the Ordinance and has no objections to any of the terms.  City 
Council considered and approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10 at the March 17, 
2015 Regular Meeting.  Staff recommends approval of this second reading of Ordinance No. 
2015-10 as presented.

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive 
Summary.

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve the second 
reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish 
and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, for the 
transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through said Municipality for all 
purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, alleys, and 
public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing for all 
other provisions related to the subject matter hereof.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1945, A RESOLUTION AWARDING BID NO. 
2015-08 FOR TREE TRIMMING SERVICES; AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACT RELATED THERETO 
AND/OR ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION REGARDING SAME.  
Executive Summary: On Wednesday, March 18, 2015, bids were received and opened for Bid No. 
2015-08 for the Tree Trimming Services Contract in Council District No. 4.  The City received three 
(3) bids, the lowest from Bio Landscape and Maintenance, Inc., in the amount of $19,250.00.  The 
prices that Bio Landscape and Maintenance, Inc., submitted were compared to previous tree 
trimming done by various vendors for the City and found to be favorable.  References were 

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Resolution No. R-1955 - Denial of CenterPoint Entex Rate Increase 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1955, a Resolution finding that CenterPoint Energy 
Entex’s (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) Statement of Intent to Increase Rates filing within the City should be 
denied; finding that the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the Company; finding 
that the meeting at which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; and requiring 
notice of this Resolution to the Company and legal counsel. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A   

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1955 
2. Brocato Correspondence – 03-31-15 
3. Notice of CenterPoint Rate Increase – 03-27-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On March 27, 2015, CenterPoint Energy Texas Gas (“CenterPoint”) filed a Statement of Intent to Change 
Rates in its Texas Coast Division with each of the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”) with original 
jurisdiction.  In the filing, the CenterPoint asserts that it is entitled to a $6.77 million increase or an 11.3% 
increase in base revenues.  

In late March, the GCCC engaged the services of a consultant, Mr. Karl Nalepa, to review CenterPoint’s 
filing.  Mr. Nalepa will review the filing and identify adjustments that should be made to CenterPoint’s 
request. The GCCC is recommending that the cities deny the requested relief.   
 
The City of Rosenberg must deny the application by April 30, 2015, or the rate increase requested by 
CenterPoint will become effective on May 1, 2015.  Accordingly, GCCC’s legal counsel is requesting that 
each GCCC city adopt a resolution to deny CenterPoint’s request for a rate increase. If the Resolution is 
adopted, CenterPoint will have thirty (30) days to appeal the decision to the Railroad Commission where 
the appeal will be considered with CenterPoint’s filing for the environs and those cities that have 
relinquished their original jurisdiction currently pending at the Commission. 

Resolution No. R-1955 has been included to allow City Council the opportunity to deny CenterPoint’s 
request for a rate increase. 
 



  

 1

RESOLUTION NO. R-1955 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, FINDING 
THAT CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX’S (“CENTERPOINT” OR 
“COMPANY”) STATEMENT OF INTENT TO INCREASE RATES FILING 
WITHIN THE CITY SHOULD BE DENIED; FINDING THAT THE CITY’S 
REASONABLE RATE CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE REIMBURSED BY 
THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS 
RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED 
BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 
COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL. 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (“City”), is a gas utility customer of 

CenterPoint Energy Entex, Texas Coast Division (“CenterPoint” or “Company”), and a 
regulatory authority with an interest in the rates and charges of CenterPoint; and, 

     
 WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”) 
(such participating cities are referred to herein as “GCCC”), a coalition of similarly 
situated cities served by CenterPoint that have joined together to efficiently and cost 
effectively review and respond to natural gas issues affecting rates charged in the 
CenterPoint’s Texas Coast Division service area; and,  

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 27, 2015, CenterPoint filed with the City a 

Statement of Intent to Increase Rates seeking to increase natural gas rates by $6.77 
million annually and to all customers residing in the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, GCCC is coordinating its review of CenterPoint’s Statement of Intent 

filing and designated attorneys and consultants to resolve issues in the Company’s 
filing; and,  

 
WHEREAS, through review of the application, GCCC’s consultant determined 

that CenterPoint’s existing rates are excessive; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the GCCC’s members and attorneys recommend that GCCC 
members deny the Statement of Intent; now, therefore, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the rates proposed by CenterPoint to be recovered through its 

gas rates charged to customers located within the City Limits, are hereby found to be 

unreasonable and shall be denied.   

 



  

 2

Section 2. That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to 

customers within the City. 

 

Section 3. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed 

in full by CenterPoint within 30 days of the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public 

notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 

Section 5.   That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to CenterPoint and to 

Thomas Brocato, General Counsel to the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities, at Lloyd 

Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., P.O. Box 1725, Austin, Texas 78767-1725. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

       
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary   Cynthia McConathy, MAYOR PRO TEM 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Scott Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 

 

  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Telephone: (512) 322-5800 
Facsimile: (512) 472-0532 

www.lglawfirm.com 

Mr. Brocato's Direct Line:   (512) 322-5857 
Email:  tbrocato@lglawfirm.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO:  Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (CenterPoint Gas Texas Coast Division) 
 
FROM: Thomas Brocato 
 
DATE:  March 31, 2015 
 
RE:  CenterPoint Energy Gas – Texas Coast Division Statement of Intent Filing 
 

CITY ACTION REQUIRED NO LATER THAN APRIL 30 
 

On March 27, 2015, CenterPoint Energy Gas (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) filed a 
Statement of Intent to Change Rates in its Texas Coast Division with each of the Gulf Coast 
Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”) with original jurisdiction.  In the filing, the Company asserts that it 
is entitled to a $6.77 million increase or an 11.3% increase in base revenues. 

 In late March, the GCCC engaged the services of a consultant, Mr. Karl Nalepa, to 
review the Company’s filing.  Mr. Nalepa will review the filing and identify adjustments that 
should be made to the Company’s request. We are recommending that the Cities deny the 
requested relief.   
 
 Unless Cities deny the application by April 30, 2015, the rate increase requested by 
CenterPoint will become effective on May 1, 2015.  Accordingly, we request that each city 
schedule the draft resolution attached to this memorandum for consideration at their next 
council meeting.   
 
 If you have any concerns or question please do not hesitate to contact me at (512) 322-
5857.  We appreciate your continued support.   
 
 
  
 
 
 

 































































CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Resolution No. R-1959 - Denial of CenterPoint Electric Rate Increase 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1959, a Resolution finding that CenterPoint Energy 
Houston Electric, LLC’s (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) application for approval of a Distribution Cost 
Recovery Factor to increase distribution rates within the City should be denied; finding that the City’s 
reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the Company; finding that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; and requiring notice of this Resolution to 
the Company and legal counsel. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A   

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1959 
2. Brocato/Brewster Correspondence – 04-06-15 
3. Notice of CenterPoint Rate Increase – 04-06-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 06, 2015, CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) filed 
Application for Approval of a Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (DCRF) with each of the Gulf Coast 
Coalition of Cities (GCCC) that has retained jurisdiction over CenterPoint’s rates. In the filing, CenterPoint 
asserts that it is entitled to a $16,704,985 increase in distribution revenues. 

GCCC has engaged the services of a consultant, Mr. Karl Nalepa, to review CenterPoint’s filing.  Mr. 
Nalepa will review the filing and identify adjustments that should be made to CenterPoint’s request. The 
GCCC is recommending that the Cities deny the requested relief.   
 
The City of Rosenberg must deny the application by June 05, 2015, or the rate increase requested by 
CenterPoint will become effective.  Accordingly, GCCC’s legal counsel is requesting that each GCCC city 
adopt the Resolution to deny CenterPoint’s request for a rate increase. If the Resolution is adopted, 
CenterPoint will have thirty (30) days to appeal the decision to the Public Utility Commission where the 
appeal will be consolidated with CenterPoint’s filing for the environs and those cities that have relinquished 
their original jurisdiction currently pending at the Commission.  
 
Resolution No. R-1959 has been included to allow City Council the opportunity to deny CenterPoint’s 
request for a rate increase. 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1959 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, FINDING THAT CENTERPOINT ENERGY 
HOUSTON ELECTRIC, LLC’S (“CENTERPOINT” OR “COMPANY”) 
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF A DISTRIBUTION COST 
RECOVERY FACTOR TO INCREASE DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN 
THE CITY SHOULD BE DENIED; FINDING THAT THE CITY’S 
REASONABLE RATE CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE REIMBURSED BY 
THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS 
RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED 
BY LAW; AND REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 
COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (“City”) is an electric utility customer of 

CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC (“CenterPoint” or “Company”), and a 
regulatory authority with an interest in the rates and charges of CenterPoint; and, 

     
 WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”) 
(such participating cities are referred to herein as “GCCC”), a coalition of similarly 
situated cities served by CenterPoint that have joined together to efficiently and cost 
effectively review and respond to electric issues affecting rates charged in the 
CenterPoint’s service area; and,  

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 6, 2015, CenterPoint filed with the City Application 

for Approval of a Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”) seeking to increase 
electric distribution rates by $16,704,985 annually; and,  

 
WHEREAS, all electric utility customers residing in the City will be impacted by 

this ratemaking proceeding if it is granted; and,  
 
WHEREAS, GCCC is coordinating its review of CenterPoint’s DCRF filing with 

designated attorneys and consultants to resolve issues in the Company’s application; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS, the GCCC’s members and attorneys recommend that GCCC 

members deny the DCRF; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That the rates proposed by CenterPoint to be recovered through its 

DCRF charged to customers located within the City limits, are hereby found to be 

unreasonable and shall be denied.   



  

2 
 

Section 2. That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to 

customers within the City. 

 

Section 3. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed 

in full by CenterPoint within 30 days of the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public 

notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 

Section 5.  That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to CenterPoint and to 

Thomas Brocato, General Counsel to the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities, at Lloyd 

Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., P.O. Box 1725, Austin, Texas 78767-1725. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND RESOLVED this ______ day of ________________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________________ 
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde and Zech, P.C.       

 

  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Telephone: (512) 322-5800 
Facsimile: (512) 472-0532 

www.lglawfirm.com 

Mr. Brocato's Direct Line:   (512) 322-5857 
Email:  tbrocato@lglawfirm.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO:  Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (CenterPoint Electric) 
FROM: Thomas Brocato 
  Chris Brewster 
DATE:  April 6, 2015 
RE:  CenterPoint Energy – Distribution Cost Recovery Factor filing 
 

CITY ACTION REQUIRED NO LATER THAN JUNE 5                            
 

On April 6, 2015, CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC (“CenterPoint” or 
“Company”) filed Application for Approval of a Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”) 
with each of the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (“GCCC”) that has retained jurisdiction over 
CenterPoint’s rates.  In the filing, the Company asserts that it is entitled to a $16,704,985 
increase in distribution revenues. 

 GCCC has engaged the services of a consultant, Mr. Karl Nalepa, to review the 
Company’s filing.  Mr. Nalepa will review the filing and identify adjustments that should be 
made to the Company’s request. We are recommending that the Cities deny the requested relief.   
 
 Unless Cities deny the application by June 5, 2015 the rate increase requested by 
CenterPoint will become effective.  Accordingly, we request that each city schedule the draft 
resolution attached to this memorandum for consideration at their next council meeting.   
 
 If you have any concerns or question please do not hesitate to contact me at (512) 322-
5857.  We appreciate your continued support.   
 
 
  
 
 
 



• CenIetPrJlnt. Energy 

Mayor and Cit)' COllncil Members 
City of Rosenberg 
Rosenberg, TexIS 

April 6, 20l S 

""""'" ..." 
PO. Bu 1100 
liM.."., IX ms1-11OO 

Rc: Application of CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC for Approval of a 
Distribution Cost Recovery Factor 

Mayor and City Council MembeJ'$: 

CenterPoint Energy Houston Electric, LLC ("CenterPoint Houston" or the '·Company") 
files this Application for Approval of. Distribution Cost Recovery Factor ("OCRF') pursuant to 
Section 36.210 ohhe Public Uli lity Regulatory Act ("PURA") and Substantive Rule 25.243 and 
asks thai its regulatory authorities, which include your city and the Publ ic Utility Commission of 
Tens ("Commission" approve CenterPoint Houston's proposed Rider OCRF. The Company's 
propo$Cd effective dale for TlItes under RJder DCRF is Seplcmber 1,2015. 

CenlerPoint Houston is filing Ihis Application simultaneously with the Commission and 
III municipal authorities that have retained jurisdiction over CenterPoint Houston's rates. As 
explained in the accompanying DCRf filing package, this is CenterPoint Houston's first DCRf 
fi ling. 1bc Company's requested DCRf takes into account changes in the Company's net 
distribution system inYe$led capital from the period January 1,2010 through December 31,2014. 
If the DCRf requested in this Application is approved.. CenterPoint Houston's distribution 
revenues will inclUSC by approximately $16,704,985 on an aMual basis as compam:lto the 
distribution revenues approved in iu I1'I05t recent rate ease, Docket No. 38339. 

Municipal itie$ that have not ceded thei r j urisdiction to the Commission have exclusive 
orilinal jurisdiction over this fi ling, as it atreeu service within their municipal boundaries. This 
jurisdiction extends for 60 days from the date of this fi ling. Pursuanl lO Commission Substantive 
Rule 25.243(c)(J)(8). on the 6fP day after the fil ing of this Application with the city, the 
Application is deemed appealed 10 the Commi!lSion, rcgan:lJess of whether !he city approves or 
denies the application, and the appeal will be consolidated with the CenterPoint Houston's 
DCRF proceeding before the Commission. 

If you desire any additional information conecming this filing, please contact Denise 
Gaw at (7 13) 207·5956. 

Very truly YOUi'S, 

Ke ith L. Wall 
Direc tor o f RcgulatOfy Affairs 

Enclosures 



Mayor IJ1d City Council Members 
April 6, 20 15 
Page 2 

DEUVERED TO: 

NAME 

the City of Rosenberg on this t? 

• ~Of 

day of Apri120LS. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 
Resolution No. R-1956 – Commercial Load Management Standard Offer 
Program with CenterPoint Energy 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1956, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Commercial Load Management SOP Agreement, by and between 
the City and CenterPoint Energy Service Company, LLC, for the Commercial Load Management Standard 
Offer Program. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1956 
2. Resolution No. R-1317 – 05-17-11 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 05-17-11 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As part of the 2009 Siemens Energy Efficiency Project, CenterPoint Energy (CenterPoint) installed load 
management metering equipment at Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2, located at 3650 N. Fairgrounds 
Road allowing the City to participate in the Commercial Load Management Standard Offer Program 
(Program). On May 17, 2011, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1317, authorizing the City Manager 
to execute the initial Agreement to participate in the Program. CenterPoint Energy is now requiring the 
approval of a new Agreement for Program years 2015 – 2020.  
 
As in previous years, the Program only applies to the hours of 1:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m., excluding weekends 
and Federal Holidays, during the months of June, July, August, and September. CenterPoint is limited to a 
maximum of four (4) unscheduled curtailments during the summer peak demand hours mentioned above 
and must provide a minimum of thirty (30) minutes notice before the curtailment start time.  During the 
curtailment period, the City can fully operate Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 using standby generator 
power. 
 
A copy of the Agreement is attached to Resolution No. R-1956 as Exhibit “A” for review.  The base 
Contract is for a five (5) year term beginning in 2015, and ending in 2020.  However, the Program operates 
on a year to year basis and the City will have to submit the load curtailment nomination to CenterPoint 



along with an application annually for the duration of the Agreement term. By participating, the City has 
received the following cash incentives from CenterPoint Energy: 
2010 -   $9,591.20 
2011 - $11,720.00 
2012 - $12,760.00 
2013 - $11,544.06 
2014 – $ 0.00 (Rosenberg application was not selected by CenterPoint to participate.) 
 
The City has again applied for the 2015 Program and has been accepted by CenterPoint. Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1956, authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on 
behalf of the City, an Agreement, by and between the City and CenterPoint Energy Service Company, 
LLC, for the Commercial Load Management Standard Offer Program.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1956 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A COMMERCIAL LOAD MANAGEMENT SOP AGREEMENT, 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND 
CENTERPOINT ENERGY SERVICE COMPANY, LLC, FOR THE 
COMMERCIAL LOAD MANAGEMENT STANDARD OFFER PROGRAM. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Commercial 

Load Management SOP Agreement (Agreement) regarding the Commercial Load 

Management Standard Offer Program, by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, 

and CenterPoint Energy Service Company, LLC. 

Section 2. A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary   Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 



PAGE 1 OF 1 
 

COMMERCIAL LOAD MANAGEMENT SOP 

AGREEMENT 
 

Participant/Contractor Name:  City of Rosenberg 

 

Address:  2110 4
th

 Street, Rosenberg, TX  77471 

 

Effective Date:  February 9, 2015 

 

Valid End Date:  February 8, 2020 

 

For and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein, CenterPoint 

Energy Service Company, LLC, on behalf of itself and its parent company, CenterPoint Energy, 

Inc., and all of its subsidiaries and affiliates, (hereinafter jointly "CenterPoint Energy" or 

"Company") hereby enters into a Contract by and between City of Rosenberg, (Herein after 

"Contractor" or "Vendor") for Miscellaneous services related to the Commercial Load 

Management Standard Offer Program, all in accordance with the current program manual and 

with the following: 

 

Attachment 1: Compensation Schedule 

Attachment 2: Scope of Work 

Attachment 3: Terms and Conditions 

 

NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR 

 

This Contract is issued on a non-exclusive basis. Nothing herein shall limit or otherwise restrict 

CenterPoint Energy from procuring like or similar services from other Contractors. 

 

The Commercial Load Management Standard Offer Program operates on an "annual program 

year" basis. Each Contractor must apply for participation in each program year. CenterPoint 

Energy will notify Contractor if/when specific projects are approved.  Contractors are required to 

reference the Commercial Load Management Program Manual annually for current program 

guidelines and incentives. 

 

THIS CONTRACT IS PLACED SUBJECT TO THE TERMS & CONDITIONS AS 

REFERENCED 
    

Authorized Signature and Date – Vendor   Authorized Signature and Date – Company 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  _______ ___________________________________ 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1956



PAGE 1 OF 4 
 

ATTACHMENT 1  

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

Contractors will be paid based on the procedures outlined in Step Four (Monitoring and 

Verification) and Step Five (Incentive Payments) of the Program Manual, as set forth below. 

CenterPoint Energy will perform the Verification Process after any curtailment (scheduled or 

unscheduled) occurs.  Demand savings and incentive payment amounts will be based on actual, 

verified Curtailable Load reduction. 

Steps of the Verification Process 

Following the billing period(s) during which a curtailment has occurred, the IDR (or Smart 

Meter) data will be accessed by the Load Management program manager or contractor to verify 

actual kW demand reduction during curtailment.  Calculations are based on certain periods on 

the day of the curtailment and the four previous business days.  These periods are: 

1. Baseline: CenterPoint Energy will establish the baseline for each curtailment by using the 

average of a combination of data from five days (the day of curtailment and the four prior 

weekdays), as follows:  

a. On the day of curtailment, the average kW during the one-hour period that begins 1 ½ 

hours before the start of the curtailment.   

b. On the four previous weekdays, the daily averages of the demand recorded throughout 

the same time period as the curtailment.  

c. The average kW demand over all hours during each of these five periods (equally 

weighted by period) shall establish the baseline for each curtailment. 

EXAMPLE: assume a curtailment occurs on Friday, July 10, 2015, from 4:00 to 5:00 p.m. 

(intervals ending at “1615 to 1700 hours”).  The first step in calculating the baseline is to 

average the four 15-minute kW readings between 2:30 p.m. and 3:30 p.m. (intervals ending 

at 1445 to 1530 hours) that day.  Then, the average kW demand during the same time period 

as the curtailment period (in this case, 4:00 to 5:00 p.m., or 1615 to 1700 hours) will be 

computed for each of the previous four weekdays (Monday, July 6 through Thursday, July 

9).  These five periods (2:30-3:30 p.m. the day of curtailment and 4-5 p.m. on the other four 

days) are averaged together to establish the baseline average.  The five periods are treated 

equally in the calculation (e.g., not weighted by the number of hours).   

2. Curtailment Period kW: The average kW throughout the curtailment period is subtracted 

from the Baseline to determine the Demand Savings for that curtailment event. 

3. Demand Savings used to calculate the Incentive Payment (i.e., the Performance Period 

Incentive Payment) will be based on the average Curtailed kW during all curtailments, 

whether Scheduled or Unscheduled.  The Incentive Payment will be derived from the average 



PAGE 2 OF 4 
 

verified Demand Savings of all of the curtailments during the summer peak demand period, 

not to exceed the Contracted kW.
1
 

4. In the event no Unscheduled Curtailments occur, the demand savings used to calculate the 

Performance Period Payment will be the verified demand savings from the yearly Scheduled 

Curtailment, provided however, that CenterPoint expects and intends to call at least two 

Unscheduled Curtailments each year. 

The following representative IDR excerpt demonstrates how the data may appear in the M&V 

calculation (one-hour duration is used as an example only).  

Date           End Time    “kW-qt” (kW per quarter hour) Day of Curtailment Only 

07/12/2013    14:45  1419.1            These four intervals are averaged for “day of curtailment” 
07/12/2013    15:00         1419.9    
07/12/2013    15:15         1406.3   
07/12/2013    15:30         1408.7  (one-hour average: 1413.5 kW) 

07/12/2013    15:45         1397.4  Notice Period:       
07/12/2013    16:00         1343.4  (Not used in calculations) 

07/12/2013    16:15         1108.0  These four intervals are averaged to determine the  
07/12/2013    16:30         1106.7              “Curtailment kW” 
07/12/2013    16:45         1197.1 
07/12/2013    17:00         1120.5   (one-hour average: 1133.1 kW) 

The Curtailment kW average of 1,133 kW remains constant, but the Baseline Period average for 

the day of curtailment is an average of five periods to assure a reasonable baseline level.  The 

“hour and one-half prior” average is used in this computation for the day of curtailment. On the 

four prior business days, the same period as the July 12 Sample Curtailment Period (4 to 5 p.m.) 

is used in the Baseline average. This is done so that weather and schedule-sensitive loads are 

captured as accurately as possible. 

The average kW demand for each of the five days is then averaged to set the baseline, as shown 

below.  The Curtailment kW (the average of the demand during throughout the curtailment 

period) is subtracted from the Baseline kW to determine Demand Savings. When completed, 

these calculations form the basis for the Incentive Payments discussed in Step Five of the Load 

Management Program Manual. 

Day                     Baseline Period KW - Curtailment Day KW      = Verified Demand Savings 

July 10 (curtailment)  1,414 (2:30-3:30 pm)       1,133 (4-5 pm)   

July 9    1,513 (4-5 pm) 

July 8                1,495 (4-5 pm)    

July 7    1,567 (4-5 pm)    

July 6                1,533 (4-5 pm)    

       

CALCULATION:  1,504 (baseline avg)  - 1,133 (curtailment)   =         371 kW Demand Savings 

                                            
1
 THERE IS ONE EXCEPTION TO THIS RULE (SEE “INCENTIVE PAYMENT LIMITATIONS” IN A FOLLOWING SECTION.  



PAGE 3 OF 4 
 

CenterPoint Energy pays Project Sponsors the Incentive Payment in a single lump sum 

installment following the close of the season. The payment will be made as soon after September 

30 as the calculations and payment procedures can be reasonably completed, usually by 

November. 

CenterPoint Energy’s payment of the Incentive Payment to Project Sponsor is expressly 

conditioned upon Project Sponsor’s meeting its obligations, including receipt by CenterPoint 

Energy of all required notices, submittals and materials from Project Sponsor, as well as 

performance.   

Incentive Prices 

The SOP provides standard incentive prices per kW for demand savings each year of 

participation.  These may vary from year to year.  

Incentive Payment Limitations 

To ensure that incentives are available to multiple customers and energy service providers, each 

participating Project Sponsor of CenterPoint will be limited to twenty percent (20%) of the 

annual program goal. Provided that if there are not sufficient Project Sponsor applications to fill 

CenterPoint Energy’s annual demand savings goal, CenterPoint reserves the right to waive this 

limitation.  CenterPoint Energy may require Project Sponsors to verify their affiliate status 

through an affidavit. 

  

CenterPoint Energy will not be obligated to pay a Project Sponsor for verified demand savings 

that exceed the amount of estimated demand savings approved in the Project Sponsor’s 

Application, provided that CenterPoint Energy, at its sole discretion and provided SOP funds are 

available, may revise a Project Sponsor’s estimated contract kW upward and pay a Project 

Sponsor accordingly. The incentive rates are set prior to each application period and are subject 

to changes to PUCT rules or orders. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



PAGE 4 OF 4 
 

Payment Schedule (Scheduled and Unscheduled Curtailments) 

All Verification Process activities for curtailments must be completed before the Contractor will 

receive the Incentive Payment. After successful participation in the scheduled curtailment, 

verification of the IDR data and demand savings, CenterPoint Energy shall pay the Contractor 

the then current Incentive per kW for the average of all Scheduled and Unscheduled 

Curtailments.  Payment will be based upon the verified demand savings using the following 

equation: 

Incentive Payment ($) =                  
Incentive Rate x Average Verified Demand kW Savings for all 

curtailments 

 

Payment Schedule  

CenterPoint Energy will typically make the Performance Period Payment in November, at the 

conclusion of the Performance Period and after CenterPoint Energy’s approval of the IDR data 

for the Agreement year. 

In the event no unscheduled curtailments are performed, the Performance Period Payment will be 

calculated by multiplying the verified kW savings of the Scheduled Curtailment(s) by the 

incentive rate for that Agreement year. 

LIMITATIONS TO THE COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, CenterPoint Energy may, at its sole discretion, 

revise the calculation of the Incentive Payment to allow payment to Contractor for an 

amount of peak demand reduction that exceeds the amount of Estimated Demand Savings 

and is less than or equal to the amount of Demand Savings, as detailed above.  

The sum of the Scheduled Curtailment Payment and Performance Period Payment “Incentive 

Payment” to any Contractor may not exceed 20% of the Incentive Budget for that Project 

year unless CenterPoint Energy has determined it necessary to meet the overall annual 

Demand Savings goal.  CenterPoint Energy’s payment of Incentive Payment(s) to Contractor 

is expressly and specifically conditioned upon CenterPoint Energy receiving all required 

notices, submittals and materials from Contractor within the applicable period specified in 

this Agreement.  Failure by Contractor to deliver any required notice, submittal, or material 

within the applicable period specified in this Agreement shall be deemed a material breach of 

this Agreement.  4. In accordance with the Public Utility Commission of Texas rule, a load-

control standard offer program may not receive incentives under the utility program for the 

same demand reduction for which it is compensated under a demand response program 

conducted by an independent organization, independent system operator, or regional 

transmission operator. 



 

PAGE 1 OF 1 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

1.0 All Work shall be accomplished herein and in accordance with this Scope of Work, the 

Load Management Project Manual, and Contractor’s application, the latter two 

incorporated herein by reference only. 

 

2.0 Contractor shall furnish everything necessary to provide Load Management services to 

CenterPoint Energy and hereby acknowledges that the rates and fees stipulated in the 

Compensation Schedule represent full and complete payment for service rendered, 

including, but not limited to, labor, materials, consumable materials, tools, equipment, 

transportation, parking, supervision, permits and insurance. 

 

3.0 CenterPoint Energy will not withhold from any amounts payable under this Contract 

federal, state, local or other taxes. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to pay or 

withhold, as may be appropriate, all such taxes that shall be required pursuant to any law 

or governmental regulation or ruling. 

 

4.0 Contractor shall not at any time wear, use or display CenterPoint Energy's company name 

including, but not limited to, CenterPoint Energy's logo.



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR  

ENERGY EFFICIENCY STANDARD OFFER PROGRAMS 



 

 PAGE I 

1 DEFINITIONS ......................................................................................................................... 1 

2 PRIORITY, EXHIBITS AND HEADINGS .......................................................................... 3 

2.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS – ORDER OF PRIORITY .................................................................. 3 

2.2 EXHIBITS AND HEADINGS ...................................................................................................... 3 

3 STANDARDS, CODES, LAWS, AND REGULATIONS .................................................... 3 

3.1 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS/CHANGE IN LAWS ....................................................................... 3 

3.2 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE ........................................................... 4 

3.3 NONCOMPLIANCE INDEMNITY ............................................................................................... 4 

4 VENDOR .................................................................................................................................. 5 

4.1 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ................................................................................................. 5 

4.2 SUBCONTRACTOR ................................................................................................................... 6 

4.3 CHARACTER AND SKILL OF PERSONNEL ............................................................................... 6 

4.4 VENDOR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .................................................................. 6 

5 ASSIGNMENT ........................................................................................................................ 7 

6 WORK ...................................................................................................................................... 8 

6.1 GENERAL ................................................................................................................................ 8 

6.2 AUTHORIZATION TO COMMENCE WORK .............................................................................. 8 

6.3 PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE .................................................................................................... 8 

6.4 COMPANY INSPECTION AND TESTING ................................................................................... 8 

7 JOBSITE .................................................................................................................................. 9 

7.1 SAFETY AND HEALTH ............................................................................................................. 9 

7.2 RIGHT OF ENTRY ................................................................................................................. 10 

8 WARRANTY ......................................................................................................................... 10 

8.1 WARRANTY OF WORK ......................................................................................................... 10 

9 INDEMNITY ......................................................................................................................... 10 

9.1 INDEMNIFICATION ................................................................................................................ 10 



 

 PAGE II 

9.2 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION ................................................................... 11 

9.3 INDEMNIFICATION ACTIONS ................................................................................................ 12 

9.4 INDEMNIFICATION SURVIVAL .............................................................................................. 14 

10 TERMINATION .................................................................................................................. 14 

10.1 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE ................................................................................................. 14 

10.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE .................................................................................... 15 

11 FORCE MAJEURE ............................................................................................................ 15 

12 PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION ......................................... 16 

12.1 CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-DISCLOSURE ....................................................................... 16 

13 RECORDS AND AUDITS .................................................................................................. 18 

14 MISCELLANEOUS ............................................................................................................ 18 

14.1 GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; VENUE ........................................................................ 18 

14.2 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES ........................................................................................... 19 

14.3 COUNTERPARTS .................................................................................................................. 19 

14.4 SUPPLIER DIVERSITY ......................................................................................................... 19 

14.5 NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE ...................................................................................... 19 

14.6 PUBLICITY .......................................................................................................................... 20 

14.7 MODIFICATION; NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS ....................................................................... 20 

14.8 SEVERABILITY .................................................................................................................... 20 

14.9 FURTHER ASSURANCES ...................................................................................................... 20 

14.10 COMPLETE AGREEMENT .................................................................................................. 20 



 

PAGE 1 OF 21 
 

1 DEFINITIONS 

1.1.1 Acceptance means the earliest to occur of (i) Company’s final payment of the Contract 

Price to Vendor and (ii) issuance of notice of acceptance from the Contract Administrator 

to Vendor, in each case following satisfactory completion and acceptance of the Work in 

accordance with the requirements of the Contract. 

1.1.2 Affiliate with respect to any Person, means any other Person that directly or indirectly 

controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person, with control in 

such context meaning the ability to direct the management and policies of a Person 

through ownership of voting shares or other equity rights, pursuant to a written agreement 

or otherwise. 

1.1.3 Business Day means Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. local time, 

excluding Company-recognized holidays. 

1.1.4 Company means the Company entity whose name appears on the Contract Cover Sheet. 

1.1.5 Company’s Designated Point of Contact means the Person assigned by Company to 

manage Company’s day-to-day activities under the Contract.  However, such Person shall 

have no authority to amend any term or condition of the Contract. 

1.1.6 Contract means, collectively, the entire agreement between Company and Vendor, and 

includes the Contract Cover Sheet, these Terms and Conditions, any Statement of Work, 

any Contract Amendment, and any other documents, which are by reference made a part 

of the Contract. 

1.1.7 Contract Administrator means Company’s duly authorized agent who shall initiate and 

administer all activities related to Company’s rights and obligations under the Contract.  

Such Person is identified on the Contract Cover Sheet. 

1.1.8 Contract Amendment means a written agreement, which incorporates an addition, 

change or deletion to the Contract that is duly executed by authorized representatives of 

the Parties.  As used herein, the term Contract Amendment shall also include any 

document entitled “Contract Supplement” or “Change Order” and any subsequent 

Contract Cover Sheet. 

1.1.9 Contract Cover Sheet means the Contract document, which sets forth the names of the 

Parties and their authorized agents, the Contract number, and any other mutually agreed-

upon terms and conditions of the Contract, and acts as the signature page to the Contract. 

1.1.10 Contract Price means the total amount payable to Vendor in consideration for the 

performance of the Work. 

1.1.11 Drawings mean, collectively, all drawings, maps, and supplementary drawings and maps 

incorporated into the Contract, which illustrate the Work. 



 

PAGE 2 OF 21 
 

1.1.12 Jobsite means any property, warehouse, building or facility owned, leased or operated by 

Company from time to time, where any of the Work is performed or where Vendor or 

any Vendor Personnel is present for the purposes of performing the Work. 

1.1.13 Party means either Company or Vendor, individually, and Parties means Company and 

Vendor, together. 

1.1.14 Person means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, 

joint venture, association, trust, unincorporated organization, or governmental authority 

or any other entity. 

1.1.15 Purchase Order means a document issued by Company to Vendor, indicating types, 

quantities, and agreed-upon prices for the Work provided to Company by Vendor. 

1.1.16 Specifications means, collectively, any technical and functional requirements, 

descriptions, samples, models, and documentation pertaining to the processes, 

workmanship, products, quantities and qualities of the Work to be furnished under the 

Contract. 

1.1.17 Statement of Work means a formal document that sets forth a detailed description of the 

Work and which may include Vendor’s deliverables, a timeline for performance of the 

Work, and any Drawings, Specifications, or pricing information.  As used herein, the 

term Statement of Work shall also include any document entitled “Scope of Work”. 

1.1.18 Subcontractor means any Person, other than Vendor, that performs any portion of the 

Work (including any subcontractor of any tier, any Affiliates of Vendor that perform any 

of the Work, and any supplier of equipment and materials) in furtherance of Vendor’s 

obligations under the Contract, whether by supplying labor, services, or equipment and 

materials or by performing some other activity. 

1.1.19 Vendor means the Person with whom Company has entered into the Contract for the 

performance of the Work and whose name appears on the Contract Cover Sheet. 

1.1.20 Vendor Personnel means Vendor’s employees, agents, representatives, Subcontractors, 

Subcontractors’ employees, agents or representatives, and anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them performing Work under the Contract. 

1.1.21 Vendor’s Designated Point of Contact means the Person or their designee who is 

assigned by Vendor to manage Vendor’s rights and obligations under the Contract, is 

responsible for Vendor’s day-to-day activities, and has authority to alter or amend any 

term, condition, or provision under the Contract.  Vendor’s Designated Point of Contact 

shall also serve as Vendor’s liaison with Company for day-to-day management of 

Vendor’s activities under the Contract. 

1.1.22 Work means, in whole or in part, the work, services, deliverables, duties and activities to 

be performed by Vendor under the Contract. 

  



 

PAGE 3 OF 21 
 

2 PRIORITY, EXHIBITS AND HEADINGS 

2.1 Contract Documents – Order of Priority 

2.1.1 The documents composing the Contract are intended to be complementary.  What is set 

forth in any one document is binding as if set forth in each document, and it is intended 

that the terms of such documents be read together giving effect to all.  If there is a 

conflict between any documents constituting a part of the Contract, that conflict will be 

resolved in accordance with the following order of precedence, with items higher in the 

list prevailing over items lower in the list: 

Contract Amendment 

Terms and Conditions 

Compensation Schedule 

Statement of Work 

Contract Cover Sheet/Signature Page 

 

2.1.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the irreconcilable provisions pertain to the scope of the 

Work, applicable Specifications or matters of a technical nature to be provided by Vendor 

in connection with the performance of the Work, then the provisions of the Statement of 

Work shall govern, and if the irreconcilable provisions pertain to the rights, duties or 

obligations of the Parties, then the terms and conditions shall govern. 

2.2 Exhibits and Headings 

2.2.1 The section headings and the table of contents used herein are for reference and 

convenience only, and shall not affect the Contract’s construction or interpretation.  Any 

exhibits referred to herein and attached (or to be attached) hereto, are incorporated herein 

by reference to the same extent as if set forth in full herein.  The words “herein”, “hereof” 

and “hereunder” and other words of similar import refer to the Contract as a whole and 

not to any particular section or other subdivision. 

3 STANDARDS, CODES, LAWS, AND REGULATIONS 

3.1 Compliance with Laws/Change in Laws 

3.1.1 Vendor shall, and shall cause each Vendor Personnel to, comply in all respects with all 

applicable laws, rules, regulations, codes and standards of all federal, state, local and 

municipal governmental authorities. 

3.1.2 Vendor shall, and shall cause each Subcontractor to, comply in all respects with all 

applicable labor, employment and immigration statutes, rules, codes, regulations and 

guidelines, including the Immigration and Control Act of 1986 and Form I-9 

Employment Eligibility Verification requirements.  Without limiting the generality of the 

previous sentence, Vendor shall, and shall cause each Subcontractor to, perform all 



 

PAGE 4 OF 21 
 

required employment eligibility and verification checks and maintain all required 

employment records for any employees that will be performing the Work.  Vendor shall, 

and shall cause each Subcontractor to, conduct adequate screening of its employees and 

agents prior to assigning any of those Persons to perform any of the Work.  Vendor 

represents and warrants that (i) it maintains the required employment eligibility 

documentation, which complies with the immigration laws referred to above, and (ii) 

Vendor’s employees are authorized to work in the United States in accordance with all 

such laws. 

3.1.3 In addition, Vendor shall identify the impact of any changes in applicable laws and 

regulations on its ability to deliver the Work.  Vendor shall promptly notify Company of 

such changes and shall work with Company to identify how such changes affect 

Company’s use of the Work.  Company and Vendor shall promptly make any resulting 

modifications to the Work as reasonably necessary because of such changes in applicable 

laws and regulations. 

3.2 Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance 

3.2.1 Vendor represents and warrants that it is in compliance with all applicable laws, 

regulations and orders with respect to equal employment opportunity and, upon 

Company’s request, shall provide to Company any certifications and representations 

regarding equal employment opportunity that Company may require under such laws, 

regulations and orders. 

3.2.2 Vendor and Subcontractors shall comply with the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 

60-300.5(a), and 60-741.5(a).  These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified 

individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and 

prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, or 

national origin.  Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime contractors and 

subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals 

without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or 

disability. 

3.3 Noncompliance Indemnity 

3.3.1 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, VENDOR SHALL 

DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS COMPANY, ITS 

AFFILIATES AND EACH OF THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 

EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS (THE “COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”) 

FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL DAMAGES (“DAMAGES” MEANS THE 

AMOUNT OF ANY ACTUAL LIABILITY, LOSS, COST, EXPENSE, CLAIM, 

AWARD OR JUDGMENT INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY AN INDEMNIFIED 

PERSON ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE INDEMNIFIED 

MATTER, WHETHER ATTRIBUTABLE TO PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, 

PROPERTY DAMAGE, CONTRACT CLAIMS (INCLUDING CONTRACTUAL 

INDEMNITY CLAIMS), TORTS, OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING COSTS OF 

ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNITY AND (I) REASONABLE FEES AND 



 

PAGE 5 OF 21 
 

EXPENSES OF ATTORNEYS, CONSULTANTS, ACCOUNTANTS OR OTHER 

AGENTS AND EXPERTS REASONABLY INCIDENT TO MATTERS 

INDEMNIFIED AGAINST, AND (II) THE COSTS OF INVESTIGATION 

AND/OR MONITORING OF SUCH MATTERS) INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY 

THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES AS A RESULT OF 

NONCOMPLIANCE BY VENDOR OR VENDOR PERSONNEL WITH ANY 

APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT 

OF THEIR PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK, EVEN IF SUCH DAMAGES ARE 

CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SOLE, 

JOINT, CONCURRENT, CONTRIBUTING, OR COMPARATIVE) STRICT 

LIABILITY, OR OTHER LEGAL FAULT OF THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED 

PARTIES. 

3.3.2 THE INDEMNITY PROVISIONS IN THIS SECTION (NONCOMPLIANCE 

INDEMNITY) SHALL SURVIVE ANY TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT. 

4 VENDOR 

4.1 Independent Contractor 

4.1.1 Vendor and all Vendor Personnel are acting as independent contractors unrelated to 

Company or any of its Affiliates.  Nothing in the Contract creates a relationship, express 

or implied, of employer-employee or principal-agent between Company and Vendor or 

any Vendor Personnel. 

4.1.2 Company retains no control or direction over Vendor and Vendor Personnel regarding the 

detail, manner or methods of the performance of the Work by Vendor or Vendor 

Personnel. 

4.1.3 No Vendor Personnel will be entitled to participate in any plans, arrangements, or 

distributions by Company relating to any pension, deferred compensation, bonus, stock 

bonus, hospitalization, insurance, or other benefits extended to Company’s employees.  

Company shall not be required to make employee contributions provided for in Social 

Security or other laws on behalf of Vendor, Vendor Personnel, or their respective 

employees, agents, or consultants.  Company shall not be responsible for withholding 

federal, state, or local income, Social Security, or other taxes from the amounts paid to 

Vendor. 

4.1.4 Vendor shall be fully responsible for all acts and omissions of Vendor Personnel and 

shall be specifically responsible for sufficient and competent supervision and inspection 

to ensure Vendor Personnel’s compliance in every respect with the Contract 

requirements. 

  



 

PAGE 6 OF 21 
 

4.2 Subcontractor 

4.2.1 Vendor shall not enter into a subcontract agreement for performance of the Work without 

Company’s prior consent.  Without limiting the foregoing, Company may require 

submission of such subcontract agreement for Company’s approval prior to award. 

4.2.2 No subcontract shall bind or purport to bind Company.  Vendor shall ensure that all Work 

performed by Subcontractors is pursuant to an appropriate written subcontract agreement 

containing provisions that (a) preserve and protect the rights of Company under the 

Contract and to the Work to be performed under the subcontract agreement, so that the 

subcontracting of the Work will not prejudice those rights; (b) require that the Work be 

performed in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Contract; and (c) require 

the Subcontractor to make reasonably available a representative with whom Company 

may discuss questions regarding the Work being performed by that Subcontractor.  

Vendor shall promptly provide all information requested by Company relating to the 

identity of the Subcontractors and the scope of their services or supply. 

4.3 Character and Skill of Personnel 

4.3.1 Vendor shall employ a sufficient number of qualified Persons so that Vendor may 

complete performance of the Work and Vendor’s obligations under the Contract in an 

efficient, prompt, economical and professional manner.  Vendor represents and warrants 

that all Vendor Personnel who will perform any portion of the Work have received all 

necessary training and possess all licenses and certifications required by law to perform 

the Work. 

4.3.2 Vendor shall supervise, coordinate and direct the performance of the Work in accordance 

with industry standards.  Vendor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order 

among all Vendor Personnel engaged in the performance of the Work and shall not 

employ in the Work any Person not skilled or qualified for the task(s) assigned to them. 

4.4 Vendor Representations and Warranties 

4.4.1 Vendor shall have the sole responsibility for, and hereby represents and warrants that it 

has, by careful examination, satisfied itself concerning the nature and location of Work 

and the general and local conditions of the Jobsite.  Failure of Vendor to acquaint itself 

with any applicable condition will not relieve it from the responsibility for properly 

estimating either the difficulties or costs of successfully performing the Work. 

4.4.2 Vendor further represents and warrants that Vendor’s progress schedule, if applicable, 

and compensation are based on its own knowledge and judgment of the conditions and 

hazards involved, and not upon any representation from Company.  Company assumes no 

responsibility for any understanding or representation made or alleged to have been made 

by any of its representatives, unless such understanding or representation is expressly 

stated in the Contract. 

4.4.3 Vendor shall carefully study and review the Contract prior to commencing any portion of 

the Work, shall carefully review applicable Drawings and Specifications, and shall 



 

PAGE 7 OF 21 
 

promptly notify Company by written notice of any conflict with applicable law or of any 

errors, inconsistencies or omissions it may discover. 

4.4.4 Vendor represents and warrants that it has the full power and authority to execute, deliver 

and perform its obligations under the Contract and to engage in the business it presently 

conducts and contemplates conducting, and is and will be (i) duly licensed or qualified to 

do business and (ii) in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction wherein the Work 

is to be performed. 

4.4.5 Unless otherwise specified, all loss or damage to Vendor arising out of Vendor’s 

performance of the Work in connection with the above-mentioned representations and 

warranties shall be sustained and borne by Vendor at its own cost and expense. 

5 ASSIGNMENT 

5.1.1 Vendor shall not assign any part of its rights or delegate any performance under the 

Contract, voluntarily or involuntarily, whether by merger, consolidation, dissolution, 

operation of law, or any other manner, without Company’s prior written consent.  

Company may withhold consent for any or no reason in its sole and absolute discretion.  

For purposes of the Contract, (a) a “change in control” is deemed an assignment; (b) 

“control” means the power, directly or indirectly, to (i) vote at least fifty percent (50%) of 

the securities that have ordinary voting power for the election of Vendor’s directors or 

managers, or (ii) direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of Vendor 

whether by voting power, contract or otherwise; and (c) “merger” refers to any merger in 

which Vendor participates, regardless of whether it is the surviving or disappearing 

entity. 

5.1.2 No permitted assignment of the Contract or of any duties hereunder shall relieve Vendor 

of any of its obligations hereunder. 

5.1.3 If Company permits Vendor’s assignment of the Contract, the Contract shall be binding 

upon and shall inure to the benefit of the permitted assignee; however, Vendor shall 

provide prompt written notice of such changes or transfers. 

5.1.4 Any purported assignment of rights or delegation of performance in violation of this 

section (Assignment) is void and of no effect. 

5.1.5 Company is entitled to assign its rights or delegate performance under the Contract, in 

whole or in part. 



 

PAGE 8 OF 21 
 

6 WORK 

6.1 General 

6.1.1 Vendor shall, in consideration of the Contract Price payable in accordance with the 

Contract, provide or perform the Work, or cause the Work to be provided or performed, 

in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract. 

6.2 Authorization to Commence Work 

6.2.1 Vendor shall not commence the Work until Company has received a fully executed 

Contract Cover Sheet.  Any Work performed before such time is at Vendor’s sole risk 

and expense. 

6.3 Performance Schedule 

6.3.1 Vendor shall perform the Work to meet the schedule agreed upon by the Parties.  The 

schedule shall be computed by excluding the first calendar day and including the last 

calendar day of said time frame.  If the last calendar day of said time frame is a Sunday or 

Company-recognized holiday, the time frame shall end on the next Business Day. 

6.3.2 Vendor shall be responsible for any damages that Company may incur due to delay in the 

completion of the Work, or delay in the completion of any other obligation of Vendor set 

forth herein, unless excused under the Force Majeure section. 

6.4 Company Inspection and Testing 

6.4.1 Vendor shall deliver the Work as specified in the Contract.  Vendor shall cooperate with 

Company to carry out all tasks necessary for implementation, inspection, and testing of 

the Work. 

6.4.2 Company may perform inspection and testing on the Work until it is satisfied that such 

Work conforms to the Specifications and any other requirements in the Contract.  If 

Company discovers any deficiencies in the Work, Company shall notify Vendor, and 

Vendor, at its own expense, shall modify, repair, adjust or replace the Work within fifteen 

(15) calendar days after the date of Company’s deficiency notice.  Company may perform 

additional inspections and tests on the corrected Work.  If the Work remains deficient, 

Company may reject the Work and repeat the procedure in this paragraph as often as 

necessary or, at its option, terminate all or a portion of the Contract in accordance with 

the provisions of the Termination for Cause section. 

6.4.3 Inspection and testing by Company of any Work does not relieve Vendor from any 

responsibility regarding defects or other failures to meet the Contract requirements. 

  



 

PAGE 9 OF 21 
 

7 JOBSITE 

7.1 Safety and Health 

7.1.1 Vendor Responsibility – Vendor shall be solely responsible for the safety and health of 

Vendor Personnel and other Persons required in the performance of the Work, as well as 

for the protection of the improvements being erected and the property. 

7.1.2 Vendor Precautions – Vendor shall take all precautions necessary to ensure the safety 

and health of all Vendor Personnel in their performance of the Work and any other 

Persons who may be affected thereby.  Vendor shall also provide all protection necessary 

to prevent damage to any Work, materials, and equipment under the care, custody, or 

control of Vendor or Subcontractors. 

7.1.3 Hazardous Materials – When the Work requires the use or storage of explosives or 

other hazardous materials or equipment, Vendor shall exercise a heightened standard of 

care and carry on such activities under the supervision of properly qualified Persons.  

Vendor shall obtain Company’s written consent prior to bringing any explosives or 

hazardous material onto the Jobsite or any other property owned, leased or controlled by 

Company. 

7.1.4 Safety Program – Vendor shall maintain a safety program to ensure a safe workplace 

and compliance with the safety regulations and standards adopted under the Occupational 

Safety and Health Act of 1970 (“OSHA”), as now or hereafter amended and as set forth 

in 29 Code of Federal Regulations Sections 1926 and 1910, together with other 

applicable rules and regulations. 

7.1.5 Safe Work Environment – Vendor and Subcontractors are responsible for providing and 

maintaining a safe working environment on the Jobsite.  Vendor and Subcontractors shall 

implement appropriate measures, including their own alcohol and drug screening 

programs, to ensure a safe working environment. 

7.1.6 Safety Violations – If Company verbally notifies Vendor of Vendor’s violations of 

OSHA requirements, Company safety and health programs or Vendor’s individual safety 

or health programs, Vendor shall immediately take corrective action.  If Vendor does not 

respond appropriately and immediately, Company may issue a written notice to Vendor, 

requiring the suspension of Work until the noncompliance is corrected.  IN 

SITUATIONS WHERE THERE IS IMMINENT DANGER, WORK SHALL BE 

SUSPENDED IMMEDIATELY. 

7.1.7 Safety Training – Vendor shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with all 

applicable sections of the National Fire Codes, Occupational Safety and Health Standards 

for the Construction Industry (29 CFR 1926), and 29 CFR 1910, General Industry Safety 

and Health Standard applicable to the Work, any state or local laws or codes and any 

additional requirements imposed by Company.  Vendor shall maintain documents or 

records verifying all the required qualifications and certifications of Vendor Personnel 

assigned to perform the Work. 



 

PAGE 10 OF 21 
 

7.2 Right of Entry 

7.2.1 Company reserves the right to authorize its agents or designees to enter Vendor’s work 

area or any other portion of the Jobsite for any purpose.  Vendor understands and agrees 

that representatives of any governmental authority may enter the Jobsite at any time.  

Vendor waives any right to additional compensation caused by such entry. 

8 WARRANTY 

8.1 Warranty of Work 

8.1.1 Vendor represents and warrants that (a) the Work will be performed in accordance with 

the Contract; (b) Vendor shall use sound and professional principles and practices in 

accordance with consistently accepted industry standards in the performance of the Work 

hereunder; (c) performance of the Work by Vendor Personnel shall reflect sound 

professional knowledge, skill and judgment; and (d) Vendor shall, and shall cause 

Vendor Personnel to, perform the Work in accordance with applicable laws, rules and 

regulations, and required state and local licenses and permits. 

8.1.2 Vendor represents and warrants that the Work covered by the Contract will (a) be suitable 

for the purpose intended and for any purposes for which its suitability is represented in 

writing by Vendor; (b) be free from defects in design, workmanship and materials; (c) 

conform to the Drawings and Specifications supplied to Vendor, if any; and (d) if 

installed by Vendor, be properly installed and activated.  Vendor shall correct any defects 

in the Work, and all repairs, replacements, modifications or adjustments required under 

this warranty shall be at Vendor’s expense, including transportation, shipping and 

incidental expenses. 

8.1.3 Remedies for breach of the warranties in this section (Warranty of Work) may include, at 

Company’s sole discretion and in addition to all other remedies available to Company at 

law or in equity, the repair or replacement of, or the reimbursement of the purchase price 

for, the applicable Work. 

8.1.4 The warranties set forth in this section (Warranty of Work) are cumulative and in 

addition to any other warranty provided by law or equity. 

9 Indemnity 

9.1 Indemnification 

9.1.1 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, Vendor shall defend, 

indemnify, and hold harmless COMPANY, ITS AFFILIATES AND EACH OF 

THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS 

(THE “Company-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”) from and against ANY AND all 

DAMAGES (“DAMAGES” MEANS THE AMOUNT OF ANY ACTUAL 

LIABILITY, LOSS, COST, EXPENSE, CLAIM, AWARD OR JUDGMENT AN 

INDEMNIFIED PERSON ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE 

INDEMNIFIED MATTER, WHETHER ATTRIBUTABLE TO PERSONAL 



 

PAGE 11 OF 21 
 

INJURY OR DEATH, PROPERTY DAMAGE, CONTRACT CLAIMS 

(INCLUDING CONTRACTUAL INDEMNITY CLAIMS), TORTS, OR 

OTHERWISE, INCLUDING COSTS OF ENFORCEMENT OF THE 

INDEMNITY AND (I) REASONABLE FEES AND EXPENSES OF ATTORNEYS, 

CONSULTANTS, ACCOUNTANTS OR OTHER AGENTS AND EXPERTS 

REASONABLY INCIDENT TO MATTERS INDEMNIFIED AGAINST, AND (II) 

THE COSTS OF INVESTIGATION AND/OR MONITORING OF SUCH 

MATTERS) INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED 

PARTIES WITH RESPECT TO BODILY INJURY OR DEATH OF ANY 

PERSON, OR LOSS OF, DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF REAL OR 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IN ANY WAY OCCURRING, INCIDENT TO, 

ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK PERFORMED 

OR TO BE PERFORMED BY VENDOR HEREUNDER OR OCCURRING, 

INCIDENT TO, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

PRESENCE OF VENDOR AND VENDOR PERSONNEL ON THE JOBSITE, IN 

EACH CASE TO THE EXTENT SUCH BODILY INJURY, DEATH OR 

DAMAGE IS CAUSED BY THE SOLE, JOINT, CONCURRENT, 

CONTRIBUTING, OR COMPARATIVE NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER LEGAL 

FAULT OF VENDOR OR VENDOR PERSONNEL. 

9.1.2 NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THE 

CONTRACT, VENDOR SHALL ASSUME FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR AND 

SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COMPANY-

INDEMNIFIED PARTIES FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL DAMAGES 

INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES 

WITH RESPECT TO THE BODILY INJURY OR DEATH OF AN EMPLOYEE 

OF VENDOR, ITS AGENT, OR SUBCONTRACTOR IN ANY WAY 

OCCURRING, INCIDENT TO, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED BY VENDOR 

HEREUNDER OR OCCURRING, INCIDENT TO, ARISING OUT OF OR IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE PRESENCE OF VENDOR AND VENDOR 

PERSONNEL ON THE JOBSITE, EVEN IF SUCH DAMAGES ARE CAUSED IN 

WHOLE OR IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT, 

CONCURRENT, CONTRIBUTING, OR COMPARATIVE), STRICT LIABILITY, 

OR OTHER LEGAL FAULT OF THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES 

9.2 Intellectual Property Indemnification 

9.2.1 TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, VENDOR SHALL 

DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COMPANY, ITS 

AFFILIATES AND EACH OF THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, 

EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS (THE “COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”) 

FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL DAMAGES (“DAMAGES” MEANS THE 

AMOUNT OF ANY ACTUAL LIABILITY, LOSS, COST, EXPENSE, CLAIM, 

AWARD OR JUDGMENT INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY AN INDEMNIFIED 

PERSON ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE INDEMNIFIED 

MATTER, WHETHER ATTRIBUTABLE TO PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, 



 

PAGE 12 OF 21 
 

PROPERTY DAMAGE, CONTRACT CLAIMS (INCLUDING CONTRACTUAL 

INDEMNITY CLAIMS), TORTS, OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING COSTS OF 

ENFORCEMENT OF THE INDEMNITY AND (I) REASONABLE FEES AND 

EXPENSES OF ATTORNEYS, CONSULTANTS, ACCOUNTANTS OR OTHER 

AGENTS AND EXPERTS REASONABLY INCIDENT TO MATTERS 

INDEMNIFIED AGAINST, AND (II) THE COSTS OF INVESTIGATION 

AND/OR MONITORING OF SUCH MATTERS) INCURRED OR SUFFERED BY 

THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES WHICH ARISE OUT OF OR ARE 

RELATED TO ANY CLAIM OR SUIT FOR INFRINGEMENT OR 

MISAPPROPRIATION OR ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OR 

MISAPPROPRIATION OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHT 

(“INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY” MEANS ALL PATENTS, DESIGN RIGHTS, 

COPYRIGHTS, DATABASE RIGHTS, TRADEMARKS, TRADE NAMES, 

RIGHTS IN INVENTIONS, KNOW-HOW, AND TRADE SECRETS, AND ALL 

OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS THROUGHOUT THE 

WORLD, WHETHER REGISTERED OR UNREGISTERED, AND INCLUDING 

ALL APPLICATIONS AND RIGHTS TO APPLY FOR ANY OF THE SAME) OF 

A THIRD PERSON IN CONNECTION WITH THE MANUFACTURE, SALE, 

USE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF ANY ARTICLE, MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT 

OR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY FURNISHED HEREUNDER BY VENDOR, 

OR THE PERFORMANCE OR USE OF THE WORK OR PART THEREOF, 

EVEN IF SUCH DAMAGES ARE CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY THE 

NEGLIGENCE (WHETHER SOLE, JOINT, CONCURRENT, CONTRIBUTING, 

OR COMPARATIVE), STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHER LEGAL FAULT OF 

THE COMPANY-INDEMNIFIED PARTIES.  IF, BY REASON OF ANY SUCH 

CLAIM, SUIT OR THREATENED ACTION CONCERNING INTELLECTUAL 

PROPERTY, COMPANY IS ENJOINED FROM USING THE WORK OR ANY 

PART THEREOF, VENDOR SHALL, PROMPTLY AND AT ITS OWN 

EXPENSE, (A) DILIGENTLY PROCURE FOR COMPANY THE RIGHT TO 

USE THE WORK; (B) SUBSTITUTE EQUIVALENT BUT NON-INFRINGING 

OR NON-MISAPPROPRIATING WORK SATISFACTORY TO COMPANY; OR 

(C) MODIFY THE WORK, IN A WAY SATISFACTORY TO COMPANY, SO IT 

BECOMES NON-INFRINGING OR NON-MISAPPROPRIATING, PROVIDED 

THAT IF SUCH ACTIONS ARE NOT PRACTICABLE IN THE REASONABLE 

OPINION OF VENDOR, AFTER GIVING DUE CONSIDERATION TO ALL 

FACTORS INCLUDING FINANCIAL EXPENSE, VENDOR MAY ELECT TO 

REFUND TO COMPANY ALL AMOUNTS PAID BY COMPANY TO VENDOR 

HEREUNDER. 

9.3 Indemnification Actions 

9.3.1 All claims for indemnification under this section (Indemnity) and any other indemnity 

provision of the Contract shall be asserted and resolved as follows: 

9.3.1.1 For purposes of this section (Indemnification Actions), (a) “Damages” means the amount 

of any actual liability, loss, cost, expense, claim, award or judgment incurred or suffered 

by an indemnified Person arising out of or resulting from the indemnified matter, whether 



 

PAGE 13 OF 21 
 

attributable to personal injury or death, property damage, contract claims (including 

contractual indemnity claims), torts, or otherwise, including costs of enforcement of the 

indemnity and (i) reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys, consultants, accountants or 

other agents and experts reasonably incident to matters indemnified against, and (ii) the 

costs of investigation and/or monitoring of such matters and (b) “Indemnified Person” 

means the Person or Persons having the right to be indemnified with respect to particular 

Damages by Vendor pursuant to the Contract. 

9.3.1.2 In the case of a claim for indemnification based upon a Third Party Claim, Vendor shall 

have thirty (30) calendar days from its receipt of the Claim Notice to notify the 

Indemnified Person in writing whether it admits or denies its obligation to defend the 

Indemnified Person against such Third Party Claim.  If Vendor does not provide such 

notice to the Indemnified Person within such thirty (30) day period , it shall be 

conclusively deemed obligated to provide such indemnification hereunder.  The 

Indemnified Person is authorized, prior to and during such thirty (30) day period, to file 

any motion, answer or other pleading that it shall deem appropriate to protect its interests 

or those of Vendor. 

9.3.1.3 If Vendor assumes control of a Third Party Claim, it shall have the right, for only so long 

as it conducts such defense with reasonable diligence, and obligation to diligently defend, 

at its sole cost and expense, the Third Party Claim, and shall have control of such defense 

and proceedings, including any compromise or settlement thereof, provided that if the 

Third Party Claim (i) consists of a demand for equitable relief, (ii) is a criminal 

proceeding or regulatory proceeding with potential criminal sanctions by any 

governmental authority against the Indemnified Person, (iii) would require an admission 

of guilt or wrongdoing on the part of the Indemnified Person, or (iv) would impose any 

continuing obligation on or require payment from the Indemnified Person, in each case, 

the Indemnified Person shall have the option, by notice to Vendor within the thirty (30) 

day period set forth above, to control such defense and proceedings.  Vendor shall keep 

the Indemnified Person advised of the status and defense of any Third Party Claim on a 

current basis and shall consider in good-faith the recommendations made by the 

Indemnified Person with respect thereto.  If requested by Vendor, the Indemnified Person 

agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate in contesting any Third 

Party Claim, which Vendor elects to assume the defense of (provided, however, that the 

Indemnified Person shall not be required to bring any counterclaim or cross-complaint 

against any Person).  The Indemnified Person may at its own expense participate in, 

together with its own separate counsel, but not control, any defense or settlement of any 

Third Party Claim controlled by Vendor pursuant to this section (Indemnification 

Actions); provided that, notwithstanding the foregoing, Vendor shall pay the reasonable 

costs and expenses of such defense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) of 

the Indemnified Person if (x) the Indemnified Person’s counsel reasonably concludes and 

advises that there are defenses available to such Indemnified Person that are different 

from or additional to those available to Vendor, or (y) the Indemnified Person’s counsel 

advises that there is a conflict of interest that could make it inappropriate under 

applicable standards of professional conduct to have common counsel for the 

Indemnified Person and Vendor.  Vendor shall not, without the prior written consent of 

the Indemnified Person, settle or compromise any Third Party Claim or consent to the 



 

PAGE 14 OF 21 
 

entry of any judgment with respect thereto which (i) does not result in a final resolution 

of the Indemnified Person’s liability with respect to the Third Party Claim (including, in 

the case of a settlement, an unconditional written release of the Indemnified Person from 

all further liability with respect to the Third Party Claim) or (ii) may materially and 

adversely affect the Indemnified Person (other than as a result of money damages 

covered by the indemnity). 

9.3.1.4 If Vendor does not assume the defense of a Third Party Claim or assumes the defense of 

a Third Party Claim but fails to diligently defend or settle the Third Party Claim, then the 

Indemnified Person shall have the right to assume the defense of the Third Party Claim 

(at the sole cost and expense of Vendor), with counsel of the Indemnified Person’s 

choosing, and shall have full control of such defense and proceedings, including any 

compromise or settlement thereof, provided that the prior written consent of Vendor to 

any such compromise or settlement shall be required if the Third Party Claim (i) consists 

of a demand for equitable relief on the part of Vendor, (ii) is a criminal proceeding or 

regulatory proceeding with potential criminal sanctions by any governmental authority 

against Vendor or (iii) would require an admission of guilt or wrongdoing on the part of 

Vendor. 

9.3.1.5 In the case of a claim for indemnification not based upon a Third Party Claim, Vendor 

shall have thirty (30) calendar days from its receipt of the Claim Notice to (i) cure the 

Damages complained of (at no cost to any Indemnified Person), (ii) admit its obligation 

to provide indemnification with respect to such Damages or (iii) dispute the claim for 

such Damages.  If Vendor does not notify the Indemnified Person within such thirty (30) 

calendar day period that it has cured the Damages or that it disputes the claim for such 

Damages, Vendor shall be conclusively deemed obligated to provide such 

indemnification hereunder. 

9.4 Indemnification Survival 

9.4.1 The indemnity obligations in this section (Indemnity) shall survive any termination of the 

Contract. 

10 TERMINATION 

10.1 Termination for Cause 

10.1.1 Company shall have the right to terminate the Contract in whole or in part at any time by 

written notice to Vendor if Vendor (1) fails to perform any of its obligations under the 

Contract or to observe any provision of the Contract (including any provision of the 

Contract providing for payment of money to Company); (2) becomes insolvent, generally 

does not pay its debts as they become due, admits in writing its inability to pay its debts, 

makes any assignment for the benefit of creditors, or commences, or has commenced 

against it, any insolvency, receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy or similar 

proceedings; or (3) fails to make progress so as to give Company reason to believe that 

such failure to make progress may endanger performance of the Contract in accordance 

with its terms; and Vendor, in any of these circumstances, does not provide adequate 



 

PAGE 15 OF 21 
 

assurances of performance within a period of three (3)calendar days (or such longer 

period as Company may authorize in writing) after receipt of said notice from Company 

specifying such failure. 

10.1.2 If, after Company delivers a notice of termination under the provisions of this section 

(Termination for Cause), it is determined that Vendor was not in default of the Contract 

or if Company elects to excuse such default but still desires to terminate the Contract, the 

rights and obligations of the Parties shall be the same as if notice of termination had been 

given pursuant to the Termination for Convenience section. 

10.2 Termination for Convenience 

10.2.1 The Contract may be terminated by Company at any time, in whole or in part, at 

Company’s sole and absolute discretion, with or without cause.  Any such termination 

shall be effected by written notice from Company to Vendor specifying the extent to 

which the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes 

effective. 

10.2.2 After receipt of a notice of termination, Vendor shall submit to Company its final invoice, 

which shall be exclusive of any special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, 

loss of profits, or expenses, in the form and with certification prescribed by Company.  

Any amounts payable by Company to Vendor shall be reasonable and based on actual 

incurred costs that are directly attributable to materials received and accepted in 

accordance with the Contract or Work timely and satisfactorily performed prior to the 

termination date.  The responsibility of substantiating all costs and claims shall be borne 

by Vendor.   

11 FORCE MAJEURE 

11.1.1 Performance of the Contract by each Party shall be pursued with due diligence in all 

respects thereof.  However, neither Party shall be liable for any loss or damage for delay 

or for non-performance due to (a) an act or event that (i) is beyond the reasonable control 

of and not the fault of the non-performing Party, (ii) was not reasonably foreseeable, and 

(iii) the non-performing Party has been unable to avoid or overcome by the exercise of 

commercially reasonable efforts; or (b) in the case of Company, Company or its 

Affiliates activates an Emergency Operation Plan due to a disaster or threatened disaster 

in any of their service territories, or Company or any of its Affiliates provides disaster 

assistance elsewhere in the United States in connection with a declared emergency.  In 

the event of any delay resulting from such causes, the time for performance of each of the 

Parties hereto (including the payment of monies) shall be extended for a period of time 

reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such delays and no further modification to 

other terms and conditions of the Contract shall occur.  The Party claiming a force 

majeure delay shall use its best efforts to limit the duration and adverse effects of such 

event or occurrence and to promptly resume performance of its obligations under the 

Contract. 



 

PAGE 16 OF 21 
 

11.1.2 In the event of any delay or nonperformance caused by the above causes, the affected 

Party shall promptly notify the other Party in writing of the nature, cause, date of 

commencement and anticipated extent of such delay, and shall indicate whether it is 

anticipated that any completion dates will be affected thereby. 

12 PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

12.1 Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure 

12.1.1 Company has a proprietary interest in the Contract, the Work provided hereunder, and the 

work product derived therefrom.  Vendor and Vendor Personnel may have access to and 

become familiar with various customer lists, trade secrets, and other confidential or 

proprietary information of Company or other parties, including formulas, patents, 

devices, secret inventions, processes and compilations of information, records, programs, 

software and source codes, which are owned by Company or subject to the confidential 

obligations of Company (all hereinafter referred to as “Confidential Information”).  

Confidential Information shall not include information which Vendor can demonstrate by 

competent proof (a) is now, or hereafter becomes generally known or available in the 

public domain (other than as a result of a disclosure directly or indirectly by Vendor or 

any Vendor Personnel in violation of this section, Proprietary and Confidential 

Information); (b) is known by Vendor or any Vendor Personnel on a non-confidential 

basis at the time of disclosure to Vendor by Company, so long as the source of such 

information is not under a contractual, legal, fiduciary or other obligation not to disclose 

such information; or (c) is independently developed by Vendor or Vendor Personnel 

without any breach of the Contract. 

12.1.2 Vendor shall use Confidential Information solely for the purpose of performing the Work 

and not for any other purpose, including in any way detrimental or potentially detrimental 

to Company or any of its Affiliates.  Vendor shall maintain the strict confidentiality of the 

terms of the Contract, the work product resulting from the Contract, and any Confidential 

Information provided to Vendor or any of its representatives and shall not disclose any of 

the foregoing, except that Vendor may disclose Confidential Information to those of its 

representatives and Subcontractors who have a reasonable need to know such information 

in order for Vendor to perform the Work if, prior to any such disclosure, (a) Vendor 

informs any such representative or Subcontractor of the terms of this section (Proprietary 

and Confidential Information) and (b) such representative or Subcontractor agrees in 

writing to preserve the confidentiality of the Confidential Information under the terms of 

this section (Proprietary and Confidential Information).  Vendor shall cause its 

representatives and Subcontractors to comply with the terms of this section (Proprietary 

and Confidential Information), and shall be responsible for any breach of this section 

(Proprietary and Confidential Information) by any of its representatives or 

Subcontractors. 

12.1.3 If Vendor, or any of its representatives or Subcontractors, becomes required by law or 

applicable legal process to disclose any Confidential Information, Vendor shall provide 

Company with prompt prior written notice of such requirement and the terms of and 

circumstances surrounding such requirement so that Company may seek an appropriate 



 

PAGE 17 OF 21 
 

protective order or other remedy, and Vendor shall provide, and shall cause such 

representative or Subcontractor to provide, such cooperation with respect to obtaining a 

protective order or other remedy as Company may reasonably request.  If, in the absence 

of a protective order or other remedy or the receipt of a waiver by Company, Vendor or 

any of its representatives or Subcontractors are nonetheless, in the opinion of legal 

counsel to Vendor expressed in writing and reasonably acceptable in form and substance 

to Company, legally compelled to either disclose Confidential Information to any tribunal 

or stand liable for contempt or suffer other censure or penalty, Vendor or that 

representative or Subcontractor may, without liability hereunder, disclose to such tribunal 

only that portion of the Confidential Information that such counsel advises Vendor is 

legally required to be disclosed.  Vendor shall exercise its best efforts to obtain an 

appropriate protective order or other reasonable assurance that confidential treatment will 

be accorded such Confidential Information by such tribunal. 

12.1.4 Company retains the entire right, interest and title to its Confidential Information.  All 

files, records, documents, source codes, programs, software, equipment and similar items 

relating to the business of Company, no matter by whom prepared, shall remain the 

exclusive property of Company. 

12.1.5 The covenants contained in this section (Proprietary and Confidential Information) shall 

be construed independently of any other provisions of the Contract and shall survive the 

termination of the Contract.  The existence of any claim or cause of action of Vendor 

Personnel against Vendor, whether predicated on the Contract or otherwise, shall not 

constitute a defense to the enforcement by Vendor or Company of the covenants in this 

section (Proprietary and Confidential Information). 

12.1.6 Vendor acknowledges that disclosure of any Confidential Information by Vendor or 

Vendor Personnel will give rise to irreparable injury to Company, inadequately 

compensable in damages.  Accordingly, Company shall be entitled to seek and obtain 

injunctive relief, in addition to other legal remedies, which may be available in the event 

of any disclosure of Confidential Information by Vendor or Vendor Personnel. 

12.1.7 Upon Company’s request, Vendor shall, and shall cause Vendor Personnel to, (a) 

immediately cease using the Confidential Information and (b) promptly return or destroy 

(at Company’s option) all Confidential Information, including materials prepared in 

whole or in part based on such Confidential Information, and all copies thereof.  Upon 

Company’s request, an authorized officer of Vendor supervising the return or destruction 

of Confidential Information shall certify that Vendor no longer has in its possession or 

under its control any Confidential Information in any form whatsoever, or any copy 

thereof. 

  



 

PAGE 18 OF 21 
 

13 RECORDS AND AUDITS 

13.1.1 During the term of the Contract and for a period of four (4) years following the 

termination of the Contract, or longer as required by law, Vendor shall make, keep and 

maintain complete and accurate records relating to the Work.  The records required to be 

made, kept and maintained by Vendor under the previous sentence include financial 

accounts, invoices, receipts, vouchers, books, schedules, written policies, safety records, 

personnel files, correspondence, instructions, plans, warranties, equipment maintenance 

records, drawings and memoranda of every description pertaining to the Work. 

13.1.2 Vendor’s records shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and reproduction, upon 

reasonable notice, during normal business working hours.  Vendor shall provide 

Company with access to any and all information, materials and data of every kind and 

character that may in Company’s reasonable judgment have any bearing on or pertain to 

any matters, rights, duties or obligations under or covered by the Contract, to the extent 

necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of Vendor compliance with 

Contract requirements, and Company’s business ethics policies and  provisions for 

pricing change orders, invoices or claims submitted by Vendor or any of Vendor’s 

payees.  Such records shall include hard copy, as well as computer-readable data if 

available.  Audits may be performed by Company’s representative or an outside 

representative engaged by Company during the term of the Contract and for a period of 

four (4) years after the termination of the Contract or longer if required by law.  

Company’s representative or designee shall have reasonable access to Vendor’s facilities, 

and shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace, in order to conduct audits in 

compliance with this section (Records and Audits). 

13.1.3 Vendor’s obligations under this section (Records and Audits) shall survive the 

termination of the Contract. 

14 MISCELLANEOUS 

14.1 Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue 

14.1.1 The laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to principles of conflict of laws, 

govern all matters arising out of or relating to the Contract and all of the transactions it 

contemplates, including its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, and 

enforcement.  Vendor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally consents to the exclusive 

jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Texas and of the United States of America 

located in the State of Texas, County of Harris, for any actions, suits, or proceedings 

arising out of or relating to the Contract.  Vendor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally 

waives any objection to the laying of venue of any action, suit, or proceeding arising out 

of the Contract, in the courts of the State of Texas or the United States of America 

located in the State of Texas, County of Harris, and hereby further irrevocably and 

unconditionally waives and agrees not to plead or claim in any such court that any such 

action, suit, or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient 

forum. 



 

PAGE 19 OF 21 
 

14.2 Third Party Beneficiaries 

14.2.1 The Contract does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any 

Person other than Vendor and Company, excepting those Persons expressly entitled to (1) 

indemnification under this Contract, or (2) any rights or benefits under the Insurance 

section.  The Parties reserve the right to rescind, waive or vary the terms of the Contract 

without notice to or consent of any such third Person, even if, as a result, such third 

Person’s right to enforce a term hereof will be varied or extinguished. 

14.3 Counterparts 

14.3.1 The Parties may sign the Contract in several counterparts, each of which will be deemed 

an original but all of which together will constitute one instrument.  Any electronic 

signature by an authorized representative of a Party shall be a manifestation of assent and 

shall be given full effect.  Any signature of the Contract delivered by facsimile or 

scanned document transmitted by email shall be deemed to be an original signature for all 

purposes. 

14.4 Supplier Diversity 

14.4.1 Company recognizes the importance of minority-owned and women-owned business 

enterprises (“MWBE”) and small business concerns to the economies of the nation, the 

state, and the communities they serve, as well as Company itself.  Company’s objectives 

include actively and routinely seeking and utilizing qualified diverse suppliers, 

encouraging participation and support of supplier diversity initiatives by its prime 

suppliers, and assisting in the development and competitiveness of diverse suppliers. 

14.4.2 Company seeks to include diverse supplier participation in its solicitations of goods and 

services.  Non-diverse prime contractors should seek to include diverse suppliers in 

support of solicitations and contracts received from Company. 

14.4.3 Company asks that Vendor be aware of the policies above and support them. 

14.5 Notices and Correspondence 

14.5.1 All notices or correspondence arising from or pertaining to the Contract must be in 

writing and delivered in person, or electronically, or sent by registered or certified mail or 

nationally or internationally recognized overnight courier, with all fees prepaid, to the 

receiving Party at the address identified on the Contract Cover Sheet. 

14.5.2 Either Party may, at any time, change its mail or delivery address by giving the other 

Party ten (10) calendar days prior written notice. 

14.5.3 The effective date of any written notice delivered or mailed pursuant to the Contract shall 

be the date of receipt by Company or Vendor, as applicable, if delivered, or the postmark 

date if mailed.  If the receiving Party rejects or otherwise refuses to accept a notice, or if 

it cannot be delivered because of a change in address for which no notice was given, then 

notice will be deemed given upon that rejection, refusal or inability to deliver. 



 

PAGE 20 OF 21 
 

14.6 Publicity 

14.6.1 Vendor shall not take any photographs, make any announcement or release any 

information concerning the Contract or any part thereof to any member of the public, the 

press or any third Person, unless prior written consent is obtained from Company.  

Vendor shall not, under any circumstances, represent itself as a Company-authorized 

contractor or a Company employee in any advertisement or telephone directory. 

14.7 Modification; Non-Waiver of Rights 

14.7.1 No amendment of the Contract will be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the 

Parties.  No waiver of satisfaction of a condition or nonperformance of an obligation 

under the Contract will be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the Party 

granting the waiver, and no such waiver will constitute a waiver of satisfaction of any 

other condition or nonperformance of any other obligation.  To be valid, any document 

signed by a Party in accordance with this section (Modification; Non-Waiver of Rights) 

must be signed by an officer or other authorized representative of that Party. 

14.8 Severability 

14.8.1 If any provision of the Contract is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, (a) the remaining 

provisions of the Contract will remain in full force, if the essential terms and conditions 

of the Contract for both Parties remain valid, legal and enforceable; and (b) the court or 

other tribunal rendering the provision invalid, illegal or unenforceable shall modify the 

Contract so as to effect the original intent of the Parties to the fullest extent permitted by 

applicable law. 

14.9 Further Assurances 

14.9.1 If at any time after the date of the Contract any further action is necessary or appropriate 

to carry out the purposes of the Contract, Vendor shall take, or cause to be taken, that 

action. 

14.10 Complete Agreement 

14.10.1 The furnishing of Work hereunder, or any other definite and reasonable expression of 

acceptance by Vendor, shall operate as an acceptance of these Terms and Conditions by 

Vendor, and the effect of such acceptance shall be to make a contract on Company’s 

terms as set forth in this document. 

14.10.2 The terms and conditions of the Contract prevail over any terms and conditions contained 

in any other document and expressly exclude any of Vendor’s general terms and 

conditions.  Additional or different terms and conditions will not become a part of the 

Contract unless mutually agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

14.10.3 The Contract contains the entire agreement between the Parties, and is the complete and 

exclusive expression of the Parties’ agreement on the subject matter of the Contract.  The 

Contract supersedes all other oral or written agreements relating to the Contract.  The 



 

PAGE 21 OF 21 
 

provisions of the Contract may not be explained, supplemented, or qualified through 

evidence of trade usage or a prior course of dealings or performance.  In entering into the 

Contract, neither Party has relied upon any statement, representation, warranty, or 

agreement of the other Party except for those expressly contained in the Contract. 

 





























































F. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1323, A RESOLUTION 
PROVIDING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN ADDENDUM TO 
THE WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER SERVICES AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 158. 
Executive Summary: The Board of Directors for Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 
158 (MUD No. 158) has approved the proposal on a wholesale water rate by the City of 
Rosenberg. Cily Altorney Lora Lenzsch has worked with the MUD attorney on certain revisions to 
the Addendum presented to City Council on April 26'h. The changes have been redlined and are 
attached for review. I recommend approval of the Resolution No. R-1323 and the associated 
addendum with the changes made by Ms. Lenzsch. 

G. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1317, A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A 
CONTRACT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND CENTERPOINT ENERGY SERVICE 
COMPANY, LLC, FOR THE LOAD MANAGEMENT STANDARD OFFER PROGRAM. 
Executive Summary: As part of the Siemens Energy Efficiency Project, CenterPoint Energy 
(CenterPoint) installed load management metering equipment at Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 
2, located at 3650 N. Fairgrounds Road so the City could participate in the Load Management 
Standard Offer Program. For calendar year 2010, Siemens prepared and submitted the 
application and Contract on the City's behalf. Siemens received and forwarded incentive 
payments totaling $9,591.20 to the City. 

The City has applied for the 2011 Load Management Standard Offer Program. A copy of the 
Contract is attached to Resolution No. R-1317 as Exhibit "A". As in 2010, the program only 
applies to the hours of 1 :00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m., excluding weekends and Federal Holidays, during 
the months of June, July, August, and September. CenterPoint is limited to a maximum of four (4) 
unscheduled curtailments during the summer peak demand hours mentioned above and must 
provide a minimum of thirty (30) minutes notice before the curtailment start time. During the 
curtailment period, the City can fully operate Wastewater Treatment Plant No.2 using standby 
generator power. 

The base Contract is for a five (5) year term beginning April 25, 2011 and ending April 25, 2016. 
However, the City will have to submit the load curtailment information to CenterPoint on an annual 
basis. The City can expect to receive cash incentives similar to the amount received in 2010. 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1317, authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, a Contract, by and between the City and CenterPoint Energy Service 
Company, LLC, for the Load Management Standard Offer Program. 

H. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1314, A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A 
GENERAL SERVICES CONTRACT EXTENSION, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND 
LANDSCAPE PROFESSIONALS OF TEXAS, FOR GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
FOR WATER PLANTS AND LIFT STATIONS, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR, EFFECTIVE 
JULY 03, 2011, IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,389.00. 
Executive Summary: On June 01, 2010, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1154, which 
awarded a General Services Contract for grounds maintenance services at the Water Plants and Lift 
Stations owned and operated by the City of Rosenberg. The Contract was awarded to Landscape 
Professionals of Texas in the amount of $14,389.00. The initial term of the Contract was for a one (1) 
year period, with an option for City Council to extend the Contract upon the same terms and conditions, 
including prices established thereunder, for two (2) additional one (1) year periods. To date, the 
contractor has performed as specified and staff is satisfied with the overall performance. 

Staff has prepared Resolution No. R-1314, which will provide for approval of the first one (1) year 
Contract Extension. Said Contract Extension is attached to Resolution No. R-1314 as Exhibit "A" and 
the original General Services Contract as Exhibit "B". A copy of Resolution No. R-1154 and the original 
Contract approved on June 01, 2010, is also available for review in the City Secretary's office. Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1314 as presented. 

PAGE 3 of 14' REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES' MAY 17, 2011 

sherrin
Rectangle



I. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE FINAL PLAT OF WALNUT CREEK SECTION 
NINE, A SUBDIVISION OF 8.721 ACRES CONTAINING 38 LOTS, 2 BLOCKS, 1 RESTRICTED 
RESERVE OUT OF THE EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Nine is a subdivision of 8.721 acres 
containing thirty-eight (38) lots and one (1) restricted reserve in two (2) blocks. It is located in the 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the City of Rosenberg and within the boundaries of Municipal Utility District 
No. 152 (MUD No. 152). 

The Planning Commission recommended Final Plat approval for Walnut Creek Section Nine on March 
23, 2011. Staff has reviewed the Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Nine and found it to be in 
complianoe with the Development Agreement, the Subdivision Regulations, and all other applicable City 
Ordinances. Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Nine. 

Action: Councilor Suter made a motion, seconded by Councilor Segura to approve the Consent 
Agenda. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS REPORT REGARDING THE DRY CREEK REGIONAL FLOOD CONTROL 
PLAN FROM LJA ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, INC., AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: LJA Engineering & Surveying, Inc. has completed the report for the Dry Creek 
Regional Flood Control Plan. This Plan outlines proposed construction improvements and related costs 
to improve the Dry Creek channel and provide regional detention within the Dry Creek Watershed. 

This item has been included on the agenda for LJA Engineering & Surveying, Inc., to provide City Council 
an overview of the proposed Dry Creek Regional Flood Control Plan. 

Key discussion points: 
• Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer, read the executive summary and gave an overview of the 

item. 
• Angela Batiste, LJA Engineering & Surveying, Inc. gave an overview of the proposed Dry Creek 

Regional Flood Control Plan. She has done the majority of the analysis of Dry Creek since 2007. 
• History of Dry Creek (existing conditions) 

o Upstream of First Street 
• Approximately a 5-year rainfall capacity 

o Between First Street and Airport 
• Approximately a 2 to 50year rainfall capacity 

o Between Airport and Bryan Road 
• Approximately a 1 OO-year rainfall capacity 

o Downstream of Bryan Road 
• Approximately a 500-year rainfall capacity 

o At Smithers Lake 
• Approximately a 2-year rainfall capacity 

• Map of the Existing Floodplain - Upper Dry Creek 
• History of Dry Creek Study - 2002 Analysis 

o Proposed improvements to reduce 100 year floodplain within city limits of Rosenberg 
• Diversion of upper "one-third" to Brazos River 
• Widening and Deepening Dry Creek 
• Concrete lining 
• Additional culvert cells at road crossings 
• Regional detention at Louise Street 
• Regional detention at Sunset Park 
• Regional detention at FM 2977 

• Map with Proposed Improvements - 2002 Analysis 
• Map with 2007 Analysis - Research alternative regional detention locations in upper Dry Creek 
• Method of Analysis 

o Left proposed conditions hydrology model with future development included 
o Removed Louise Street detention from models 
o Replaced Sunset Park detention with alternate location across from City Hall 
o Modified detention pond at FM 2977 to include future Spacek Road crossing 

PAGE 4 of 14· REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES· MAY 17, 2011 

sherrin
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 21, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Resolution No. R-1960 – BNSF Railway Company Pipeline License 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1960, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Pipeline License related to the North Side Water Line 
Improvement Project – Phase II, by and between the City and BNSF Railway Company, in the amount of 
$6,225.00 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

216-1900-540-7031 (CP1505) 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1960 
2. Jenkins Correspondence – 03-31-15 
3. Project Location Map 
4. Resolution No. R-1878 – 12-02-14 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-02-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On December 02, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1878 authorizing the City Manager to 
execute an Agreement for Community Development Block Grant funding for the North Side Water Line 
Improvement Project - Phase II (Project).  The Project includes the replacement of an existing six (6) inch 
water line located in the 6th Street right-of-way and crossing both the BNSF and Union Pacific railroad 
rights-of-way (ROW) between Avenue F and Avenue E.  As a requirement of crossing railroad ROW, the 
City must execute a separate Pipeline License (License) from each railroad for the replacement water line.  
This particular License is with the BNSF Railway Company for access upon their premises.  The License 
will allow for the installation of a 12-inch PVC potable water line within a 20-inch steel casing.  The 
Pipeline License fee is $5,075.00 plus an additional $1,150.00 for BNSF’s Railroad Protective Liability 
Insurance for a total amount of $6,225.00.  (The total remittance amount will also include an additional 
$150.00 payment for the separate administrative processing fee balance. 
 
Staff and the City Attorney have reviewed the Pipeline License and recommend approval of Resolution 
No. R-1960 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1960 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A PIPELINE LICENSE RELATED TO THE NORTH SIDE 
WATER LINE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT – PHASE II, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND BNSF RAILWAY 
COMPANY, IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,225.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute a Pipeline License related to the North Side Water Line 

Improvements Project – Phase II, by and between the City and BNSF Railway 

Company in the amount of $6,225.00. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Pipeline License is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary   Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1960



































           North Rosenberg 
Water Distribution Improvements

melissap
Rectangle

melissap
Typewritten Text

melissap
Typewritten Text

melissap
Typewritten Text
12"

melissap
Rectangle

melissap
Rectangle

melissap
Typewritten Text
12"

melissap
Typewritten Text
12"



RESOLUTION NO. R -1878

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO

EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN AGREEMENT FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT FUNDING FOR WATER LINE IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE II, 

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT
BEND COUNTY, IN THE AMOUNT OF $210,000.00. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an Agreement

for funding of Water Line improvements, by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, 

and Fort Bend County, in the amount of $210,000. 00. 

Section 2. A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit " A' and

made a part hereof for all purposes. 
AL

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this day of 014. 

ATTEST: 

WA) 0 A" , 
Lind Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY

0SF
s _ 

2 
rn

O

APPROVED: 



AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF MCAS § 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 

Exhibit "X to Resolution No. R -1878

This Agreement is by and between the City of Rosenberg, 'A body corporate and politic
under the laws of the .State of T. "= ( hereinafter referred to as City) and Fort Bend County, a
body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas ( hereinafter referred to as
County. 

WiTNESSETH.: 

V EREAS; the County has submitted a Community Development Block Grant to the U. 
S. Government, application number $- 14 -UC -48 -0004, which has been approved by the U. S. 
Govermuent through the U. S. Department of Dousing and Urban Development: 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to cooperate to be included in the grant application; and, 

WHEREAS, included in rte approved grant application for the construction of 12" water
line at Walnut Street at State Hwy 36N to a now lam' water line crossing. 3rd Street at Avenue F
and installing a 12" water Iim that would tcplam an existing 6" water line at the 6h Street

crossing for a total cost of $210,000.00, hereinafter.rdferred to as the °`-Project"; and, 

WHEREAS, the County is the grantee iratned in the grant charged with complilance off
federal laws, rules, and regulations relating to the expenditure of funds xeceived from the C1. S. 
Government pursuant to the approved Community Development Block Grant application, and, 

WHEREAS, the City is not familiar with such federal laws, rules, and regulations relating
to the expenditure of U. S. Government fiords. under the Community Development Black Grant
application; -and, 

WHEREAS; the County desires to assure compliance with such laws, rules, and
regulations relatjng 1b the e)tpwdjture of .funds udder the CoiMuoity Development Block Grant
application; and, 

WHEREAS, the C uniy and City mutually agreo as to the need to expedite this -Pi9ject as
quickly as possible: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the County and City do mutually agree as follows: 



SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

The County and City agree to construct the Project in accordance with the guidelines, 
rules, and regulations required by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
hereinafter referred to as HUD). 

IL

DUTIES OF THE COUNTY AND CITY

2.01 Tlie City shall be responsible, at its own expense, for paying for the design of the Project. 

2.02 Within ninety (90) days after the date this Agreement is executed by both parties, the City
will submit 50% design submittal to the County for the County's review and comments. The

County shall review the preliminary plans and specifications and return comments to the City
within seven ( 7) days, Comments will be forwarded to the City for incorporation into the final
plans and specifications, Final plans and specifications shall be submitted to the County to
ensure compliance with HUD /County technical requirements. The final plans and specifications
shall be returned to the County within forty -five (45) days. 

2.03 Within forty-five (45) days after approval by the County of final plans and specifications, 
the City will advertise for and receive bids for the construction of the Project in accordanct with
the approved plans and specifications in the manner similar to that ofother City projects. 

2.04 Upon Teceipt and tabulation of the bids for the Project, City will determine the lowest .and
best bid for the construction of the Project. In the event the lowest and best bid for the

construction of the Project is an amount that would result in the cost of (he Project beu g,equal to
or less than -the sum of the $221, 550.00 ($ 210,000.00 CDBG funds plus $11, 550.00 City funds), 
City will notify County of the amount of the lowest and best bid for the Project. Upon such

no'tificationto the County, the County will transmit to the City written notice to proceed. 

2.05 In the event the lowest and best bid for the construction of the Project is an amount in

excess of the cunt of $221, 556.00, the Thp City will pay the difference between $ 221, 550.00 and
the lowest and best, bid up to a Maxim urn of ten perceyrt ( l0 %) of such lowest and best laid. If the
amount of then .available funds, the $ 22I, 55040 plus the City' s contingency' portion, is not
sufficient to construct the Project then the parties agrees to reduce the Project scope as•mecessary

to allow the construction of the Project with the available funds. Upon receipt of written

notification of the lowest and best bid, the County will notify the City to proceed to let the
contract and continue with the construction of the Project. 

2.01 The City shall be responsible for the administration of the construction contracts, with the
County approving the award of the bid. The- City,shall, at its oWrt expense, furnish the -necessity
inspection personnel to assure itself of compliance with Ac Agreement, The County shall

2



periodically inspect the Project during construction. The County shall fund the Project as set
forth in this Agreement. 

2.07 The City and the County, through its Community Development Department Director, may
by prior written agreement mutually agree' to re- allocate the funds among the various line items
of the budget or to new tine items created in the budget. 

III. 

PROJECT COSTS

3. 01 For and in coasideration of the Project as herein set forth, the County agrees to fund
project costs not to exceed the total sum of Two Bundred Ten Thousand and No /100 Dollars

210,000.00) as set forth in the Budget for CDBG Funds, which shall be in full and total
compensation for payment of all expenses allowed under this Agreement and the Grant
Agreement with HUD. 

CDBG Budget

Construction $?. 14,OOQ. UU

Total CDBG Fnnds 2I0.000.00

Citv F̀unds

Construction $ 11,550.00

Engineering $ 39,900. 00

Contingency $ 22, 155.00

Total City Funds, 

3. 02 The County shall not be liable for the payment of expenses or costs, wbibh are not
allowable (Inddr the terms of this Agreement and the Grant Agreement with W3D. 

IV, 

l Y 

It is expressly Agreed pnd understood that the total amount to be paid by the County under
this Agreement shall not exceed Two Ifundred Ten Thousand and No /100 Oollars .($210;000.00). 

City shall submit an invoice upon delivery of the Project. Such invoice shall include any other
documentation requested by the Cpunty. All invoices shall he approved by the Fort Bend County
Community Development Department prior to payment, 

3



V, 

SOURCE OF FUNDING

5. 01 The County has no Cot}nty funds for the costs of goods and services to be rendered under
this Agreement, It is expressly agreed and understood that this Agreement is predicated upon
and conditioned on the County receiving funds for the purpose- of paying the entire -obligation of
the County under this Agreement from funds to be received from the U. S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, by virtue of Grant No. B- 14 -UC-48 -0004, entiiled Community
Development Block Grant. Accordingly, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the
maximum liability of the County under the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall -not
excedd $ 210,000.00 amount actually received by the County from HUD pursuant to the Block
Grant. 

5. 02 The City admits knowledge of the fact that the County's obligation hefeunder for payment
of compensation and costs, if any, is limited to Federal funds received pursuant to the Grant
Agreement in connection with the Community Development Block Grant Program of the U. S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, and that unless and until adequate Hinds have
been received by the County under the Grant Agreement to pay the City's compeisation and
expense reimbursement, the County shall have no obligation to the City. 

VI. 

AGREEMENT pOCUWNTS

01 ' Mis Agreement includes the following exhibits and such exhibits are attached hereto and
made a part hereof for all purposes: 

Exhibit A - CDBG Program Requirements

Exhibit B - Certification for Contracts, Grants, 
Loans and Cooperative Agreements

Exhibit C - Guidelines fox Entity Design, Bidding and Administration of Construction
Projects. 

Exhibit D — Projeet Schedule

6.02 This Agreement and the attached exhibits represent the entire.. Agreement beiwegn. the

County and the City, and there are no other effective agreements, representations or warranties
between the County and the City that are not contained,in the Agreement Dwument% 

4



NOTICE

7.01 Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice provided for or permitted to be
given rpust be in writing and delivered in person or by depositing, same in the United States mail, 
postpaid and registered or certified, addressed to the party to be notified, with return receipt

requested, or by delivering the same to an officer of such party. Notice deposited in the mail as
described above shall be conclusively deemed to be effective, unless otherwise stated in this
Agreement from and after the expiration of three ( 3) days after it is so deposited. 

7. 02 For the purpose of notice, the addresses of the parties shall, until changed as- hereinafter
provided, be as follows: 

If to the County, then to: 

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Court
Fort Bend County
c /ar Community Development Department
301 Jackson Street
Richmond, Texas- 77469

Ifto the City, then to: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Rosenberg
F, O. Box 32

Rosenberg, Texas 77471

7. 03 Each party shall have the right, from time to time, at any time, to change its respective
address and each shall have the, tight to specify a& its new $ddress, provided that at least fifteen

15) clays written notice is given of such new address to the other party. 

1! 

RIGHTS OF TERMINATION

The City or the County, by and through its Director ofthe Fort Bend County Community
Development Department, or -the City, may terminate this agreement without cause prior to the
City' s award of the construction contract by providing thirty (30) days notice. The County may
terminate this agreement after the City' s award of the construction contract only for cause, by
providing thirty (3-0) days written notice to the City. 

5



FON

EXECUTION

This Agreement shall bedome effective upon execution by County. The agreement terminates upon
completion of the project,. but no later than December 31, 2015. 

FORT BEND COUNTY: 

Robert E. Hebert, County Judge

ATTEST: 

Dianne Wilson, County Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM; 

Assistant County Attorney

APPROVED: COUNTY PROJECT MANAGER

Marilynn Kindeil, Director

Fort Bend County Community Development Department

CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

i7
s By

City Manager

ATTEST: 

Date

Date

Date

City Secretary
AUDITOR' S CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that funds are available in the amount of $210,000.00 to accomplish and pay
the obligation ofthe Fort Bend County under this contract. 

Robeit E. Sturdivant, County Auditor



EXHIBIT A

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

F

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964

The City shall comply with ' Title VI of the 'Civil Rights Act of 1964 ( P.L. 88 -352) and
Title 24 Code of Federal Regulations fart 1. In accordance with the Act, no person in the United

States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits ofi or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity for
which' the City receives Federal financial assistance. The City will immediately take any
measures necessary to comply with Title VI. If any real property or structure is thereon provided
or improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance, this clause shall obligate the city, or in
the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, to comply with the requirements and
restrictions contained in this clause for the period during which the real property or structure is
used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended dr for another purpose

involving the provisions of similar services or benefits. The City will further comply with federal
regulations, 24 CFR Paft 1, which implement the act. 

ii. 

FAIR AO>7SING REQUIREMENTS

The City shall comply with the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S. C. 3601 -20) and implementing, 
regulations at 24 CFR Part 10ti, Fart 109, and Part 110. No person in the United 'Stated shall, on

the basis of race, color, religion, sex;, national origin, handicap or familial status, be excluded
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any
program or activity funded in whole or in part with CDBG funds. 

Wei

EXECUTIVE O12DFR 11063

The City shall comply with Executive Order 11063 as amended by Executive Order
12259 and as contained in 24 CFR Part 107. City will take all action necessary and appropriate
to prevent discrimination because of race, color religion ( creed), sex, or national of ?gin, in the

sale leasing, rental, or other disposition of residential property and related facilities ( including
land to be developed for residential use), or in the use or occupancy thereof; if such property and
related facilities area, among other things, provided in whole or in part with the aid of loans, 
advances, grants, or contributions agreed to be made by the Federal Government. 

7. 



IV. 

SECTION 109 OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 11974

The City shall comply with Section 109 of the Community Development Act of 1974, in
that no person in the United State's shall on the ground of race, color, religion, national origin or
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination
underany program or activity funded in whole or in part with CDBG funds. 

V. 

EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246- 

The City shall comply with Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order
12086, and the regulations issued pursuant thereto ( 451 CER Chapter b0) which provides that no
person shall be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin

in all phases ofemployment during the performance of Federal or- federally- assisted construction
contracts. 

City agrees that Cbntractors and subcontradtors on Federal or federally- assisted
construction contracts shall take affirmative action to ensure fair treatment in employment, 

upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, 
rates ofpay, or other forms of compensation and selection for training and apprenticeship. 

VIw

RELOCATION, ACQUISITION & ]PISPLACEIV.[ENT

The City agrees to comply with 24 CFR 570. 606 relating to the, acquisition -and
disposition ofall real property- utilizing grant funds, and to the displacement of persons, 
businesses, nonprofit organizations and farms occurting as, a direct result of any acquisition -o£ 

teal property utilizing grant funds, The City agrees to domply with applicable Grantee
Ordinances, Resolutions, and Policies concerning displacement of individuals from, their
residences. 

VII. 

SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ,ACT OF 1968

The City shall comply wish Section 3 of the Housing and Cuban Development Act of
1968, as amend6d 1211, S. C. 1701 uj. 



A. The City shall, to the greatest extent feasible, give opportunities for training and
employment to lower - income residents of the County and shall award contracts for work
in connection with the Project to business concerns which are located in or owned in

substantial part by persons residing in the Coutity. 

B. The City shall include the phrase in paragraph A in all contracts for work in connection
with this project. 

1 _t" 

LEAD -BASED PAINT

The City agrees that any -construction or rehabilitation of residential structures with
assistance provided under this Agreement shall be subject to HUD Lead -Based Paint Regulations
at 24 CPR 570.608, and 24 CFR Part 35, and in particular SubPart B thereof. Such regulations

pertain to all IUD- assisted housing and require that all owners; prospective owners, and tenants
or properties constructed prior to 197$ be properly notified that such properties may include lead - 
based paint. Such notification shall point out the hazards of lead -based paint and explain the
symptoms, treatment and precautions that should be taken when dealing with lead - based paint
poisoning. 

USE OF DEBARRED, SUSPENDED OR 1NEL1GIBLE CITYS

The City shall not use assistance to directly or indirectly employ, award contracts to, or
otherwise engage the services of, or fund any City er subCity during any period of -debarment, 
suspension or placement in ineligibility status under provisions of24 CFR Part 24. 

X. 

UNIFORM ADWMST — 6.77VE REQUIREMENTS AND COST PRINCIPAi,S

The City and its agencies or instrum6ntalities, and subrecipients shall Comply with the
policies, guidelines, acid requirements of 24 CFR Part 85 and OMIT Circulars A-87, A -110
im lemented at 24 CFR Part 84), A -122, A -133 ( implemented at 24 CFR Part 45), and A- 

1282(implemented At 24 CFR Part' 44) as applicable, as they relate to the aoceptance and use of
Federaf funds under this part. The applicable sections of 24 CFR Part's 84 and 85 are set forth at
570.502. 

E



CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. No member ofor delegate to the Congress of the United States, and no resident

Commissioner, shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or to any benefit
direct or indirect which crises from the Agreement. 

B. In accordance with 24 CFR Part 570.611, no persons described in paragraph -C who

exercise or have exercised any functions with respect to CDBG activities or who are in a
position to participate in a decision making processor gain inside information with regard
to CDBG activities, may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit fforn, or have
any interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement or the proceeds thereunder, either
for themselves or those with whorl. they have family or business dies, during their tenure
or for one year thereafter. 

C. The requirements of paragraph B apply to any person who is an employee, agent, 
consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the County, City, and of any
designated public agency, or subrecipient under 24 CFR Section 570.20 which receives
funds under the CDBG grant agreement with HUD. 

ELIGIBILI'T'Y RESTRICTIONS FOR CERTAIN RESIDENT ALIENS

The City agrees to abide by the provisions of 24 CFR 570.613 with. respect to the
eligibility restrictions for certain resident aliens. Certain newly legalized aliens, as described in
24 CFR Part 49, are not eligible to apply for benefits under covered activities funded by the
programs listed in this part ofthe regulation. The Grantee ' shall provide the City wiih any
guidelines necessary for compliance with that portion ofthe regulation_ 

Egli

ARCHITECTVAAL BARRIERS ACT AND AMERICAN'S wiTH DISABUAT1lES ACT

The. City agrees to comply with any federal regulations issued pursuant to compliance
with the Architectural Barriers Act of, 1968 ( 42 U.S. C. 4151 -4157) which requires certain
Federal and Federally funded buildings and other facilities t6 be designed, constructed, or altered
in accordance with the standards that insure - accessibility to, and use by, physically hodicapped
people. The City also agrees to comply with any fed6ml regulations issued pursuarit to
compliance with the Americans. with Disabilities Act, (42 IJ.S, C, 12131 U.S. C. 155, 201, 218 and
225) which provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of
employment,, public accommodations, State and local government services, and

telecommunications. The Grantee shall provide the City with any guidelines necessary for
compliance with that portion of the regulation in force during the term of this Agreement: 

10



plot

MINORITY AND WOMEN' S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

The City shall comply with Executive Orders 1 1 625, 12432, and 1.2I38. Consistent with
HUD's responsibilities under these Orders, the City must make efforts to encourage the use of
minority and women's business enterprises in connection with funded activities. 

M, 

DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF AGE OR HANDICAP

The City shall not discriminate on the basis of age under the Age Discriminatioo Act of
1975 ( 42 U, S. C. 61 - 1 - 07) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 146. The City shall not
discriminate agai nsthandieapped individuals under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

29 U.S. C, 794) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 8. 

XVL

RECORDS FOR AUDIT PURPOSES

Without limitation -to any other provision of this Agreement, the City shall tnaintdm ap
records concerning the Project that will facilitate an pfI'ective audit tq determine compliance with
prograrǹ requirements. Records shall be kept for three (3) years from the expiration date of the

Agreement. The City will give the County, HUD, and the 'Comptroller General of the United
States, the General Accounting Office or any of their authorized representatives access to and did
right to examine, copy or reproduce all tecords pertaining to the acquisition and construction of
the Project and the operation of the Project. The right to access shall continue as long as the
records arerequired to be maintained. 

DRUG FREE WOMLAACE ACT OF 19$8

Tile City shall comply with the Drug Free ' Workplace Act of I988 and dertify that it will
maintain a drug -free workplace in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR part' 24, subpart
F. 

11



EXfi)CBIT B

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans

and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or oh behalf of
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer of employee
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee or Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Copgres$ in connectipr} with the awarding of any Federal contma, Jhe making ofany
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the. extension, continuation, renewal, amendment' or modification of any Federal contract, 
grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person for influencing or•attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete. and submit Standard Form ,, LL, 

l?isc)osure Form to Report Lobbying," i4 accordance with its instructions.. 

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers ( including subcontracts, sub grants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify

and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed Wberf
this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certificatibn ia a prerequisite for

making for entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to filethe required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not lest than

10, 000 and not more than $ f00,000 for each such failure. 

Executed Ns date of . 20

By
signature) 

typed of prjnted name) 

title, if any) 

Cover_ ed Action. COMM UNITY' D.E IP- LOPMENT BLOC1K GRANT

type and identity of program;, projector activity) 

12



ii

GUIDELINES FOR

ENTITY DESIGN, BIDDING AND ADMINISTRATION

OF CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

These guidelines are intended to assist those public entities receiving Fort Bend County
Community Development Block Grant Funds. The guidelines will facilitate the entity's
understanding and . compliance with applicable federal and county regulations, policies and
processes where the entity is responsible the for design, bidding, and construction administration
phases of a project. Included as a part of this exhibit are Appendices 1, 2 and 3. If clarification

is needed, call Karen Bringol, Assistant Project Coordinator, Fort Bend County Community
Development Department (CDD), (281) 341 -4410. 

1. The entity must submit the proposed consultants SF 254 and 255 or SF 330,qualification
statements and professional liability insurance certification for approval prior to
commissioning the consultant. 

2. Upon approval by CDD the entity may retain consultant services. 

3. The schematic design must be within the previously approved project scope. 

4_ Preliminary plans and outline specifications shall be submitted to CDD to review for
compliance with project scope, estimated cost and constructability. Comments will be

returned to the consultant for incorporation into the final plans. Final plans will be

submitted to the County and will be reviewed to ensure compliance with HUD /County
technical requirements and to insert County - related documents. Corrections and

comments will be returned to the consultant for revisions. Final documents must be

approved by CDD. 

5. Prior to award of contract, CDD and the County Engineer's Office will review the bid
documentt; the bidder's qualification statements, minority business plan and financial
statements to ensure that the City has a good contracting record, adequate capitalization
and/ or equipment, etc., to successfully complete the project, meets minority participation
goals and that the bidder has not been debarred by T WD from working on federal
contracts. 

6. The Entity shall conduct a prebid meeting (if necessary) and a preconstruction canference
with the City(s), oonsultani, and CDD representatives in attendance. 

7. Inspection will be the responsibility of the. Entity. Tho County Engineer will periodically
inspect construction. 

13



8. The Entity will be responsible for preparing monthly pay estimates. Preparation will

consist of a site meeting with the Entity and/or consultant and the City's representative to
accurately determine the percentage completion of various components of the work and
time used. The monthly estimate is based on a previously submitted and approved
schedule of values. Upon completion of the final draft of each monthly estimate, the
consultant will be required to sign same. The estimates will then be reviewed by the
County Engineer and processed through CDD, County Auditor and the County Treasurer. 

9. All requests for Changes in contract will be processed by the Entity. All change requests
must be within the original scope of work and be approved by CDD prior to processing. 
No person will have authority to verbally alter, modify, expand or reduce the
requirements of the drawings or specifications. All modifications affbcting cost, scope, 
quality or time shall be made part of the contract by a " Change1n- Contract" approved by
the Entity. All change orders required due to errors and/ or omissions by the consultant
will be paid for by the Entity: Total aggregate Changes In Contract will not exceed

twenty -five percent ( 250/o) of the original contract amount. 

10. CDD will review all payrolls and conduct working interviews and will hold the general. 
City responsible for compliance with labor, EEO and minority business requirements. 

14



APPENDIX 1

1. PROCEDURES FOR SUBMITTING ENGINEERING PROPOSALS

Fort Bend County's Community Development Department requires that engineering firms
submitting qualification statements do so in the manner prescribed below. This information

should substantiate the capacity and ability of the firm and its staff to perform this type of
engineering work. It is also important to Iist projects completed of a similar nature that

demonstrate this capability. Ans, proposal submitted without all of the information requested
below will be considered As non - responsive. 

A, Submit one ( 1) copy of information on the firm in the forth of a corporate
resume, including SF 254 and SF 255 or SF' 330 Forms. 

B. Submit one ( 1) copy of current project activities of a similar nature being
undertaken by your firm (including dollar amount and contact persons). 

C. Submit any other pertinent information on the firm's ability to carry out the
contractual responsibilities; including such things as equipment, use of
sub - contracts, and special knowledge of the project area or activity being
considered. 

D, Provide a list of persons, and their classification, who will be assigned to
this job. 

E. Provide a resume of all employees who will be assigned to this project, 

including a listing ofprojects having similar work. 

P. Provide a detailed scoff of work on how yoo proRose to handle thin pme, 
of construction. The scope of work should contain categories for initial

site investigation. submission ofprelirninary plan ( construction drawings) 
for review, correction ofrevisions which resul from said review, technical

sl2ecifrcations_ easement- drawin s/g legal descriptions, and meetings as may
be regdtred. 

G. Provide a list of subcontractors to be employed ( if known) and whether

these firms are minority or female. owned. 

A, Submit one ( 1) copy of the Proposal Summary (Appendi)( 2). 

I. Submit one ( ly copy of the Certification for Contracts-, Grants, Loans and. 
Cooporative Agreements (Appendix 3). 

NOTE: It is not necessary,ttsrazlist data already included on the SF
254 and SF 255 or SF 330 foams. 

15



11. SELECTION CRITERIA

The award of the contract for engineering services required by this Request for Proposal shall be
determined by analysis of, but not necessarily limited to, the following factors: 

A. Documented evidence ,of qualifications, resources and experience of the

proposing firm to perform the required services; 

B. ` Commitment by the proposing firm to complete the construction plans, 
documents, design surveys and easement descriptions within the required
time. 

C. Other factors as deemed appropriate, including a review of the items
submitted raider Section 1. PROCEDURES FOR SUBMITTING

ENGINEERING PROPOSALS, 

III. MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION

Where possible, engineering firms are encouraged to utilize the skills and services of minority
businesses in the fulfillment of the contractual responsibilitids pertaining to this project. 

IV. ENGINEERING SERVICES

The City shall enter into a contract for engineering services as listed below. 

1. ` The. Engineer will be responsible for ascertaining the scope of
improvements outlined iin thjs report ( scope of work) and developing a
Layout and Cost Estimate. The Engineer should recommend alternative

layouts if field investigations identify additional problems not covered' in
the original scope ofwork- 

2. Upon direction of the City, the Engineer will prepare construction plans
and documents as required so as to install the scope jof work identified in
this report. 

3.. The Engineer will identify and prepare easemenUright -of -way deseriptions- 
ifnecessary. 

16



I14' oIf : a

PROPOSAL. SUMMARY

Include with proposal after selection ofengineer) 

1. Engineer ( Firm Name) 

2. P.E, Hours

3. Minority/Female Hours

4. Total Hours

These are total estimated hours for the entire project. Tile data requested here is in addition to
the breakdowns called for in Section I ( D & F), PROCEDURES FOR SUBMITTING

PROPOSALS. 

17



APPENDIX 3

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans
and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by Qr on behalf of
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of A. 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative -agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, 
grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

2) Ifany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, -or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Fonn -LLL, 

Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," irr accordance with'its instructions. 

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents for all sitbawards at all tiers { including subcontracts, sub grants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative .agreements) and that all s

ibreaipients
shall certify

and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is material representation of fact upon which reliance Was placed when

this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of tits certification is a prerequisite for

making for entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required certificatiort shall =be subject too-a civil penalty of not less than

10,000 and not more Phan $ 100, 000 for each such failure- 

Executed this' date bf , 20 = 

13y
signature) 

typed or printed name) 

title,, if any) 

Covered Action: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

type and identity of program, project or activity) 

Mk-dw P.Wenikrg 200 = MM

I1 . 



o

EXHIBIT D

Rosenberg Water Distribution Project Schedule, Phase 11
B- 14 -UC -48 -0004

Engineering Procurement and Contracting
50% Design Submittal

Design Review and Comments

100% Design $ubmittal

Design Review and Acceptance

Bidding Process

Bid Opening
Bid Award and conract

Construction

Project Closeout

Cal Days Due Date

45 2/ 16/ 2015

45 4/ 2/ 2015

7 4/ 9/ 2015

45 5/ 25/ 2015

10 4/ 4/ 2015

30 7/ 6/ 2015

N/ A 7/ 6/ 2015, 

15 7/ 21/ 2015

120 11/ 18/ 7015

N/ A 12131/ 2015

Month

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12



CERTIFICATION

I, Linda Cernosek, City Secretary of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, do hereby certify
that I am the custodian of the records of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and that the
attached is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. R -1878, ' A Resolution of the City

Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas Authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and
on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, An Agreement for Community Development
Block Grant Funding for Water Line Improvements — Phase 11, by and between the City of
Rosenberg, Texas, and Fort Bend County, in the amount of $210, 000.00." 

Resolution No. R -1878 was approved by the City of Rosenberg City Council on the
2nd day of December, 2014. 

ItA
Y

MY HAND and official Seal of the City of Rosenberg, Texas this 3rd day
14. 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary
City of Rosenberg, Texas

THE SATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Linda
Cernosek, City Secretary of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, known to me to be the person
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that she
executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed, and in the
capacity therein stated. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this 3rd day of December, 2014, A.D. 

at y
NOTARY PUBLIC

CHRtS
IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS

e= EXMY COMMISSIONSSION EX PIRES

t May 16, 2018



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Ordinance No. 2015-12 – “Junked Vehicle” Ordinance 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-12, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by amending Chapter 14 – Health, Sanitation and Nuisances, Article VI – Junked Vehicles; providing for 
penalties; providing for a cumulative and conflicts clause; providing a severability clause; and providing an 
effective date.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-12 – Redlined Exhibit “A” only 
2. Ordinance No. 2015-12 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-27-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Scott Tschirhart/rl 
 
Scott Tschirhart 
City Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  
[X] Building Official 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At the January 27, 2015 Workshop Meeting, City Council requested specific revisions to the “Junked 
Vehicle” Ordinance.  These revisions are included in Ordinance No. 2015-12.  A redlined version is also 
attached to allow City Council to review the previous Code with the changes as presented in Ordinance 
No. 2015-12. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-12 as presented. 
 



 

 

    Page 1 

ROSENBERG CODE OF ORDINANCES  
CHAPTER 14 – HEALTH, SANITATION AND NUISANCES 
ARTICLE VI. - JUNKED VEHICLES          
 
Sec. 14-111. - Definitions.  
 

For the purpose of this article, the following words shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them by this section:  

 
Antique motor vehicle shall mean a passenger car or truck that is at least thirty-five 

(35) years old.  
 
Code Officer means the Code Enforcement Officer of the City or other regularly 

salaried, full-time employee of the City working under the supervision of the Building 
Official to enforce this article. 

 
Inoperable means a vehicle that is in such condition at the time of inspection, that 

it is no longer usable for the purpose for which it was manufactured, regardless of the 
potential for repair or restoration. If the vehicle is wrecked, dismantled or partially 
dismantled it is presumed to be inoperable. 

 
 
Junked vehicle shall mean a vehicle that is self-propelled as defined in Section 

683.071, Transportation Code, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes, as amended, and meets 
two of the following three requirements:  

 
(1) Does not have lawfully attached to it: 

a. An unexpired license plate; or 
b. A valid motor vehicle inspection certificate; 
 

(2) Is wrecked, dismantled or partially dismantled, or discarded; or 
 
(3) Is inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than: 
 

a. Seventy-two (72)Twenty four (24) consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on 
public property; or 

b. Thirty (30)Fifteen (15) consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property. 
 

Motor vehicle collector shall mean a person who:  
 
(1) Owns one (1) or more antique or special interest vehicles; and 

 
(2) Acquires, collects, or disposes of antique or special interest vehicle or part of an 

antique or special interest vehicle for personal use to restore and preserve an 
antique or special interest vehicle for historic interest. 



 

 

    Page 2 

  
Special interest vehicle shall mean a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 

changed from original manufacturer's specifications and, because of its historic interest, 
is being preserved by a hobbyist.  
 
Sec. 14-112. -– ExceptionsDeemed public nuisance; declared unlawful.  
 

A junked vehicle that is located in a place where it is visible from a public place or 
public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the general public, tends to 
reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates fire hazards, constitutes 
an attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, and is 
detrimental to the economic welfare of the city by producing urban blight which is adverse 
to the maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is declared a public 
nuisance. 

The provisions of this article applicable to junked motor vehicles shall not apply to:  
 
(1) Any motor vehicle in operable condition specifically adapted or constructed for 

racing or operation on privately owned drag strips or raceways;  
 

(2) Any motor vehicle stored as the property of a member of the armed forces of the 
United States who is on active duty assignment.  

 
Sec. 14-113. - Deemed public nuisance; declared unlawfulExceptions.  
 

A junked vehicle that is located in a place where it is visible from a public place or 
public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the general public, tends to 
reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates fire hazards, constitutes 
an attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, and is 
detrimental to the economic welfare of the city by producing urban blight adverse to the 
maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is a public nuisance. This 
section shall not apply with regard toThe following vehicles or parts thereof are excepted 
from the provisions of this ordinance:  

 
(1) A vehicle or part thereof which is completely enclosed within a building in a lawful 

manner where it is not visible from the street or other public or private property;  
 

(2) A vehicle or part thereof which is stored or parked in a lawful manner on private 
property in connection with a business of a licensed vehicle dealer or licensed 
junkyard, or that is an antique or special interest vehicle stored by a motor vehicle 
collector on the collector's property, if the vehicle or part and the outdoor storage 
area, if any, are:  

 
a. Maintained in an orderly manner; and 
b. Do Nnot constitute a health hazard; and 
c. Are Sscreened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, including a 

fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery.  



 

 

    Page 3 

(3) Any motor vehicle stored as the property of a member of the armed forces of the 
United States who is on active duty assignment. 
 

Sec. 14-114. - Notice to owner to abate nuisance—When on occupied 
premisesOffense. 
  

(1) A person commits an offense if the person maintains a public nuisance as 
described by this article. 

(2) An offense under this article is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed 
two hundred dollars ($200.00). Each day a violation is permitted to exist shall 
constitute a separate offense. 

(3) The municipal court shall order abatement and removal of the nuisance on 
conviction. 

 
 
(a) Whenever a public nuisance exists on public property, on occupied premises, or on 

the public right-of-way adjacent to occupied premises within the city in violation of 
section 14-113, the city manager or his designee shall send notice to the owner of 
the junked vehicle and the owner or occupant of the premises where the nuisance 
exists if on private property, or the owner or occupant of the premises adjacent to the 
public right-of-way on which the nuisance exists. If the post office address of the last 
known registered owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be placed on the 
nuisance or, if the owner is located, hand delivered. The notice shall state the 
following:  

 
(1) The nature of the public nuisance and location; 
(2) That it must be abated and removed within ten (10) days; 
(3) That if a hearing is desired before the removal of that vehicle or vehicle part, a 

request for such hearing shall be made before the expiration of the ten-day 
period; and  

(4) That the owner shall request, either in person or in writing, the clerk of the 
municipal court to set a date and time of hearing.  

(b) The notice must be mailed, by certified mail with a five-day return requested, to the 
last known registered owner of the junked motor vehicle, any lienholder of record, 
and the owner or occupant of the private property, public property, or public right-of-
way on which the public nuisance exists. If any notice is returned undelivered by the 
United States Post Office, official action to abate the nuisance shall be continued to 
a date not earlier than the 11th day after the date of return.  

 
Sec. 14-115. -– Same—When on unoccupied premisesProcedures for abating a 
nuisance.  
 

The city's procedures for the abatement and removal of a junked vehicle or a part of 
a junked vehicle as a public nuisance from private property, public property or public 
rights-of-way are set out in this section. 



 

 

    Page 4 

 
(1) Procedures for abatement and removal of a public nuisance may be 

administered by the Code Enforcement Officer, or another regularly salaried, 
full-time employee of the City of Rosenberg designated by the City Manager 
to enforce this Article, except that any authorized person may remove the 
nuisance. 
 

(2) Pursuant to the procedures established by this section, the person 
authorized to administer these procedures may enter private property to 
examine a public nuisance, to obtain information to identify the nuisance, 
and to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance. 

 
(3) The municipal court may issue necessary orders to enforce an action taken 

by the Code Officer, under this section, pursuant to Tex. Transp. Code Ann. 
§ 683.074. 

 

(4) Once a proceeding for the abatement and removal of the public nuisance 
has commenced under this section, the relocation of a junked vehicle that 
is a public nuisance to another location within the City has no effect on the 
proceeding if the junked vehicle constitutes a public nuisance at the new 
location. 

 
(5) In the event that the City removes a junked vehicle from private or public 

property pursuant to this section, the Code Officer shall provide notice to the 
Texas Department of Transportation, identifying the vehicle or part of the 
vehicle being removed, not later than the fifth day after the date of removal. 

 
(6) A junked vehicle removed pursuant to the provisions of this section may not 

be reconstructed or made operable after removal. 
(a) Whenever a public nuisance exists on unoccupied premises or on the public right-of-

way adjacent to the unoccupied premises within the city in violation of section 14-
113, and the owner can be found, the city manager or his designee shall send notice 
to the owner of the junked vehicle and the owner of the unoccupied premises where 
the nuisance exists if on private property, or the owner of the unoccupied premises 
adjacent to the public right-of-way on which the nuisance exists. If the post office 
address of the last known registered owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may 
be placed on the nuisance or, if the owner is located, hand delivered. The notice shall 
state the following:  

 
(1) The nature of the public nuisance and location; 
(2) That it must be abated and removed within ten (10) days; 
(3) That if a hearing is desired before the removal of that vehicle or vehicle part, a 

request for such hearing shall be made before expiration of the ten-day period; 
and  



 

 

    Page 5 

(4) That the owner shall request, either in person or writing, the clerk of the municipal 
court to set a date and time of hearing.  

 
(b) The notice must be mailed, by certified mail with a five-day return requested, to the 

last known registered owner of the junked motor vehicle, any lienholder of record, 
and the owner of the unoccupied private property, or public property, or public right-
of-way on which the public nuisance exists. If any notice is returned undelivered by 
the United States Post Office, official action to abate the nuisance shall be continued 
to a date not earlier than the 11th day after the date of return.  
 

Sec. 14-116. -– Motor vehicle descriptionNotice of nuisance.  
 

The Code Officer shall give not less than 10 days, before an abatement action, 
written notice stating the nature of the public nuisance.  The notice must be personally 
delivered, sent by certified mail with a five-day return requested, or delivered by the United 
States Postal Service with signature confirmation service to: 

 
(1) the last known registered owner of the nuisance; 

 
(2) each lienholder of record of the nuisance; and 
 
(3)  the owner or occupant of: 

 
a. the property on which the nuisance is located; or 
b. if the nuisance is located on a public right-of-way, the property 

adjacent to the right-of-way. 
 
(4) Any notice requiring the removal of a vehicle or part thereof shall include a 

description of the vehicle and the correct identification number of the 
vehicle, if available at the site. 

 
a. The notice must state: 

 
i. that the nuisance must be abated and removed not 

later than the 10th day after the date on which the 
notice was personally delivered or mailed; and 

 
ii. any request for a hearing before the Municipal Court 

must be made before the 10th day after the date on 
which the notice was personally delivered, or mailed. 

 
iii. If the post office address of the last known registered 

owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be 
placed on the nuisance or, if the owner is located, 



 

 

    Page 6 

personally delivered. 
 

iv. If notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the 
nuisance shall be continued to a date not earlier than 
the 11th day after the date of the return. 

Any notice requiring the removal of a vehicle or part thereof shall include a description 
of the vehicle and the correct identification number of the vehicle, if available at the site.  

 
Sec. 14-117. - Hearing in municipal court—Preliminaries.  
 

(1) A citation may be issued and a complaint may be filed in the Municipal 
Court of the City of Rosenberg for the violation of maintaining a public 
nuisance, if the nuisance is not removed and abated and a hearing is not 
requested within the ten (10) day period provided in Subsection 14-116. 

   
(2) The Municipal Court Judge shall conduct a hearing pursuant to Texas 

Transportation Code Section 683.075(a)(3), not earlier than the 11th day 
after the date of the service of notice. 

 
(3) At the hearing, the junked motor vehicle is presumed, unless demonstrated 

otherwise by the owner, to be inoperable. 
 

(4) If the information is available at the location of the nuisance, an order 
requiring removal of the nuisance must include the vehicle's: 

 
a. description; 
b. vehicle identification number; and 
c. license plate number. 

If a hearing is requested within ten (10) days after service of the notice, a public 
hearing shall be held not earlier than the 11th day after the date of the service of notice 
before the vehicle or vehicle part is removed. The hearing shall be held before the 
municipal judge.  

 
Sec. 14-118. -– Same—Findings of judge; penaltyDisposal of junked vehicles.  
 

(1) A junked vehicle or part thereof may be disposed of by removal to a 
scrapyard, a motor vehicle demolisher, or any suitable site operated by the 
City, for processing as scrap or salvage pursuant to authority provided in 
the Texas Transportation Code, § 683.078 or any successor statute for 
junked vehicle disposal. 

 
(2) Any proceeds from the transfer of the junked vehicle or part thereof to the 

site authorized by this section shall be used to reimburse the city for all 
costs incurred in the notification, investigation, hearing, and disposal 
procedures (including any and all variable towing and disposal fees from 



 

 

    Page 7 

contracted sources) within this article. Any remaining proceeds shall be 
transferred to the lienholder of record or, if none, the owner of record. 

(a) The municipal judge shall conduct the trial brought before the municipal court and 
shall determine whether the defendant is in violation of section 14-113. Upon finding 
that the defendant is in violation of such section, the defendant shall be deemed guilty 
of a misdemeanor and subject to a fine in accordance with section 683.073 of the 
Texas Transportation Code. The municipal judge shall further order such defendant 
to remove and abate such nuisance within ten (10) days. If the defendant shall fail 
and refuse to abate or remove the nuisance, the municipal judge may issue an order 
directing the city manager or his designee to have the same removed, and the city 
manager or his designee shall take possession of the junked vehicle and remove it 
from the premises. The city manager or his designee shall thereafter dispose of the 
junked vehicle in such manner as the city council may provide.  

 
(b) If a trial is not requested within the ten-day period and the nuisance is not removed 

and abated by the persons notified, the municipal judge shall issue an order directing 
the city manager or his designee to have the same removed, and the city manager 
or his designee shall take possession of the junked motor vehicle and remove it from 
the premises. The city manager or his designee shall, thereafter, dispose of the 
junked motor vehicle in such manner as the city council may provide.  

 
Sec. 14-119. -– Removal—With the permission of the ownerEffect of act on other 
laws.  
 

Nothing in this Article shall affect laws that permit immediate removal of a vehicle left 
on public property which constitutes an obstruction to traffic, or laws that establish 
procedures for taking possession of abandoned motor vehicles.If, within ten (10) days 
after receipt of notice from the city manager or his designee to abate the nuisance as 
herein provided, the owner of the junked motor vehicle or owner or occupant of the 
premises shall give his written permission to the city manager or his designee for removal 
of the junked motor vehicle from the premises, the giving of such permission shall be 
considered compliance with the provisions of this article.  

 
Sec. 14-120. – Removal – With the permission of owner. 
 
If, within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the Code Enforcement Officer to abate 
the nuisance as herein provided, the owner of the junked motor vehicle or owner or 
occupant of the premises shall give his written permission to the City for removal of the 
junked motor vehicle from the premises, the giving of such permission shall be 
considered compliance with the provisions of this article. 

 
Sec. 14-120. - Same—From public property, occupied or unoccupied premises by 
court order. 
  



 

 

    Page 8 

If there is a junked motor vehicle on public property, or private premises that are occupied or 

unoccupied, or on the public right‐of‐way adjacent to the occupied or unoccupied premises, and 

the owner or occupant of the premises cannot be found and notified to remove the vehicle, then, 

upon a showing of facts to the municipal judge, the court may issue an order to the city manager 

or his designee  to  take possession of  the  junked motor  vehicle  and  remove  it.  If  the notice 

required in sections 14‐114 and 14‐115 is returned undelivered by the United States Post Office, 

then after ten (10) days from the date of return, the court may issue an order to the city manager 

or his designee to have the junked motor vehicle removed, and the city manager or his designee 

shall  take  possession  of  the  vehicle  and  remove  it.  The  city manager  or  his  designee  shall 

thereafter  dispose  of  the  junked motor  vehicle  in  the manner  provided  by  the  city  council, 

consistent with state law, and the vehicle shall not be reconstructed or made operable.  

 

Sec. 14-121. - Disposal of junked vehicle.  
 
(a) If  a  public  nuisance  is  not  abated  by  the  owner  or  occupant  after  notice  is  given  in 

accordance with  this article, official action  shall be  taken by  the city  to abate  such nuisance. 

Junked vehicles or parts thereof may be disposed of by removal to a scrapyard, demolishers, or 

any suitable site operated by the city, which removal process shall be consistent with this article. 

A junked vehicle disposed of to a demolisher in accordance with this article must be transferred 

to such demolisher by a form acceptable to the state highway department. The transfer receipt 

must  be  listed  on  the  demolisher's  inventory  list  and  surrendered  to  the  state  highway 

department in lieu of the certificate of title under the provision of the Texas Transportation Code, 

chapter 501. 

  

(b) After a vehicle has been removed pursuant to this article, it shall not be reconstructed or 

made operable by any person. 

  

(c) Notice shall be given to the state highway department within five (5) days after the date 

of removal identifying the vehicle or part thereof.  

 

Sec. 14-122. - Authority to enforce.  
 
The chief of police or his designee may enter upon private property for the purposes specified in 

this article to examine vehicles or parts thereof and to remove or cause the removal of a vehicle 

or parts thereof declared to be a nuisance pursuant to this article. The municipal court shall have 

authority to issue all orders necessary to enforce such article.  

 

Secs. 14-123—14-135. - Reserved. Secs. 14-121 – 14-135. – Reserved. 



 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2015-12 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 14 – 
HEALTH, SANITATION AND NUISANCES, ARTICLE VI – JUNKED 
VEHICLES; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR A 
CUMULATIVE AND CONFLICTS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg in accordance with its inherent authority as a 
home rule city, and the authorization of Texas statutes, including but not limited to Texas 
Transportation Code Chapter 683, Subchapter E, is authorized to regulate junked 
vehicles; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council finds that the presence of junked vehicles in the City of 
Rosenberg is detrimental to the health, safety and welfare and reasonable comfort of its 
citizens; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council finds that in the absence of corrective measures, junked 
vehicles may a cause a deterioration of property values; a curtailment in investment and 
tax revenue; and an impairment of economic values in the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, City Council finds that it is necessary to amend the City’s regulations 
relating to the storing of junked vehicles within the City’s corporate limits to better protect 
the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of the City;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 

correct and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as findings of fact.  

 Section 2. Code Amended.  Chapter 14, Article VI of the City of Rosenberg 

Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by replacing the existing language in Sections 

14-111 to 14-135 in its entirety with the language set out in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and incorporated for all purposes herein. 



 

-2- 

 Section 3. Cumulative and Conflicts.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all 

provisions of ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, except where the provisions of 

the Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event 

the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous 

versions of this Ordinance to the extent that they are in conflict herewith are repealed.  

 Section 4. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City 

Council that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance 

are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court 

of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining 

phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 

would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance 

of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  

 Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately 

upon its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS  
 
 
              
Anne Stark, Assistant City Secretary  Cynthia McConathy, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 



 

-3- 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde and Zech, P.C. 
 



Page 1

 

 

ROSENBERG CODE OF ORDINANCES 
CHAPTER 14 – HEALTH, SANITATION AND NUISANCES 
ARTICLE VI. - JUNKED VEHICLES   
 
Sec. 14-111. - Definitions. 
 

For the purpose of this article, the following words shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them by this section: 

 
Antique motor vehicle shall mean a passenger car or truck that is at least thirty-five 

(35) years old. 
 

Code Officer means the Code Enforcement Officer of the City or other regularly 
salaried, full-time employee of the City working under the supervision of the Building Official 
to enforce this article. 

 
Inoperable means a vehicle that is in such condition at the time of inspection, that it 

is no longer usable for the purpose for which it was manufactured, regardless of the potential 
for repair or restoration. If the vehicle is wrecked, dismantled or partially dismantled it is 
presumed to be inoperable. 

 
Junked vehicle shall mean a vehicle that is self-propelled as defined in Section 

683.071, Transportation Code, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes, as amended, and meets two 
of the following three requirements: 

 
(1) Does not have lawfully attached to it: 

a. An unexpired license plate; or 
b. A valid motor vehicle inspection certificate; or 

 
(2) Is wrecked, dismantled or partially dismantled, or discarded; or 
 
(3) Is inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than: 

 
a. Twenty four (24) consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; 

or 
b. Fifteen (15) consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property. 

 
Motor vehicle collector shall mean a person who: 
 
(1) Owns one (1) or more antique or special interest vehicles; and 

 
(2) Acquires, collects, or disposes of antique or special interest vehicle or part of 

an antique or special interest vehicle for personal use to restore and 
preserve an antique or special interest vehicle for historic interest. 

 
Special interest vehicle shall mean a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 

changed from original manufacturer's specifications and, because of its historic interest, is 
being preserved by a hobbyist. 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2015-12



Page 2

 

 

 
Sec. 14-112. - Deemed public nuisance; declared unlawful. 
 

A junked vehicle that is located in a place where it is visible from a public place or 
public right-of-way is detrimental to the safety and welfare of the general public, tends to 
reduce the value of private property, invites vandalism, creates fire hazards, constitutes 
an attractive nuisance creating a hazard to the health and safety of minors, and is 
detrimental to the economic welfare of the city by producing urban blight which is adverse 
to the maintenance and continuing development of the city, and is declared a public 
nuisance. 

 
Sec. 14-113. – Exceptions. 

 
The following vehicles or parts thereof are excepted from the provisions of this 

ordinance: 
 

(1) A vehicle or vehicle part which is completely enclosed within a building in a 
lawful manner where it is not visible from the street or other public or private 
property; 

(2) A vehicle or part thereof which is stored or parked in a lawful manner on 
private property in connection with a business of a licensed vehicle dealer 
or licensed junkyard, or that is an antique or special interest vehicle stored by 
a motor vehicle collector on the collector's property, if the vehicle or part and 
the outdoor storage area, if any, are: 
a. Maintained in an orderly manner; and 
b. Do not constitute a health hazard; and 
c. Are screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, 

including a fence, trees, or shrubbery. 
(3) Any motor vehicle stored as the property of a member of the armed forces of 

the United States who is on active duty assignment. 
 

Sec. 14-114. – Offense. 
 

(1) A person commits an offense if the person maintains a public nuisance as 
described by this Article. 

(2) An offense under this article is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to 
exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00). Each day a violation is permitted to 
exist shall constitute a separate offense. 

(3) The municipal court shall order abatement and removal of the nuisance on 
conviction. 

 
Sec. 14-115. – Procedures for abating nuisance. 
 

The city's procedures for the abatement and removal of a junked vehicle or a part of a 
junked vehicle as a public nuisance from private property, public property or public rights-
of-way are set out in this section. 

 
(1) Procedures for abatement and removal of a public nuisance may be 



Page 3

 

 

administered by the Code Enforcement Officer, or another regularly salaried, 
full-time employee of the City of Rosenberg designated by the City Manager to 
enforce this Article, except that any authorized person may remove the 
nuisance. 
 

(2) Pursuant to the procedures established by this section, the person authorized 
to administer these procedures may enter private property to examine a public 
nuisance, to obtain information to identify the nuisance, and to remove or 
direct the removal of the nuisance. 

 
(3) The municipal court may issue necessary orders to enforce an action taken by 

the Code Officer, under this section, pursuant to Tex. Transp. Code Ann. § 
683.074. 

 
(4) Once a proceeding for the abatement and removal of the public nuisance has 

commenced under this section, the relocation of a junked vehicle that is a 
public nuisance to another location within the City has no effect on the 
proceeding if the junked vehicle constitutes a public nuisance at the new 
location. 

 
(5) In the event that the City removes a junked vehicle from private or public 

property pursuant to this section, the Code Officer shall provide notice to the 
Texas Department of Transportation, identifying the vehicle or part of the 
vehicle being removed, not later than the fifth day after the date of removal. 

 
(6) A junked vehicle removed pursuant to the provisions of this section may not 

be reconstructed or made operable after removal. 
 
Sec. 14-116. - Notice of nuisance. 
 

The Code Officer shall give not less than 10 days, before an abatement action, 
written notice stating the nature of the public nuisance.  The notice must be personally 
delivered, sent by certified mail with a five-day return requested, or delivered by the United 
States Postal Service with signature confirmation service to: 

 
(1) the last known registered owner of the nuisance; 

 
(2) each lienholder of record of the nuisance; and 

 
(3)  the owner or occupant of: 

 
a. the property on which the nuisance is located; or 
b. if the nuisance is located on a public right-of-way, the property adjacent 

to the right-of-way. 
 
(4) Any notice requiring the removal of a vehicle or part thereof shall include a 

description of the vehicle and the correct identification number of the vehicle, 
if available at the site. 



Page 4

 

 

 
a. The notice must state: 

 
i. that the nuisance must be abated and removed not later 

than the 10th day after the date on which the notice was 
personally delivered or mailed; and 

 
ii. any request for a hearing before the Municipal Court must 

be made before the 10th day after the date on which the 
notice was personally delivered, or mailed. 

 
iii. If the post office address of the last known registered 

owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be placed 
on the nuisance or, if the owner is located, personally 
delivered. 

 
iv. If notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the 

nuisance shall be continued to a date not earlier than the 
11th day after the date of the return. 

 
Sec. 14-117. - Hearing in municipal court. 
 

(1) A citation may be issued and a complaint may be filed in the Municipal Court 
of the City of Rosenberg for the violation of maintaining a public nuisance, if 
the nuisance is not removed and abated and a hearing is not requested within 
the ten (10) day period provided in Subsection 14-116. 

   
(2) The Municipal Court Judge shall conduct a hearing pursuant to Texas 

Transportation Code Section 683.075(a)(3), not earlier than the 11th day after 
the date of the service of notice. 

 
(3) At the hearing, the junked motor vehicle is presumed, unless demonstrated 

otherwise by the owner, to be inoperable. 
 

(4) If the information is available at the location of the nuisance, an order 
requiring removal of the nuisance must include the vehicle's: 

 
a. description; 
b. vehicle identification number; and 
c. license plate number. 

 
Sec. 14-118. – Disposal of junked vehicles. 
 

(1) A junked vehicle or part thereof may be disposed of by removal to a 
scrapyard, a motor vehicle demolisher, or any suitable site operated by the 
City, for processing as scrap or salvage pursuant to authority provided in the 
Texas Transportation Code, § 683.078 or any successor statute for junked 
vehicle disposal. 



Page 5

 

 

 
(2) Any proceeds from the transfer of the junked vehicle or part thereof to the 

site authorized by this section shall be used to reimburse the city for all costs 
incurred in the notification, investigation, hearing, and disposal procedures 
(including any and all variable towing and disposal fees from contracted 
sources) within this article. Any remaining proceeds shall be transferred to 
the lienholder of record or, if none, the owner of record. 

 
Sec. 14-119. – Effect of act on other laws. 
 
 Nothing in this Article shall affect laws that permit immediate removal of a vehicle 
left on public property which constitutes an obstruction to traffic, or laws that establish 
procedures for taking possession of abandoned motor vehicles. 
 
Sec. 14-120. - Removal—With the permission of the owner. 
 

If, within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the Code Enforcement Officer to 
abate the nuisance as herein provided, the owner of the junked motor vehicle or owner 
or occupant of the premises shall give his written permission to the City for removal of 
the junked motor vehicle from the premises, the giving of such permission shall be 
considered compliance with the provisions of this article. 

 
Secs. 14-121 – 14-135. – Reserved. 



PAGE 1 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

CITY OF ROSENBERG
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES

On this the 27th day of January, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas.

PRESENT
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor
William Benton Councilor at Large, Position 1
Cynthia McConathy Councilor at Large, Position 2
Jimmie J. Pena Councilor, District 1 
Susan Euton Councilor, District 2
Dwayne Grigar Councilor, District 3
Amanda Barta Councilor, District 4

STAFF PRESENT
Robert Gracia City Manager
Scott M. Tschirhart City Attorney
Linda Cernosek City Secretary
John Maresh Assistant City Manager of Public Services
Jeff Trinker Executive Director of Support Services
Joyce Vasut Executive Director of Administrative Services
Travis Tanner Executive Director of Community Development
Charles Kalkomey City Engineer
Tonya Palmer Building Official
Rose Pickens Inspector
Dallis Warren Police Chief
Wade Goates Fire Chief
Angela Fritz Executive Director of Information Services
Darren McCarthy Parks and Recreation Director
Randall Malik Economic Development Director
Kaye Supak Executive Assistant

During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and 
any consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. 
Public comments are welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments 
will be received at a Workshop Meeting.

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of 
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the 
Texas Government Code.

CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

AGENDA

1. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE CITY’S JUNKED VEHICLE REGULATIONS, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been included to allow for discussion regarding the City’s 
junked vehicle regulations.  An excerpt from the City’s Code, Chapter 14, Article VI – Junked 
Vehicles, has been included for your reference.

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 2 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

Key discussion points:
� Councilor Benton gave a brief overview of the item.
� Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney, advised of several options to consider in order to make 

non-compliance more enforceable.
� After discussion by Council, the following recommendations were made:

O Modify definition of junk vehicle to make it more strict and consistent with State 
Transportation Code.

O Reduce 30 days inoperable requirement (on private property) to 15 days.
O Declare a violation of the ordinance as a Class C Misdemeanor.
O Clean up “public view” in Section 14-113 to “visible from a public street” or the 

like.
O Remove Occupied Premise vs. Unoccupied Premise language.
O Include a provision regarding appellate process in Section 14-117 to offset 

finality of disposal of junk vehicle.
O Modify language in Section 14-118 to define that disposal of junk vehicle would 

occur at owner’s expense.
Questions/Comments:

Tonya Palmer, Building Official, addressed the following questions:
Q: What issues are you having to enforce this?
A: There are two components required for definition of junk vehicle: (1) expired inspection 
sticker or registration, and (2) it must be wrecked, dismantled, or inoperable. In many cases, 
someone complains, but upon contact with the property owner, it is proven to be operable 
and so the case is then closed.
Q: Who is the burden of proof on to determine if the vehicle has remained inoperable for 
more than 72 hours?
A: Burden of proof would fall on Code Enforcement, starting with the date of the first 
contact as a result of a complaint being filed.
Q: When the state changes the registration and inspection to one tag, how will this 
ordinance be affected?
A: That is why we need to make it comply with the current Texas Transportation Code
and/or change the restrictions on the definition of a junk vehicle to make it more 
enforceable.
Q: Would reducing 30 days inoperable to 15 days make a difference as well?
A: It would help as far as the time period to enforce it, and get a faster resolution.
� The general consensus of Council was for the City Attorney to a draft ordinance in 

redline fashion, including the suggestions for Council to review at the Regular Council 
Meeting on February 17, 2015.

� No action was taken on the item.

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE FY2015 STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY TREE TRIMMING CONTRACT, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council 
the opportunity to discuss the FY2015 Street Right-of-Way Tree Trimming Contract. Prior to 
FY2010, the Public Works Department budget included sufficient funding to enter into an 
annual tree trimming contract that would generally cover a complete Council District. This 
allowed the City to trim trees throughout the entire City over a four year period.  Prior to the 
FY2010 budget reductions, Council District 4 was the next in line for tree trimming.  

Staff anticipates relatively few changes to the program that was provided until FY2010.  The 
street and tree list will be updated to reflect the current City Council District boundaries, which 
have changed since 2010.

Staff recommends obtaining bids for the FY2015 Street Right-of-Way Tree Trimming Contract as 
described above. The bid proposal would be placed on a future City Council meeting Agenda 
for consideration and award.

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Ordinance No. 2015-13 – “Fence” Ordinance 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-13, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances, 
Chapter 6 Buildings and Building Regulations, Article XIV. Reserved, establishing restrictions on fences on 
public property; establishing location restrictions; establishing approved fencing materials; establishing 
requirements for fence maintenance; establishing fence restrictions; establishing requirements for 
dilapidated fence remediation; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing a severability clause; and 
providing for an effective date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-13  
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-24-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Building Official TP/rl 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item was last discussed at the February 24, 2015 City Council Workshop Meeting.  At the time, the 
City Attorney had prepared a draft Ordinance containing a number of requirements for fences (permits, 
etc.) per direction from City Council.  However, following discussion held at that meeting, the Ordinance 
has been scaled back significantly to address maintenance issues only based on the consensus of City 
Council.  In summary, the revised Ordinance provides for the following: 

 Fences must be maintained so as not to overhang or interfere with public property; 
 Fences  shall  not  be  more  than  twenty  (20%)  percent  out  of  vertical alignment; 
 Damaged, removed, or missing portions of a fence shall be replaced or repaired with comparable 

materials to the remaining portion; 
 The owner of any fence, existing or new, shall be responsible for the removal of any and all graffiti; 
 Any and all vegetation shall be kept clear of fences and shall not be allowed to grow into a fence; 

and, 
 Dilapidated fences are prohibited; should violations not be corrected by the owner within a ten (10) 

day time period, the City may remove the fence at its own expense and the cost shall be charged 
against the land and become a personal obligation of the owner. 

 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-13. 
 



 

Page 1 of 3  

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-13 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 6 BUILDINGS 
AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE XIV. RESERVED, ESTABLISHING 
RESTRICTIONS ON FENCES ON PUBLIC PROPERTY; ESTABLISHING 
LOCATION; ESTABLISHING APPROVED FENCING MATERIALS; 
ESTABLISHING REQUIREMENTS FOR FENCE MAINTENANCE; 
ESTABLISHING FENCE RESTRICTIONS; ESTABLISHING REQUIREMENTS 
FOR DILAPIDATED FENCE REMEDIATION; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;  AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg is a home rule City acting under it home rule Charter 

and the law of the State of Texas; and,  
 

WHEREAS, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Chapter 211 authorizes the City of Rosenberg to 
adopt rules and regulations regarding land use within the City limits of the City of Rosenberg 
for the purpose of promoting the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the City; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary to establish the provisions of this 
ordinance regarding the regulation of fences; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it would be advantageous and beneficial to the 
citizens of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, to adopt this ordinance regulating the requirements 
for fences within the City of Rosenberg; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that it is 
in the best interest of the public and in support of the health, safety, morals, and general welfare 
of the citizens of the City that the Building Code regulations relative to fencing requirements be 
established as hereinafter stated;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
 Section 1. Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 

correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council, and are hereby approved and 

incorporated into the body of the Building Code as if copied in their entirety.  

Section 2. Amending Building Code.  That Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6 Building 

and Building Regulations is hereby amended by creating Article XIV. Fences to hereinafter 

read as follows: 

  



 

Page 2 of 3  

  
“Sec. 6-390. - Fence Requirements and Prohibitions.                                        

 
a. Public Property:  A fence or any part of a fence shall not be constructed upon 

or allowed to protrude over a property line or lot line.  All fences must be 
maintained so as not to overhang or interfere with public property.  

  
b. Fence Maintenance:  All fences shall comply and be maintained in accordance 

with all the requirements of this ordinance at all times.   
 

1. Fences  shall  not  be  more  than  twenty  (20%)  percent  out  of  
vertical alignment.  

  
2. Damaged, removed, or missing portions of a fence shall be replaced 

or repaired with comparable materials to the remaining portion.  
  
3. The owner of any fence, existing or new, shall be responsible for the 

removal of any and all graffiti.  
  
4. Any and all vegetation shall be kept clear of fences and shall not be 

allowed to grow into a fence.  
 

c. Dilapidated Fences:  A dilapidated fence means a fence that is decayed, 
deteriorated, or fallen into partial or total ruin.  Should a fence be deemed 
dilapidated or substandard by the Code Enforcement Officer, then the following 
shall occur:  

 
1. A  notice  shall  be  served  to  the  property  owner  informing  of  the  

fence violation.  
  
2. Should the violations not be corrected by the owner within a ten (10) 

day time period, the City may remove the fence at its own expense and 
the cost shall be charged against the land and become a personal 
obligation of the owner.  The provisions for notice, hearing and appeal 
shall be conducted in compliance with provisions of Chapter 6 of the Code 
of Ordinances.” 

 

Section 3. Penalty.  Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions 

of this Ordinance, as amended, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof 

shall be fined in a sum not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00). Each and every day 

such violation continues shall constitute a separate offense and shall be punishable as such.  

Section 4. Cumulative and Conflicts. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all 

provisions of ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, except where the provisions of the 



 

Page 3 of 3  

Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the 

conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous versions 

of this Ordinance to the extent that they are in conflict herewith are repealed. 

Section 5. Severability.  In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part 

of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall 

not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 

than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 

notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, 

whether there be one or more parts. 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “nays” 

against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 of 

the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of ________________ 2015. 

   
ATTEST:      CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS:  
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde and Zech, P.C. 



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 21, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 Survey Related to One-Way Pairs Project 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss a proposed survey regarding the One-Way Pairs Project, and take action as 
necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1.  None 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

William Benton/rl 
 
William Benton 
Councilor, At Large Position 
One 
 
Amanda Barta/rl 
 
Amanda Barta 
Councilor, District 4 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item was requested to allow City Council an opportunity to discuss surveying the public related to the 
Texas Department of Transportation’s One-Way Pairs Project. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 10 
 

Hold Executive Session to deliberate the 
potential purchase, exchange, lease or value of 
real property pursuant to Section 551.072 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 11 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as 
necessary as a result of Executive Session. 



 

 
 
 

 
ITEM 12 

 
Announcements. 

 



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 13 

 
Adjournment. 

 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 04-21-15
	-- 1 - Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to 2015 FISH-tastic Sponsors and Volunteers
	-- 2 - Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to 2015 Easter Egg Hunt Sponsors and Volunteers
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 04-07-15

	B - Ordinance No. 2015-11 - MUD No. 167 Unlimited Tax Bonds Series 2015
	Ordinance No. 2015-11
	Location Map
	Oliver Correspondence w/o Attachments - 04-09-15
	TCEQ Technical Memorandum/Order - 04-16-15

	2 - Ordinance No. 2015-10 - Granting a Gas Franchise to SiEnergy LP
	Ordinance No. 2015-10 
	Charter Excerpt - Article XII, Section 12.03
	SiEnergy Distribution System Map
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 04-07-15
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 03-17-15

	3 - Resolution No. R-1955 - Denial of CenterPoint Entex Rate Increase
	Resolution No. R-1955
	Brocato Correspondence - 03-31-15
	Notice of CenterPoint Rate Increase - 03-27-15

	4 - Resolution No. R-1959 - Denial of CenterPoint Electric Rate Increase
	Resolution No. R-1959
	Brocato/Brewster Correspondence - 04-06-15 
	Notice of CenterPoint Rate Increase - 04-06-15

	5 - Resolution No. R-1956 - Commercial Load Management Standard Offer Program with CenterPoint Energy
	Resolution No. R-1956
	Resolution No. R-1317 - 05-17-11
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 05-17-11

	6 - Resolution No. R-1960 - BNSF Railway Company Pipeline License
	Resolution No. R-1960
	Jenkins Correspondence - 03-31-15
	Project Location Map
	Resolution No. R-1878 - 12-02-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-02-14

	7 - Ordinance No.  2015-12 - Junked Vehicle Ordinance
	Ordinance No. 2015-12 - Redlined Exhibit "A" only
	Ordinance No. 2015-12
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-27-15

	8 - Ordinance No.  2015-13 - Fence Ordinance
	Ordinance No. 2015-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-24-15

	9 - Survey Related to One-Way Pairs Project
	10 - Hold Executive Session
	11 - Adjourn Executive Session
	12 - Announcements
	13 - Adjournment



